
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

JUNE 6, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 6, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Dan Lewis – Troy Christian Chapel 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1  Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2011/12 Budget 2 



 

 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 2 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 2 

I-4 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Brett Amesse, 
Vice President of Troy Youth Football Association 3 

I-5 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 2011-2014 
and Early Retirement Incentive Program 3 

I-6 Application for Transfer of Ownership for Sams Mayur Indian Cuisine, LLC 4 

I-7 Demolition of Dangerous Building – 2651 Parasol 5 

I-8 Lease Agreement – Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga Restaurant at Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course) 6 

I-9 Medi-Go Service Agreement 7 

I-10 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 7 

I-11 Community Center Catering – Rescind City’s Application 8 

I-12 Community Center Catering – Caterer’s Liquor Application 8 

I-13 Approval of a Communications Strategy 8 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 9 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 9 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 10 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 10 



 

 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 10 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 10 

J-5 SOCRRA Appointment of Representative and Alternate to the Board of Trustees 10 

J-6 Application for New Outdoor Service Area for Capital Grille Holdings, Inc. 10 

J-7 M. Amelia (Neal) Jermano v City of Troy et. al. 11 

J-8 Forfeited Property Items 11 

J-9 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 11 

J-10 Contract Agreement – LED Lighting and Retrofits 12 

J-11 Precinct #4 and #9 Polling Place Relocation 13 

J-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements 
from Mondrian Properties-The Villas, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-21-102-026 13 

J-13 Private Agreement – Villas of Troy Site Condo – Project No. 07.928.3 13 

J-14 Approval of Extension of Time Limit for Early Retirement Incentive Plan for 
Exempt Employees 13 

J-15 City of Troy v Safeway Acquisition Co., et al. 14 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 14 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 14 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 14 

a) Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) for Building Maintenance 
Personnel ........................................................................................................... 14 



 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 14 

L-1  Council Referrals: 15 

a) No Council Referrals Submitted ......................................................................... 15 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 15 

M-1  No Council Comments Advanced 15 

N. REPORTS 15 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011 ......................................................... 15 
b) Library Advisory Board-Final-March 10, 2011 .................................................... 15 
c) Election Commission-Final-March 24, 2011 ....................................................... 15 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-April 11, 2011 ................................................ 15 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-April 19, 2011 .................................................... 15 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals-Final-April 19, 2011 .................................................... 15 
g) Planning Commission-Final-April 26, 2011 ........................................................ 15 
h) Planning Commission-Draft-May 10, 2011 ......................................................... 15 
i) Planning Commission-Final-May 10, 2011 ......................................................... 15 
j) Library Advisory Board-Draft-May 12, 2011 ....................................................... 15 
k) Election Commission-Draft-May 26, 2011 .......................................................... 15 

N-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) ICMA Implementation Plan and Progress Report – Police Department ............. 15 
b) Reduction in Service Delivery – Planning Department ....................................... 15 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 15 

a) Letter of Appreciation from David E. Molloy, Chief of Police, Novi, to Chief 
Gary Mayer thanking Officer Cole and K-9 partner Titan for assistance ............ 15 

b) Letter of Appreciation from Todd Hunt, Sergeant, Pontiac Police Department, 
to Chief Mayer thanking Detective Tullock for assistance .................................. 15 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 15 

N-5  Towing Contract, A&M Towing 15 

N-6  Notice of Hearing - The Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-16582 15 

N-7  Grand Sakwa v City of Troy 15 



 

 

O. STUDY ITEMS 15 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 15 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 16 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 16 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 16 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 16 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, June 20, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 16 
Monday, July 11, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 16 
Monday, July 25, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 16 
Monday, August 8, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 16 
Monday, August 22, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 16 
Monday, August 29, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 16 
Monday, September 12, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 16 
Monday, September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 16 
Monday, October 3, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 16 
Monday, October 17, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 
Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 16 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Dan Lewis – Troy Christian Chapel  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of June 6, 2011 due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2011/12 Budget 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

I-4 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Brett Amesse, 
Vice President of Troy Youth Football Association 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Youth Football 
Association, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 2011-2014 and 

Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, A tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and TCOA for 
the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012; 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 16 Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) members will meet 
the eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of April 30, 2011; and two (2) Troy 
Command Officers Association (TCOA) members are within five years of meeting the eligibility 
criteria for retirement from City employment as of April 30, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

position vacancies, and provide City Management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the Troy 
Command Officers Association (TCOA) members who will be eligible to retire, or are within five 
years of eligibility, on or before April 30, 2011, provided that the program is economically 
beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of April 30, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Departments’ budgets, and funding 
for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than September 2, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a three-year collective bargaining agreement between the 
City of Troy and TCOA for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2014 as presented is 
hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Application for Transfer of Ownership for Sams Mayur Indian Cuisine, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

(a) Transfer Ownership 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Sams Mayur Indian Cuisine, LLC 

Type of License Requested : 
Transfer Ownership of 2010 Class C Licensed Business with 
Official Permit (Food) & Outdoor Service (1 Area) from 
Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. 

To be held in conjunction with :  
Located at : 5113 Rochester Road, Troy, MI  48085, Oakland County 

MLCC Request # : 579652 
 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Demolition of Dangerous Building – 2651 Parasol 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has been presented with photographs and other evidence 
depicting the condition of the residence at 2651 Parasol, Troy, Michigan; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The residence at 2651 Parasol has been rendered unsafe by a fire occurring on 
January 30, 2010; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City has made several efforts towards making the property safe, but has not 
been successful in these efforts, and these efforts include the request of relief through the 
municipal civil infraction process; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management sent the property owners official notification that the building 
was dangerous on June 2, 2010.  The property owners have not responded to this notification, 
and similarly have not responded to the municipal civil infraction citations, resulting in an Order 
Holding Defendant In Civil Contempt of Court, issued on February 24, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Management also provided alternate service to the property owners by 
publishing the notice in the Somerset Gazette on March 7, 14, and 21, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, It has been more than 10 days since the notification to the property owners; and  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 82 authorizes City Council to issue a dangerous building declaration in 
such cases without the necessity of a hearing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DECLARES the 
residence at 2651 Parasol dangerous to the life, health, property or safety of the public and/or 
occupants, as set forth in Chapter 82, Section 108.1.1 of the Troy City Ordinance.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Management is hereby DIRECTED to send 
notification of this dangerous building declaration by certified mail, to the property owners as 
listed on the City of Troy’s most recent assessing record, Jagjit and Manpreet Sandhu, 
providing them with 21 days to demolish the building and make the property safe; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if the property owners fail to comply with this directive, then 
City Management is DIRECTED to take any action necessary to demolish the building, the cost 
of which shall be the responsibility of the property owners, and which can be collected in any 
manner authorized by law.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-8 Lease Agreement – Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga Restaurant at Sylvan 

Glen Golf Course) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That City Management recommends approval of a Lease agreement with 
Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga) of Metamora, Michigan for a five-year period, with an 
expiration date of May 1, 2016, unless otherwise terminated, as provided in this Lease 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

Agreement.  The City may, at its option, renew this Lease Agreement for a one additional five 
(5) year period under the terms and conditions as set out in this Lease Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lessee agrees to pay City rent in the sum of sixty-seven thousand two hundred 
($67,200.00) dollars per year for the first through the fifth (5th) year of the Lease Agreement.  
Payments shall be made in equal monthly payments of five thousand six hundred ($5,600.00) 
dollars per month;  
 
WHEREAS, Lessee shall complete at least $180,000.00 in capital improvements no later than 
October 1, 2014.  Lessee shall provide adequate receipts and/or documentation to City of the 
actual costs of the capital improvements.  If Lessee fails to make at least $180.000.00 in capital 
improvements as listed in the Agreement by the May 1, 2014 deadline date, then the monthly 
rent for the remaining two (2) years of this Lease Agreement shall be increased to $7,310.00 
per month or $87,720.00 dollars for each remaining year.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-9 Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the request for funding in the amount of entire municipal and community 
credits transferred from SMART for Troy Medi-Go Plus for fiscal year 2011/2012, and the 
funding agreement between the City of Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus covering July 1, 2011 
through June 30, 2012 are hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents and copies shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-10 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20 of the 
Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates), a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

 
I-11 Community Center Catering – Rescind City’s Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy WITHDRAW its application to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission for a Class C quota license for the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois Road, 
Troy, Michigan 48084. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-12 Community Center Catering – Caterer’s Liquor Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the City recommends approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
of a Class C quota liquor license for Alpha-Doni, Inc., d/b/a Encore Catering, for the Troy 
Community Center at 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 48084, Oakland County  “above all 
others”. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-13 Approval of a Communications Strategy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
Option A: 
 
WHEREAS, City Council adopted a Vision Statement and Goals on February 7, 2011, and 
directed City Administration to develop objectives to facilitate Council’s goals for Council’s 
consideration at a future date (Resolution #2011-02-023); 
 
WHEREAS, In an effort to improve communication and build a sense of community, City 
administration sought proposals from three firms to provide a communication strategy and 
economic-stability plan as directed; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, Target Insyght conducted a statistically significant citizen survey and met with 
department directors and City Council to discuss the results and plans for the future; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby approves a month-
to-month contract up to twenty-four months to provide a Communications Strategy and 
Economic-Stability Plan with Target Insyght of Lansing, MI, at a cost of $9,500.00 per month 
plus any additional out of pocket or production costs with a six-month review by the City 
Manager to ensure the vision becomes reality and the goals are achieved.    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and Acting City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Agreement once in acceptable form. 
 
OR 
 
Option B: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City administration to develop 
criteria, a revised scope of work, specifications, reporting requirements and metrics, and solicit 
formal statement of qualifications/request for proposals in order to meet the City’s Vision 
Statement and Goals adopted at the regular City Council meeting of February 7, 2011 
(Resolution #2011-02-023), the process which may take up to 120 days to complete. 
 
OR 
 
Option C: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby TAKES NO ACTION on the 
Communications Strategy and Economic-Stability Plan at this time. 
 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 
b) Special City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 
c) Regular City Council Meeting of May 16, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 
J-5 SOCRRA Appointment of Representative and Alternate to the Board of Trustees 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES                                  as the 
SOCRRA Representative and                                     as the Alternate SOCRRA Representative 
with terms expiring on June 30, 2012. 
 
J-6 Application for New Outdoor Service Area for Capital Grille Holdings, Inc. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
(a) New Outdoor Service Area 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, pending final inspections, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor 
and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Capital Grille Holdings, Inc. 
Type of License Requested : New Outdoor Service Area (1 Area) 

To be held in conjunction with : 2010 Class C & SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit 
(Food) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

Located at : Somerset Collection North, 2800 W.Big Beaver, Space Q 123, 
Troy Michigan, 48084, Oakland County 

MLCC Request # : 569015 
 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, pending final 
inspections, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 M. Amelia (Neal) Jermano v City of Troy et. al. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, that the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy, the City of Troy Police Department and the individual Troy defendants named in 
the matter of M. Amelia (Neal) Jermano v Officer Troy Taylor, et al., United States District Court 
for the Eastern District of Michigan, Case No. 2:11-cv-10739-RSW, against any claims and 
damages.  Furthermore, the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO PAY necessary costs and 
expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City and 
the Troy defendants.  
 
J-8 Forfeited Property Items 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby grants approval to sell two Rolex watches, cuff 
links, and tie tacks, seized and forfeited pursuant to asset forfeiture laws, (#05-24770), to the 
highest bidder, Tappers Diamonds & Fine Jewelry, Somerset Collection, 2800 W Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, MI 48084 at a sales price of $21,000.00; all other property in Case #’s 89-40073 
and 08-28524 will be sold as directed in the City Charter and Code. 
 
J-9 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, Section 1.167 of Chapter 5 and Section 6 of Chapter 20 of the Ordinance Code of 
the City of Troy require that delinquent payments and invoices, as of April 1st of each year, shall 
be reported and the City Council shall certify the same to the City Assessor who shall assess 
the same on the next annual City Tax Roll, to be collected as provided for collection of City 
Taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 10.8 of the Troy City Charter provides for the collection of delinquent 
invoices through property tax collection procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, A list of individual properties is on file in the Office of the Treasurer and comprises 
a summation of totals as follows: 
 
 General Fund Invoices 
  Including Penalties    $   65,370.84 
 Special Assessments  
  Including Penalties & Interest         7,244.05 
 Water & Sewer Accounts 
  Including Penalties       873,295.45 
 
 Total       $ 945,910.34 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
ASSESS these delinquent accounts on the annual City Tax Roll. 
 
J-10 Contract Agreement – LED Lighting and Retrofits 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
WHEREAS, On February 7, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a contract to purchase and install 
LED Lighting and Retrofits on the main City Hall Campus and Police/Fire Training Facility to the 
low total bidder, Corby Energy Services, Inc of Belleville, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$265,190.00 and allowed for additional lighting purchases at the Fire Stations not-to-exceed 
$66,290.00 (Resolution #2011-02-026); and 
 
WHEREAS, Projects under the original Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
(EECBG) Program have been modified, changed or eliminated due to the ongoing restructuring 
of the City and monies dedicated for those projects need to be reallocated; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, In keeping with the purpose of the EECBG Program to 
reduce total energy use, the Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the current contract and 
EXPANDS the scope of work with Corby Energy Services to purchase and install additional 
LED lighting and retrofits as detailed in Appendix I, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, for an amount not-to-exceed $155,000.00, at unit prices as 
originally bid on January 24, 2011, with the entire LED project scheduled for reimbursement 
under the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

J-11 Precinct #4 and #9 Polling Place Relocation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request to relocate voting 
precincts #4 and #9 from St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Church (280 E. Square Lake Rd.) to First 
United Methodist Church (6363 Livernois) beginning with the August 2, 2011, Special Election, 
as recommended by City Management. 
 
J-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements from 

Mondrian Properties-The Villas, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-21-102-026 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way and 
four Permanent Easements for public utilities, storm sewer, storm water detention, surface 
drainage, sidewalks, emergency ingress and egress from Mondrian Properties-The Villas, LLC, 
owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-21-102-026; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-13 Private Agreement – Villas of Troy Site Condo – Project No. 07.928.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrian Properties - Villas L.L.C., is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, detention, paving, 
sidewalks, landscaping and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-14 Approval of Extension of Time Limit for Early Retirement Incentive Plan for 

Exempt Employees 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That the deadline for Mr. James Nash to apply for the Early Retirement Incentive 
Program (ERIP) which is currently being offered to Classified and Exempt employees be 
EXTENDED from May 23, 2011 until the conclusion of the six-month review period for his 
promotion to Acting Director of Finance and Administration, or November 23, 2011. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

J-15 City of Troy v Safeway Acquisition Co., et al. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment 
in the condemnation case of the City of Troy v Safeway Acquisition Co., et al., Oakland County 
Circuit Court Case No. 10-107042 CC, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated 
therein, and further AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s Office TO EXECUTE the document on 
behalf of the City of Troy, and a copy is to be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):  
a) Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) for Building Maintenance Personnel 
 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
a) No Council Referrals Submitted 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1  No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011 
b) Library Advisory Board-Final-March 10, 2011 
c) Election Commission-Final-March 24, 2011 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-April 11, 2011 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-April 19, 2011 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals-Final-April 19, 2011 
g) Planning Commission-Final-April 26, 2011 
h) Planning Commission-Draft-May 10, 2011 
i) Planning Commission-Final-May 10, 2011 
j) Library Advisory Board-Draft-May 12, 2011 
k) Election Commission-Draft-May 26, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) ICMA Implementation Plan and Progress Report – Police Department  
b) Reduction in Service Delivery – Planning Department 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from David E. Molloy, Chief of Police, Novi, to Chief Gary Mayer 

thanking Officer Cole and K-9 partner Titan for assistance  
b) Letter of Appreciation from Todd Hunt, Sergeant, Pontiac Police Department, to Chief 

Mayer thanking Detective Tullock for assistance 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Towing Contract, A&M Towing 
 
N-6  Notice of Hearing - The Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-16582 
 
N-7  Grand Sakwa v City of Troy 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 6, 2011 
 

- 16 - 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, June 20, 2011 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 11, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 25, 2011 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 8, 2011 .................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 22, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 29, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 12, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 26, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 3, 2011 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 17, 2011 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 14, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
June 01, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administrative Services 
   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
    
SUBJECT: Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed  

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
 
On May 16, 2011 City Council postponed the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) budget 
to the June 06, 2011 meeting.  City Council requested that it be determined if the proposed 
appropriation of fund balance included revolving loan funds.   
 
It was determined that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for June 30, 2006 
included a fund balance of $108,728.  This fund balance pre-dates the revolving loan fund and does 
not include revolving loan fund dollars.  Further, to clarify the purpose of the $25,000 for 
administrative services, this will help fund the City Manager’s and City Attorney’s staff time and the 
financial audit.   In addition, the revenues were corrected.  City Council has the authority to adopt the 
proposed 2011/12 budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality: 
 
 
__________________________________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MM/bt\MY DOCUMENTS\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\Word Files\06.06.11 - Approval of BRA 2011-12 Budget.docx 

stewartc
Text Box
H-01



REVENUE Property Tax $3,540
Appropriation of Fund Balance 25,000

$28,540

EXPENDITURES Payment to TCF Bank $3,540
Administrative Services 25,000

$28,540

Base Taxable 
Value

2011 
Taxable 
Value

2010 
Captured 
Taxable 
Value

Commercial Real Non-H -  TROY 197,940 382,510 184,570

Total Troy 197,940 382,510  184,570
Grand Total 197,940 382,510  184,570

Millage Rates County
City - 
Debt

Community 
College

Transpor-
tation

ISD Total

CR Non T 4.6461 8.9900 1.5844 0.5900 3.3690 19.1795

Captured Tax 
Yield

Total 
Captured 
Taxable 
Value

Total 
Captured 

Mills

Total 
Captured 

Taxes

Commercial Real Non-H -  TROY 184,570 19.1795 3,540

Total Troy 184,570 19.1795 3,540
Grand Total 184,570 19.1795 3,540

CAPTURED TAXABLE VALUE
2011-2012

CITY OF TROY
BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

2011-2012
PROPOSED BUDGET



 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
Date:         May 16, 2011                     
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
   
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Brett Amesse, Vice 

President of Troy Youth Football Association 
 
 
Background 
 
Attached is a request from Brett Amesse, Vice President of Troy Youth Football Association seeking 
recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license 
for fundraising purposes.  
 
Recommendation 
 
It has been City Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-04



 
 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Youth Football 
Association, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 



PES/bjm/\AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.36 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program -TCOA 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  May 31, 2011 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
James Nash, Acting Director of Finance and Administration 
Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers 

Association (TCOA) 2011-2014 and Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement between 
the City of Troy and the Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) for a three-year 
successor collective bargaining agreement that will replace the contract that expires June 
30, 2011.  City management further supports and recommends approval to offer the Early 
Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) to TCOA employees. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On May 3, 2011, the Troy Command Officers Association ratified a tentative agreement 
between the City of Troy and TCOA for a three-year successor collective bargaining 
agreement that will replace the contract that will expire June 30, 2011.   
 
As directed by City Council, this agreement achieves a 10% savings calculated on payroll 
costs that include base pay, pension, workers compensation and FICA.  This tentative 
agreement incorporates the equivalent of a 5% savings in wages (unpaid furlough time and 
the forfeiture of contractual pay increases), over 3% savings in health insurance, and over 
2% savings in the cost of paid shift prep time.  Thus, a 10.16% savings is achieved. 
 
The last component of the tentative agreement is the offering of an Early Retirement 
Incentive Program (ERIP).  A description of the program recommended by City  
administration and the actuarial valuation are attached.  The proposed program is consistent 
with the ERIP previously offered to the TFSOA and Classified and Exempt 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-05



 

PES/bjm/\AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.036 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program -TCOA 
 

Agenda Item-Ratification of 2011-2014 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program - 
TCOA  
Page Two 
 
 
employees.  Two options would be offered:  A cash incentive of $1,000 per complete year of 
credited retirement service with the City of Troy, or the option to convert from a Defined 
Contribution Pension Plan to a Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  This Early Retirement 
Incentive Program must be cost neutral.  The DC to DB Program would be funded directly 
from the members’ DC accounts.  The cost associated with the cash incentive program will 
be covered by the department.   
 
 
 
PES/JML/bjm 
 
Attachments 
 
 



G:Negotiations\TCOA\2011\TA Summary 2011-05-05 
 

 
 
 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and TCOA 

2011-2014 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Duration   Three year contract 
 
Pay Reduction a. Pay raises originally scheduled to take effect on July 1, 2010 (2% 

 for Police Sergeants and Lieutenants, 1% for Police Captains) are 
 postponed until June 30, 2014, with no retroactivity.  

 b. Continued use of furlough days (82.8 hours per year for Captains; 
 62 hours per year for Lts. and Sgts.) 

 
Health Insurance a. Blue Cross PPO replaced with Blue Cross Community Blue Plan 1 

 (Modified): 
1. $10/$40 prescription drug rider (PDR) replaces $10/$20 PDR for 

generic/brand name drugs, including with mandatory generic, 
prior authorization, step therapy and 2X MOPD (co-pay for mail 
order prescription drugs increased to a two-month copay for a 3 
month supply) 

2. $30 office visit (OV) copay and $30 chiropractic office visit 
(COV) copay  

3. $50 emergency room (ER) copay (waived if admitted) 
4. $250/$500 basic deductible 

b. Current HMOs modified to include $10/$40 drug rider with 
mandatory generic, prior authorization, step therapy, 2X MOPD; 
$30 OV copay, $50 ER copay (waived if admitted) 

c. Employee co-pay for health insurance premium changed from 
$20/mo. to $50/mo. 

 
Miscellaneous a. Early Retirement incentive Plan (ERIP) to be offered to TCOA 

 members 
 b. Reduction in cost of shift prep 
 



TCOA NEGOTIATIONS ‐ Contract Expiring 6/30/2011

PROPOSED SETTLEMENT SAVINGS

(As % of Payroll)

ISSUE

ANNUAL 

SAVINGS

Forfeiture of Contractual Pay Raises $50,722

Unpaid Furlough Time $85,175

Replace PPO Health Insur. w/Community Blue 

Plan I Modified $85,053

Reduction in Cost of Paid Shift Prep Time $56,131

Total Annual Savings $277,081

Savings as Percent of Base Pay +                             

Rollups [Pension, Work. Comp., FICA]                     

($2,728,434)  10.16%

Savings as                                                           

Percent of Base Pay Only ($2,094,132)  13.23%

G:Negotiations/TCOA/2011/Negot Settlement Savings 2011‐05‐06



1 
G:ERIP\TCOA\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-05-26 
 
 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM  2011 
TCOA Employees 

 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
The City of Troy is implementing an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) in the form of 
two options, a cash incentive or a DC to DB conversion, in order to reduce personnel costs to 
accommodate budget constraints.  The Program is being offered to eligible employees if the 
employee signs a Letter of Understanding with the City of Troy and, in the case of a union 
employee, that union agrees to the terms and conditions of the Program.  Participation in the 
Program is entirely voluntary.  Interested eligible employees in either the DB Pension Plan or the 
DC Pension Plan may elect to participate, but can only select one of the available options.  
Participating employees must retire on or before the date specified in the Plan. 
 
 
INCENTIVE OPTIONS:   
 
Cash Incentive 
Eligible employees in either the Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect 
to receive a cash incentive that is equal to $1,000 for each actual complete year of credited 
service with the City of Troy as of April 30, 2011.  The cash incentive will be issued not later 
than three weeks after the employees’ designated retirement date.  The number of years for 
which the cash incentive is made shall not include years of service granted for prior government 
service from an employer other than the City of Troy.   
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan, the incentive will not be 
included in any computation of Final Average Compensation (FAC) under any provisions of the 
Retirement System.  Both the City and the employee will make the required contributions to the 
plan. 
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan, the employee and 
the City of Troy will each contribute their appropriate percentage to the plan.   
 
DC to DB Conversion 
Eligible employees in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect to transfer their total 
accumulated balance (including all employee contributions and interest thereon) to the City of 
Troy Employees Retirement System-Defined Benefit Plan.  Their pension will be based solely on 
the value of their accumulated DC account balance at the date of transfer as determined by the 
Retirement System’s actuary.   
 
 
GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Employees who are eligible to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program will be sent 
notification following approval of the program by City Council.  The notice will include the 
Early Retirement Incentive Program Voluntary Resignation Agreement and Release of Claims 
form, a Receipt form and a Waiver of Review Period form.  Employees will have a minimum of 



2 
G:ERIP\TCOA\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-05-26 
 
 

45 days in which to consider the Release in order to seek counsel regarding their rights.  If the 
employee chooses to waive the 45-day review period, he/she must submit the signed Waiver.  
Employees who elect to participate in the Program must submit the signed Release not later than 
the end of the window period and will have seven (7) days after signing to revoke their decision.  
Retirement dates are subject to approval, and retirement must occur not later than September 2, 
2011.   
 
 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS:   
 
The Program will be available to TCOA employees who meet the age and service requirements 
for normal or early retirement as of April 30, 2011, or are within five years of eligibility, as 
defined by the Employee Retirement System Ordinance or by the respective collective 
bargaining agreement.  These eligibility requirements are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EFFECTIVE DATES: 
 

Window Period (45-days minimum): June 7, 2011 through July 22, 2011 
 
Revocation Period Ends (7 days):  July 29, 2011 

 
Retirement Not Later Than:  September 2, 2011 

 
GROUP A 
Regular Retirement 
 

25 years of service; or 
Age 60 with 10 years of service 

 
Early Retirement  

Age 55 with 10 years of service 
 
 
GROUP B 

Those within five (5) years of eligibility as stated above 



May 26, 2011 

CONFIDENTIAL

Mr. John Lamerato 
Assistant City Manager - Finance 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

Re: A Supplemental Valuation of the Effect of a Proposed Early Retirement 
Incentive Plan (ERIP) for the City of Troy-TCOA 

Dear Mr. Lamerato: 

This report presents the results of a supplemental valuation of the potential impact of a proposed 
Early Retirement Incentive Plan on the City of Troy Employees Retirement System (ERS) and 
Retiree Health Plan.  A summary of the Early Retirement Incentive Plan provisions is shown on the 
following page.

Except where indicated, this valuation was based on the actuarial assumptions and methods used in 
the most recent ERS and Other Postemployment Benefits annual actuarial valuations.

Both of the undersigned are Members of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meet 
the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 
contained herein. 

Sincerely,

Brad Armstrong, ASA, EA, MAAA 

Randall J. Dziubek, ASA, EA, MAAA 

BLA/RJD:sc 
Enclosures



May 26, 2011 -1-

CITY OF TROY
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-TCOA

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)
PROPOSED PROVISIONS

ERIP
Eligibility: Member is eligible or within five years of eligibility for regular or early 
retirement as of April 30, 2011.  Members of both the ERS and the Defined Contribution 
Plan (DC) are eligible for the ERIP. 

Benefits provided by the ERIP: 
� ERS Members – Immediate commencement of unreduced retirement benefit 

based on accrued service as of April 30, 2011.
� ERS and DC Members - Immediate commencement of retiree health benefits 

based on accrued service as of April 30, 2011. 
� ERS and DC Members – All eligible members as of April 30, 2011 will receive a 

lump sum payment of $1,000 for each complete year of service as of the same 
date.  These lump sums will not be funded by the Retirement System.  In the case 
of DC members, the eligibility for the lump sum is contingent on not converting 
their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System.   



CITY OF TROY
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-TCOA

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)
PROPOSED PROVISIONS

DATA PROVIDED TO THE ACTUARY: The City provided a listing of all of the active members 
that are believed to be eligible for the ERIP.  The listing was reviewed for reasonableness, but 
was not audited by the actuary. 

A summary of individuals deemed eligible for the ERIP and included in this report is shown 
below:

Number Total
Group Count Annual Payroll

ERS
NR Eligible 8           918,594    $     50.6 yrs. 26.0 yrs. 26.0 yrs.
ER Eligible -       -                  
Eligible within 5 yrs. 2           211,908           44.0 18.4 18.4
Total ERS 10         1,130,502    $ 49.3 yrs. 24.5 yrs. 24.5 yrs.

DC Plan
NR Eligible 8           861,282    $     56.2 yrs. 32.3 yrs. 32.3 yrs.
ER Eligible -       -                  
Eligible within 5 yrs. -       -                  
Total DC Plan 8           861,282    $     56.2 yrs. 32.3 yrs. 32.3 yrs.

Data as of April 30, 2011
Average Average Service

Age Benefit Eligibility

May 26, 2011 -2-



RESULTS OF THE VALUATION

The estimated impact of the proposed ERIP as of April 30, 2011 is shown below, assuming 
100% of eligible members retire.  The “Retiree Health” results represent the impact of immediate 
retirement for both ERS and DC Plan members. 

Annual contribution results shown below were determined by amortizing the increase in the 
present value of benefits over a five-year period as a level percent of pay.  These contribution 
results are not the expected increases in the Annual Required Contributions (ARC) that will be 
determined in the actuarial valuations following the ERIP, but are a good representation of the 
expected overall costs of the ERIP if paid off over a five-year period.

Annual Contribution
Required to Amortize 

PV Increase Over 5 Years
Pension 128,868$      28,135$         
Retiree Health 137,716        30,066          
Sub-Total 266,584$      58,201$         
$1,000 x Service * 352,000        NA
Total 618,584$      58,201$         

Reduced Member DB Contributions 91,106$        19,890$         

Increased Benefits Plus Reduced
Member DB Contributions 709,690$      78,091$         

Increase in 
Present Value (PV)

 of Projected Benefits

* The $1,000 x Service amounts shown above are based on accrued service as of April 30, 2011.  These lump sum 
payments will not be funded by the Retirement System. The cost to amortize over 5 years is not shown since it is 
assumed these payments will be made immediately following the retirement of participating members. 

Increase in Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for Retiree Health Benefits

The Annual Required Contribution for retiree health benefits is currently based on the Entry-Age 
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The expected increase in the actuarial accrued liability 
(AAL) for retiree health benefits under the EAN cost method due to the proposed ERIP is 
$320,458.  Under current methods, 30-year amortization of the increase in the AAL under the 
EAN cost method will be included in the calculation of the ARC in the valuation following the 
ERIP.

May 26, 2011 -3-



RESULTS OF THE VALUATION

The chart below illustrates the total expected cost of the additional pension and retiree health 
benefits provided under the ERIP alternatives if spread over a five year period. These results do 
not reflect the potential savings associated with the ERIP due to decreased payroll and fringe 
benefit costs and other factors. For an overall measure of the estimated cost/savings associated 
with the ERIP, the costs shown below should be combined with any expected savings due to 
decreased payroll and other factors.  If the expected savings due to these factors over the next 
five years is equal to the costs shown below, the ERIP can be considered cost neutral to the City. 

$0
$50,000

$100,000
$150,000
$200,000
$250,000
$300,000
$350,000
$400,000
$450,000

1 2 3 4 5 6

A
nn

ua
l C

os
t

Year

Estimated Annual Cost of ERIP Alternatives Amortized Over 5 Years

The estimated cost of the $1,000 x service benefit is shown in Year 1.  The 5-year amortization 
of additional costs under the ERIP is shown in Years 2-6.  Year 1 represents the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2011. We assumed that 50% of the eligible DC Plan members will elect to 
convert their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System thereby forgoing any 
lump sum payment.

May 26, 2011 -4-



RESULTS OF THE VALUATION

It is likely that less than 100% of eligible members will choose to retire under this ERIP.  In the 
table below, we show the estimated increase in the present value of benefits and the 5-year 
amortization payment of these increases based on various election percentages (please refer to 
Comments 4 and 5 on page 6).  Each of the sets of results shown assume 50% of the eligible DC 
Plan members will elect to convert their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement 
System thereby forgoing any lump sum payment. 

Percentage of Eligible Members Assumed
to Retire Under the Program

100% 75% 50% 25%

Number Assumed to Retire from ERS 9                   7                   5                   2                 
Number Assumed to Retire from DC Plan 8                   6                   4                   2                 

Increase in PV of Benefits Plus Reduced 
Member DB Contributions

Pension 128,868$      96,651$        64,434$ 32,217$
Retiree Health 137,716        103,287        68,858 34,429
$1,000 x Service 352,000        264,000        176,000 88,000
Reduced Member DB Contributions 91,106          68,330          45,553 22,777
Total 709,690$      532,268$      354,845$ 177,423$    

5-Year Amortization of Above (In addition 
to One-Time Cost of $1,000 x Service)

Pension 28,135$        21,101$        14,068$ 7,034$        
Retiree Health 30,066          22,550          15,033 7,517
Reduced Member DB Contributions 19,890          14,918          9,945 4,973
Total 78,091$        58,569$        39,046$ 19,524$

Please see the Comments on pages 6 and 7 for important information that is essential to 
understanding this report. 

May 26, 2011 -5-



May 26, 2011 -6-

COMMENTS

Comment 1:  This report is based on an assumption that individuals reported by the City as 
eligible for the ERIP, elect the ERIP and then retire on April 30, 2011.  Data used for this report 
was based on the data provided by the City regarding eligible members as of April 30, 2011.  Pay 
data and service provided for the December 31, 2010 annual actuarial valuation of the ERS was 
used to estimate pensionable earnings at retirement.

Comment 2:  This report is based on the data and assumptions noted above and the proposed 
ERIP provisions shown on page 1.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were 
used are unreasonable, that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important and 
relevant plan provisions are not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations 
were made, you should contact the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the 
report.

Comment 3:  This report shows the potential impact of the proposed ERIP on ERS pension and 
retiree health care costs as of April 30, 2011.  The non-retirement costs/savings in other areas 
(payroll savings, fringe benefit savings, employer contributions to new hire defined contribution 
accounts, etc.) are not included in this report.

Comment 4:  The cost of the proposed ERIP has been developed assuming that all of the 
individuals shown in this report are eligible for the ERIP and will elect to retire on April 30, 
2011 (with one exception discussed in Comment 5 below).  Please be aware that the cost of the 
ERIP will vary for each individual member.  For example, if half of the eligible employees elect 
to retire, and these employees are the ones who would benefit most from the incentive, the cost 
would be more than 50% of the “100% retire” cost shown in this report.  In other words, in the 
examples of 75%, 50%, and 25% election percentages on page 5, the cost would be increased if 
the employees electing to retire are the employees who would benefit most from the proposal. 

Comment 5:  Under an early retirement incentive program, such as the proposed program, a 
member will commence benefits prior to when they were otherwise eligible (or assumed) to 
commence benefits.  If the accrued benefits are not changed as part of the program (as is the case 
for some of the members included in this study) members will forfeit future accruals as a result 
of the earlier commencement.  If the earlier commencement is more valuable than the forfeiture 
of accruals (the more common case) a cost increase will result.  However, if the forfeiture of 
future accruals is more valuable than the earlier commencement, a cost savings can result.  It is 
important to note that, which is more valuable (the earlier commencement or the future accruals) 
varies from person to person.  For one of the eligible members included in this study, an 
expected material cost savings for both pension and retiree health benefits results if he were 
assumed to retire immediately under the ERIP. In order to provide an estimate of the maximum 
cost of this proposed ERIP, the results provided under the “100% retire” scenario on pages 3-5, 
assume this member does not retire under the ERIP. Actual costs of the ERIP could be lower 
than those provided here, if he does in fact retire under the program.    



May 26, 2011 -7-

COMMENTS

Comment 6:  The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommended practice for 
evaluating the use of early retirement incentives has been included in the Appendix of this report.
The GFOA recommends the use of a short amortization period (such as 3-5 years) to finance the 
incremental cost of an early retirement incentive plan.  Since savings are typically realized over a 
short period, the costs should also be recognized over a similar period.  Regardless of the time 
period selected for funding, we recommend that policy makers carefully consider the 5 year 
results shown in this correspondence in the decision making process.  

Comment 7:  The calculations are based upon assumptions regarding future events, which may 
or may not materialize.  They are also based upon present and proposed plan provisions that are 
outlined in the report.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were used are 
unreasonable, that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions 
relevant to this proposal are not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations 
were made, you should contact the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the 
report.

Comment 8:  If you have reason to believe that the information provided in this report is 
inaccurate, or is in any way incomplete, or if you need further information in order to make an 
informed decision on the subject matter of this report, please contact the authors of the report 
prior to making such decision. 

Comment 9:  No statement in this report is intended to be interpreted as a recommendation in 
favor of the changes, or in opposition to them. 

Comment 10:  This report is intended to describe the financial effect of the proposed plan 
changes on the retirement system. Except as otherwise noted, potential effects on other benefit 
plans were not considered. 

Comment 11: The reader of this report should keep in mind that actuarial calculations are 
mathematical estimates based on current data and assumptions about future events (which may 
or may not materialize).  Please note that actuarial calculations can and do vary from one 
valuation year to the next, sometimes significantly if the group valued is very small (less than 30 
lives).  As a result, the cost impact of a benefit change may fluctuate over time, as the 
demographics of the group changes. 



APPENDIX



May 26, 2011 -8-

GFOA Recommended Practice 

Evaluating Use of Early Retirement Incentives - 2004

Background.  Governments occasionally offer early retirement incentives (ERIs)1 to employees as a 
strategy to reduce payroll costs or stimulate short-term turnover among staff.  ERIs are temporary, 
offered during a window that usually covers a period of months.  They increase the economic value of 
the standard retirement benefit. Historically, ERIs rarely have succeeded, since costs are often greater 
than initially anticipated by the government offering the incentive, and savings are lower than 
projected.

Recommendation.  GFOA recommends that governments exercise extreme caution if considering 
ERIs.  Governments should take several actions prior to the decision to offer an ERI in terms of (1) 
goal-setting, (2) cost/benefit analysis, and (3) budgetary analysis.  Governments should also develop an 
implementation plan. 

1.  Goal-Setting for ERIs 

Governments should be explicit in setting documented goals for the ERI.  Goals can be financial in 
nature, such as realizing permanent efficiencies in staffing or achieving budgetary objectives.  ERIs 
can also be designed to achieve human resource goals, such as creating vacancies that allow for 
additional promotion opportunities and allowing management to bring in new staff.  Any ERI goals 
should not conflict with other retirement plan goals (e.g., features to reduce turnover or increase 
retention). 

An explicit statement of goals is needed to judge the ultimate success of the initiative and to develop 
performance measures.  Further, having a statement of goals promotes transparency.  Inappropriate 
goals such as rewarding a select group of staff should be explicitly rejected.  Potential conflicts of 
interest among decision-makers who design an ERI should be monitored closely, since any self-dealing 
is costly and could harm the long-term credibility of the government entity. 

2.  Cost/benefit analysis 

In judging whether an ERI should be offered, governments should assess the potential costs and 
benefits of ERI proposals, and the cost/benefit analysis should be linked to the goals of the ERI.  For 
example, if a government sets a financial goal of obtaining long-term staffing efficiencies, then an 

1 The scope of this recommended practice does not cover deferred retirement option plans (DROP) or partial lump-sum 
option plans (PLOP), which often promote employee retention.  The CORBA Committee may address this issue separately. 



independent cost/benefit analysis should determine whether the ERI will actually bring about such  

staffing efficiencies.  A cost/benefit analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account 
direct and indirect impacts, such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and 
additional contractor costs.  In addition, it should take into account the effect upon both the plan 
sponsor and the pension fund (if the pension fund is a separate organization).  Governments should 
retain an actuary to assist in conducting a cost/benefit analysis. 

Material changes to the ERI proposal during the legislative process should trigger adjustments to the 
cost/benefit and budgetary analyses. 

Regarding financially-driven ERIs, a cost/benefit analysis should compare long-term benefits and costs 
against the “default” scenario of a hiring freeze.  Most financially-driven ERIs project financial 
benefits based on payroll savings related to staff departures. However, any such savings should be 
discounted, because a hiring freeze also creates payroll savings (owing to the normal rate of staff 
departures).  Thus, the ERI benefit is limited to the marginal increase in staff departures attributable to 
the ERI.  Governments that attribute all staff departures to an ERI would over-state the ERI benefit, 
thus distorting the cost/benefit analysis. 

Financially-driven ERIs may also obtain savings by replacing highly compensated staff with lower-
paid staff.  Analysis of such ERIs must take into account the fact that newly hired staff tend to 
experience faster salary increases than other employees. 

If early retirement incentives are offered, they should be offered very infrequently and without a 
predictable schedule to avoid the expectation that another ERI will be offered.  Such an expectation 
would distort normal employee retirement patterns.   

The incremental costs of an ERI should be amortized over a short-term payback period, such as three 
to five years.  This payback period should match the period in which the savings are realized.  To 
calculate the incremental costs of an ERI, governments should conduct an actuarial analysis that 
discloses the present value of the liabilities associated with an ERI.  Governments that have over-
funded pension plans should avoid allocating any actuarial surplus to finance the incremental costs of 
the ERI.

3. Budgetary considerations 

In order to develop accurate budgetary estimates for the ERI, it is necessary to estimate the incremental 
cost of the ERI, which will vary according to the level of employee participation.  Any budgetary 
analysis should project multiple scenarios for employee participation levels. 

A budgetary analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account direct and indirect impacts, 
such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and additional contractor costs.

Because a collective bargaining agreement may affect potential ERI costs and benefits, it should be 
reviewed prior to developing budgetary estimates.   

May 26, 2011 -9-



May 26, 2011 -10-

4. Implementation considerations 

If implementing an ERI, at a minimum, governments should take into account the following points: 

� A communication plan is desirable to help employees understand the ERI in the context 
of overall retirement planning; 

� It may be necessary to gain input from collective bargaining units; 

� Governments should consider the impact upon service delivery after employees retire, 
with identification of critical personnel whose services must be maintained; 

� The duration of the window should take into account the ability of retirement staff to 
manage retirement application workloads, among other factors; and 

� Performance measures should be used to ensure ERI goals are met.  For financially-
driven ERIs, governments should track and report direct and indirect costs and benefits to 
determine if goals are met, such as for vacancies and contract costs. 

References:

A Primer on Early Retirement Incentives, GFOA, 2004. 

Approved by the GFOA Executive Board, October 15, 2004. 



bittnera
Text Box
I-06





















 

 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

    
Date:   April 27, 2011    
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 Mitchell Grusnick, Building Official 
 Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
  
 
Subject: 2651 Parasol, Demolition of Dangerous Building  
 
 
Background 
 
City Code Chapter 82, Section 108 Property Maintenance regulates the condition of existing buildings.  The 
Code contains criteria classifying buildings as dangerous or unsafe.  In the instance a building is identified as 
dangerous or unsafe, the Code provides for various legal remedies, including allowing the City to demolish it 
and charge the property owner costs.   
 
On January 30, 2010, the house at 2651 Parasol suffered significant external fire damage.  On February 1 
2010, the City began enforcement against the property owner to repair the damage.  On June 2, 2010 the City 
issued a Notice of Dangerous Building upon the property owner.  Due to property owner noncompliance, the 
City initiated the Municipal Civil Infraction process.  The owner failed to appear at any of the District Court 
Hearings.  Ultimately, the Court ordered the owner to repair or remove the dangerous building.  Because the 
owner failed to comply with the Court’s order, the Court held additional hearings and issued an Arrest Order for 
Contempt.  The owner remains at large. 
 
On March 7, 14, & 21, 2011, the Somerset Gazette published the Building Official’s notice that the building is 
dangerous.  The City has not received an appeal.   The Property Maintenance Code allows City Council to find 
that the building is dangerous or unsafe, and that it should be demolished or made habitable.  Council can 
order either demolition within 21 days or require that all necessary repairs be completed within 60 days after 
the determination, unless the City Council determines that the conditions justify a longer time period to 
complete necessary repairs. 
 
If the ordered demolition or repairs are not completed within the allocated time period, as set forth in the 
resolution, City Council can then authorize any and all necessary action to enforce their order. This includes, 
but is not limited to, causing the building or structure or any part of the building or structure to be razed and 
removed either through an available public agency or by contract or arrangement with private persons, and the 
cost of such razing and removal shall be charged against the real property upon which the building or structure 
is located and shall be a lien upon such real property. Such lien shall be enforced against the real property as 
a special assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-07



 

 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends Council find the building dangerous and unsafe, and order the property owner 
to demolish the building within 21 days.   Council should also authorize staff to take necessary action to 
remove the building and charge the property owner all costs, in the event the property owner fails to demolish 
the building.  
 
 
 
_____________________________________    _____________ 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality    Date 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
City Code Chapter 82 Property Maintenance Section 108  
Notice of Dangerous and Unsafe building 6-2-2010 
District Court Order 7-8-2010 
District Court Arrest Order 2-24-11 
Copy of newspaper publication 
Photos taken 4-20-2011 
 



Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
 

 82-5 

provided in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 
 
106.3 Abatement of violation. The issuance of a Municipal Ordinance Violation Notice or a 
Municipal Ordinance citation or the imposition of penalties pursuant to Chapter 100, Municipal 
Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances shall not preclude the Troy City 
Attorney or his/her designee from instituting appropriate action to restrain, correct or abate a 
violation or to prevent illegal occupancy of a building, structure or premises or to stop an illegal 
act, conduct, business or utilization of the building, structure or premises; or to take any other 
legal action or remedy as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 107 NOTICES AND CITATIONS 
 
107.1 Notice or Citation to person responsible. Whenever the code official determines that 
there has been a violation of this code or has grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, 
a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or a Municipal Civil Infraction Citation may be given to the 
person responsible for the violation in the manner prescribed in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil 
Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 
 
107.2 Form and Method of Service. A Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or Municipal Civil 
Infraction Citation shall be in a form as prescribed in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, 
of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances and shall be served in a method prescribed in Chapter 
100. 
 
107.3 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling unit or 
structure who has received a notice of violation or an order from the court requiring 
compliance, to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of such dwelling unit or 
structure to another person until the code violations have been corrected or there is 
compliance with an applicable court order. In the alternative, an owner can furnish the grantee, 
transferee, mortgagee or lessee with a true copy of any notice of violation issued by the code 
official or his/ her designee or a copy of any order of the court requiring compliance. The 
owner shall then furnish to the code official a signed and notarized statement from the 
grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of such notice of violation 
or order requiring compliance where such grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee fully 
accepts the responsibility, without condition, for making the corrections or repairs required by 
such notice of violation, or court order requiring compliance. 
 
SECTION 108 DANGEROUS BUILDINGS, UNSAFE STRUCTURES, UNSAFE EQUIPMENT 
AND DEMOLITION 
 
108.1 General. The procedures set forth in this Section are established to secure the health 
and safety of the occupants of dwellings and structures and the general public. The code 
official shall enforce the provisions of this Section, and shall have jurisdiction to establish the 
inspection and violation procedures to implement enforcement. This Section does not 
preclude enforcement by any other governmental agency with jurisdiction over dangerous 
buildings, unsafe structures or unsafe equipment. This Section may be enforced by joint 
agreement between the City of Troy and any other governmental agency, if practical.  
 

evanspm
Highlight



Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
 

 82-6 

108.1a Unlawful to maintain dangerous building, unsafe structure or unsafe equipment. 
It is unlawful for any owner to keep or maintain any building, structure or equipment or part 
thereof in a dangerous or unsafe manner, as set forth in Section 108.1.1 or 108.1.2. 
 
108.1b Owners subject to ordinance. All owners shall be subject to the provisions of this 
ordinance and shall be parties to all proceedings, actions, or prosecutions for dangerous 
buildings, unsafe structures and/or unsafe equipment. 
 
108.1.1 Dangerous or Unsafe Building or structure. A dangerous or unsafe building or 
structure is one that is found to be dangerous to the life, health, property or safety of the public 
or the occupants of the structure. It does not provide minimum safeguards to protect or warn 
occupants in the event of fire, or because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so 
damaged, decayed, dilapidated, structurally unsafe or of such faulty construction or unstable 
foundation that partial or complete collapse is possible. A dangerous building or unsafe 
structure is a building or structure which has one or more of the following defects or satisfies 
one or more of the following conditions: 
 

a. A door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit is not in compliance with 
the approved Troy Fire Code. 
 
b. A portion of the building or structure is damaged by fire, wind, flood, or other cause in 
such a manner that the structural strength or stability of the building is appreciably less 
than it was before such catastrophe and does not meet the minimum requirements of 
the City of Troy Ordinances. 
 
c. A portion of the building or structure has settled to such an extent that walls or other 
structural portions have materially less resistance to winds than is required for new 
construction under the City of Troy Ordinances. 
 
d. The building or structure or part of the building or structure is likely to partially or 
completely collapse, or become detached, or some portion of the foundation or 
underpinning of the building or structure is likely to fall or give way because of 
dilapidation, deterioration, decay, faulty construction, or the removal or movement of 
some portion of the ground necessary for support or for other reason. 
 
e. The building, structure, or part of the building or structure is manifestly unsafe for the 
purpose for which it is intended to be used  
 
f. The building or structure is vacant, dilapidated and open at any door or window 
leaving the interior of the building exposed to the elements or accessible to entrance by 
trespassers; or otherwise becomes an attractive nuisance to children who might play in 
the building or structure to their danger; or becomes a harbor for vagrants, criminals or 
immoral persons or enables persons to use the building or structure in the commission 
of a nuisance or an unlawful or immoral act. 
 
g. A residence or the adjoining grounds of a building or structure which is used or 
intended to be used for dwelling purposes is unsanitary or unfit for human habitation, 
due to dilapidation, decay, damage, or faulty construction or arrangement or otherwise 

evanspm
Highlight

evanspm
Highlight

evanspm
Highlight

evanspm
Highlight



Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
 

 82-7 

is in a condition that the code official determines is likely to cause sickness or disease 
or is likely to injure the health, continued safety or general welfare of people living in or 
near the residence. 
 
h. An owner has been previously notified of existing code violation(s), according to the 
provisions of the Troy Code of Ordinances and after said notice has left the structure 
unattended or unoccupied, whether boarded up or in an open condition, for a period 
exceeding thirty (30) days. 
 
i. A building or structure is unfit for human occupancy such that the building or structure 
is unsafe, unlawful or because of the degree to which the structure is in disrepair or 
lacks maintenance, it is unsanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and 
contamination, or lacks ventilation, illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other 
essential equipment required by this code, or because the location of the structure 
constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public. 
 
j. A building or structure found in whole or in part to be occupied by more persons than 
permitted under this code, or a building or structure that was erected, altered or 
occupied contrary to law. 
 

108.1.1.1 Notice of dangerous and unsafe building, structure or condition. When the 
whole or part of any building or structure is found to be a dangerous or unsafe building or 
structure, the code official shall issue a notice declaring that the building or structure is a 
dangerous or unsafe building or structure. The notice shall itemize the current code violation(s) 
and dangerous condition(s) and specify a time to complete all necessary repairs or demolish 
of the building or structure. 
 
108.1.1.2 Service of Notice. The notice shall be served on the owner of record or the 
registered agent in the following manner: 
 

1. Delivered personally; and 

2. Sent by certified or first-class mail addressed to the owner’s or resident agent’s last 
known address. 

If the owner cannot be found, the notice may alternatively be served by posting it 
prominently and securely on the property and publishing it once a week for three (3) 
consecutive weeks in a newspaper authorized to provide service by publication. Service 
of notice under this provision shall supersede Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, 
of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 
 

108.1.1.3 Contents of Notice. The notice shall state that the owner or his/her authorized 
representative has the right to appeal the determination of the code official that the building or 
structure is dangerous or unsafe to the Troy City Council. The notice shall further state that 
any appeal under this Section shall be filed in writing to the code official within ten (10) days of 
service of the notice.  
 
108.1.1.4 Waiver of Hearing. If a written appeal of the dangerous or unsafe building or 
structure determination is not received by the code official within ten (10) days of the date of 

evanspm
Highlight

evanspm
Highlight



Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
 

 82-8 

service of the notice, then a hearing will not be necessary. The matter shall be referred to the 
City Council for resolution. 
 
108.1.1.5 Hearing. If the code official receives a written appeal of the dangerous or unsafe 
building or structure determination within the allocated ten (10) day period, then a hearing will 
be scheduled before the City Council as soon as administratively possible. At the hearing, the 
City Council shall take the testimony from the code official and/or his/her authorized 
representatives and employees; testimony from the owner of the property and any other 
interested party to determine whether the building or structure constitutes a dangerous or 
unsafe building or structure, as defined by this section.  
 
108.1.1.6 City Council action. If the City Council determines that the building or structure is a 
dangerous or unsafe building or structure, and that the building or structure should be 
demolished or made habitable, Council shall order either demolition within twenty-one (21) 
days or require that all necessary repairs be completed within sixty (60) days after the hearing 
and/or resolution, unless the City Council determines that the conditions justify a longer time 
period to complete the necessary repairs. 
 
108.1.1.7 Failure to demolish or repair. If the ordered demolition or repairs are not 
completed within the allocated time period, as set forth in the resolution, City Council can then 
authorize any and all necessary action to enforce their order. This includes, but is not limited 
to, causing the building or structure or any part of the building or structure to be razed and 
removed either through an available public agency or by contract or arrangement with private 
persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be charged against the real property 
upon which the building or structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real property. 
Such lien shall be enforced against the real property as a special assessment. 
 
108.1.1.8 Recovery of City’s cost. The owner or party in interest according to the last local 
tax assessment records, shall be notified of the cost of the necessary repairs or demolition by 
first class mail at the address shown on the local tax assessment records. If the owner or party 
in interest fails to pay the same within thirty (30) days after mailing by the Assessor of the 
notice of the amount due, the Assessor shall add the same to the next tax roll of the City of 
Troy, and the same shall be collected in the same manner and in all respects as provided by 
law for the collection of taxes by the City of Troy. The City Council shall also have the option of 
initiating a lawsuit to recover the City’s full cost of necessary repairs or demolition. If the City 
receives a favorable judgment, then the City shall have all rights and remedies under law to 
collect the amount of the judgment from the property owner(s) and/or parties in interest. 
 
108.1.1.9 Salvage materials. When any building or structure has been ordered demolished 
and removed, the City of Troy shall have the right, but not the obligation, to sell the salvage 
and valuable materials at the highest price obtainable either through the City or through a 
contractor hired by the City. The net proceeds of such sale, after deducting the expenses of 
such demolition and removal, shall be promptly remitted to the property owner with a report of 
such sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the amounts deducted. If there is 
no surplus, the report shall so state. 
 
108.1.1.10 Appeal to Circuit Court. An owner aggrieved by any dangerous building final 
decision or order of the City Council may appeal the decision or order to the Circuit Court 

evanspm
Highlight

evanspm
Highlight



Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
 

 82-9 

within twenty (20) days from the date of the decision. 
 
108.1.2 Unsafe equipment. Unsafe equipment includes any boiler, heating equipment, 
elevator, moving stairway, electrical wiring or device, flammable liquid containers or other 
equipment on the premises or within the structure which is in such disrepair or condition that 
such equipment is a hazard to life, health, property or safety of the public or occupants of the 
premises or structure. 
 
108.2 Closing of vacant buildings and structures. If a building or structure is vacant and 
unfit for human habitation and occupancy, and is not in danger of structural collapse, the code 
official is authorized to post a placard of condemnation on the premises and order the 
structure closed up so as not to be an attractive nuisance. Upon failure of the owner to close 
up the premises within the time specified in the order, the code official shall cause the 
premises to be closed and secured through any available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement by private persons and the cost thereof shall be charged against the real 
property upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real property and 
may be collected by any other legal resource. 
 
108.3 Posting Notice. Whenever the code official has declared a building, structure or 
equipment dangerous or unsafe under the provisions of this section, notice shall be posted in 
a conspicuous place in or about the building or structure affected by such notice or placed on 
the unsafe equipment. 
 
108.4 Placarding. The code official shall post on the premises or on defective equipment a 
placard bearing the words “Dangerous Building” or “Unsafe Building” or “Dangerous Structure” 
or “Unsafe Structure” or “Dangerous Equipment” or “Unsafe Equipment” and a statement of 
the penalties provided for occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing the 
placard. 
 
108.4.1 Placard removal. The code official shall remove the placard whenever the defect or 
defects upon which the determination of dangerous or unsafe building, structure or equipment 
and placarding action were based have been eliminated. Any person who defaces or removes 
a placard without the approval of the code official shall be subject to the penalties provided by 
this code. 
 
108.5 Prohibited occupancy. Any occupied building or structure determined to be dangerous 
or unsafe and placarded by the code official shall be vacated as ordered by the code official. 
Any person who shall occupy a placarded premise or shall operate placarded equipment, and 
any owner or any person responsible for the premises who shall let anyone occupy a 
placarded premise or operate placarded equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided 
by this code. 
 
SECTION 109 EMERGENCY MEASURES  
 
109.1 Imminent danger. When, in the opinion of the code official or fire official, there is 
imminent danger of failure or collapse of a building or structure which endangers life, or when 
any structure or part of a structure has fallen and life is endangered by the occupation of the 
structure, or when there is actual or potential danger to the building occupants or those in the 



 

 

City of Troy 
Building Department 

500 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
 
June 2, 2010 
 
 
Magjit & Manpreet Sandhu 
3845 Overlake Drive 
Cumming, GA  30028 
 
Subject:  NOTICE OF DANGEROUS BUILDING 
   2651 PARASOL, TROY MICHIGAN 
 
Dear Sandhu:   
 
This letter is to inform you of the dangerous condition of the building at the above location in accordance 
with Chapter 82 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances.  The City of Troy conducted an inspection of the 
site on May 28, 2010.  The inspection indicated substantial portions of the structure are severely fire-
damaged.  Portions of the structure, are missing and there are substantial holes and breaks throughout 
the exterior structure.  The number and/or nature of those code violations constitute an unsafe condition.  
As a result of those code violations, the building is considered dangerous as defined in Chapter 82 – 
Property Maintenance Code Section 108.1.1 (b) (c) (d) (e) & (i).  A copy of the Code is enclosed. 
 
As the owner and/or holder of interest in the property, you are required to correct the code violations and 
make all necessary repairs to bring the building into compliance and make it a safe and sanitary building.   
 
You have until June 12, 2010 to correct the violations or demolish the building.   
 
You must obtain the required permits from the City of Troy Building Department prior to any work being 
performed for some or all the repairs.  Further, a demolition permit is required if you decide to demolish 
the building and must be obtained from the Building Department prior to taking any steps toward 
demolition.  You must also contact all utility companies to arrange for the disconnection for all utilities.  
Failure to comply will result in legal action.  This may include the City obtaining an order from Oakland 
County Circuit Court for demolition. 
 
You have the right to appeal this designation of the building as a dangerous building to the Troy City 
Council.  Your appeal must be filed in writing with the Code Official within 10 days of receipt of this notice. 
 
If you have any questions concerning this letter or procedures, you may call me at 248-524-3359. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Paul Evans  
Inspector Supervisor 
evanspm@troymi.gov 













 
 

NOTICE OF HEARING 
REGARDING THE DEMOLITION OF BUILDING 

KNOWN AS 
2651 PARASOL, TROY, MICHIGAN 

 
 
The Troy Director of Building and Zoning has determined that the building know 
as 2651 Parasol, Troy, Michigan is a dangerous building under Chapter 82 of the 
Troy Code of Ordinances for the reason that numerous building code violations 
exists and the structure constitutes a health, safety and welfare threat to the 
citizens of the City of Troy. 
 
The owner of or any party holding an interest in the building known as 2651 
Parasol, Troy, Michigan has the right to appeal the dangerous building 
determination of the Director of Building and Zoning to City Council. To appeal, 
the property owner or party in interest shall file a written request for an appeal 
with the Director of Building and Zoning, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan 48084. That written request for appeal must be filed within ten 
(10) days of the last date of publication of this notice or no later than March 31, 
2011. If an appeal is timely filed, a public hearing before the Troy City Council will 
be set to take testimony from the Troy Building and Zoning Director, the property 
owner(s) and any parties in interest as to whether the building known as 2651 
Parasol, Troy, Michigan is a dangerous building. Failure to appeal by March 31, 
2011, may result in the dwelling and all accessory structures to be demolished 
and the cost of which will be billed to you. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
        
PUBLISHED: March 7, 2011 

 March 14, 2011 
 March 21, 2011 













 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
May 25, 2011 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
 Stuart J. Alderman, Recreation Director  
 
Subject: Lease Agreement– Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga Restaurant  
 at Sylvan Glen Golf Course) 
 
 
Background  
Since December 1995, restaurant operations at 5725 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan; adjacent to 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course, has been managed by Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga) of Metamora, 
Michigan with a class C liquor license.  The current lease agreement expired April 15, 2011.  The 
most recent five year lease included two five-year options to renew, which were executed by the City 
of Troy.  On April 4, 2011, city council approved a 120-day extension to negotiate new terms with 
Gallatin for operation of Camp Ticonderoga restaurant. 
 
Recommendation 
City Management recommends approval of a Lease agreement with Gallatin, Inc (aka Camp 
Ticonderoga) of Metamora, Michigan for a five year period, with expiration date of May 1, 2016, 
unless otherwise terminated, as provided in this Lease Agreement.  The City may, at its option, renew 
this Lease Agreement for a one additional five (5) year period under the terms and conditions as set 
out in this Lease Agreement.   
  
Financial Considerations 
Lessee agrees to pay City rent in the sum of sixty seven thousand two hundred ($67,200.00) dollars 
per year for the first through the fifth (5th) year of the Lease Agreement.  Payments shall be made in 
equal monthly payments of five thousand six hundred ($5,600.00) dollars per month.   
 
Lessee shall complete at least $180,000.00 in capital improvements no later than October 1, 2014.  
Lessee shall provide adequate receipts and/or documentation to City of the actual costs of the capital 
improvements.  If Lessee fails to make at least $180,000.00 in capital improvements as listed in the 
Agreement by the May 1, 2014 deadline date, then the monthly rent for the remaining two (2) years of 
this Lease Agreement shall be increased to $7,310.00 per month or $87,720.00 dollars for each 
remaining year.  
 
 
 

 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-08



 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
If Agreement is extended for an additional five (5) year period, the monthly rent of $5,600.00 for the first 
five (5) year period shall be upwardly adjusted by a percentage equal to the increase in the Consumer 
Price Index (C.P.I.) for Detroit/Ann Arbor metropolitan area for the preceding sixty (60) months, for 
each year in the extended five (5) year period; unless the capital improvements were not completed 
(see above for adjusted payment).   
 
 
 
Approved As To Form and Legality: 
 
_____________________________           ___________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             May 25, 2011              
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Stuart J. Alderman, Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Medi-Go Service Agreement  
 
 
Background 
 
Attached is the annual agreement with Troy Medi-Go for 2011-12.   We have had this agreement with 
Medi-Go since 1998 which states that the City will fund Medi-Go with entire municipal and community 
credits received from the Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART). 
 
Municipal credits are state authorized funds that are given directly to SMART to be divided among 
every city, township and village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita basis.  
Community credits are a direct result of the SMART millage that provides opt-in communities with 
additional funds.   Troy’s municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the 
community based Troy Medi-Go Plus service.  Medi-Go Plus provided almost 14,000 rides to senior 
and disabled residents in 2010. 
 
The 2011-12 budget includes estimated Troy Medi-Go funding.  The entire amount of municipal and 
community credits received from SMART are allocated for Medi-Go.  In 2010-11, the amount was 
$186,816.   
 
Funds are available in the senior account.  This money will be forwarded in its entirety to Medi-Go in 
July.  The City is then reimbursed on a quarterly basis.  
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the agreement with Troy Medi-Go Plus authorizing 
funding, which will be reimbursed with municipal and community credits from SMART. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:          
          Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Prepared by Carla Vaughan, Recreation Supervisor 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-09



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN AND TROY MEDI-GO PLUS 

This agreement is made by and between the City of Troy, Michigan, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, whose address is 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan  
48084, hereinafter called "Troy", and Troy Medi-Go Plus, a Michigan non-profit 
corporation whose address is 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48083, hereinafter called 
"Medi-Go".  

A.  PURPOSE  

To provide financial support from Troy to Medi-Go for the purpose of maintaining a 
program to provide transportation service for senior citizens and physically handicapped 
residents of Troy, Michigan.  

 
B.  MEDI-GO RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Medi-Go shall provide the following services for senior citizens and physically 
handicapped individuals who are residents of Troy through the fiscal year, July 1, 2011, 
through June 30, 2012.  

1. Provide passenger vans with handicapped lifts operating the maximum number 
of hours that funding allows.   

2. Provide experienced and properly licensed drivers to operate the passenger 
vans.  Those drivers’ traffic records shall be screened by Medi-Go to insure that 
those drivers have good driving records and will not be a threat to the users 
health, safety or welfare.  

3. Arrange for storing the passenger vans.  

4. Provide a central scheduling person to implement the transportation services.  

C.  MEDI-GO FURTHER AGREES:  
 

1. To maintain fiscal records and files, including appropriate income and expense 
ledgers.  

 
2. To permit an independent auditor representing Troy to audit accounts of income 

and expenses relating to Troy's contribution with findings to be submitted to Troy.  
 

3. To comply with all state and local regulations covering the use of passenger 
vans.  

 



 2 

4. To indemnify, save and hold harmless Troy, its employees, officers, and agents, 
and affiliated entities from any losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, 
costs, and liabilities, including attorney fees and legal expenses, which may arise 
from, be caused directly by or in any way relate to the service provided by, or any 
act or omission of Medi-Go or its officers, directors, employees, agents or 
volunteers. 

 
5. To furnish information requested by Troy indicating the use of the service by the 

senior citizens and handicapped residents of Troy.  This information will include, 
but is not limited to, number of rides given, number of unique riders, breakdown 
by destination, and number of riders denied service.    

 
     6.  Prior to execution of this Agreement by Troy, Medi-Go shall furnish a copy of a  
          certificate of insurance indicating coverage for general liability, automobile liability  
          and workers’ compensation liability.  Medi-Go shall maintain insurance as set out 
          in this paragraph during the term of this Agreement. 
 
      7.  Medi-Go shall not assign this Agreement to any other individual or entity without 
          Troy’s prior approval. 
 
 
 
D.  TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES:  

1. Provide general fund payment of entire municipal and community credits 
transferred from SMART to be paid on or after July 1, 2011.   

2. Recognize Medi-Go's autonomy in determining its own personnel and operating  
     policies.  

3. Assist, if possible, in disseminating information about the service to senior citizens 
and handicapped residents of Troy.  

4. Make available at the Troy Community Center information regarding the Medi-Go 
service.  

E.  AGREEMENT PERIOD:  

This agreement is in full force and effect from July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.  

 

 



 3 

 

CONTRACT APPROVAL:  

CITY OF TROY 

By: ________________________________By: _______________________________ 
Louise Schilling, Mayor                 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  

Date:______________________________  Date:______________________________ 

 

TROY MEDI-GO 

By: ________________________________By:  ______________________________ 
Ron Ristau, President       Dan Mayville, Treasurer  

Date: ______________________________Date: ___________________________ 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 18, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administrative Services 
       
SUBJECT: Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 
 
 
Attached is an amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code reflecting the water and sewer rate 
adjustment discussed during the 2011/12 budget study sessions.  The rate adjustments are a result 
of the City of Detroit 15.7% increase and an overall sewerage rate increase of 10%.   
 
These adjustments will provide sufficient funds to operate, maintain and make improvements to our 
systems.  The water and sewer rates are reviewed and adjusted annually when required.  The last 
adjustment was on July 1, 2010.  
 
The following water and sewer rates are recommended for City of Troy water bills rendered after July 
1, 2011: 
 

2010/11 Rate       2011/12 Rate         Adjustment 
 
 Water      $25.08   $28.10            $3.02 
 Sewer        20.82                         22.90               2.08 
 
       $45.90   $51.00   $5.10 
 
The average bill for a family of four will increase approximately $19.89 per quarter. 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the rates outlined herein and reflected in the 
amendments to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\06.06.11 – Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy city Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-10



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 20 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the 50th amendment to Chapter 20 – 
Water and Sewer Rates of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 5.01, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
5.01 Water Rates. Charges for water service to each premises within the City 
 connected with the water supply system for each quarterly (3 month) period, shall 
 be $28.10 per 1,000 cubic feet. Minimum quarterly bills shall be $22.76. 
 
Section 3. Amendment 
 
Section 5.02, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
5.02 Sewer Rates. 
 

A. Charges for sewage disposal, operation and maintenance service shall be levied 
upon all premises having any sewer connection with the public sewers. 
 
Those premises using metered water shall pay $22.90 dollars per 1,000 cubic 
foot of water consumption for sewage disposal and maintenance charges. 
 
Where there is no water meter the sewage disposal and maintenance charges 
shall be $114.50. 
 
Water lines used solely for fire protection shall be exempt from sewage disposal 
and maintenance charges. 
 

B. 1. Rates and charges established are based upon methodology which 
 complies with applicable EPA regulations. 
 
2. Users of the system must be individually notified annually of costs for 
 operation, maintenance, replacement and debt service. 

 
C. A ready to serve charge shall be levied on each quarterly bill in the amount of 

$18.55 dollars less any amount for current consumption up to the maximum of 
the ready to serve charge. 

 
Section 4. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the 
extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 



 

  

Section 5. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 6. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 7. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective for the City of Troy water bills rendered after July 1, 
2011. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
6th day of June, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

  
 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-1 
 

1. Definitions. Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the following definitions shall apply 
in the interpretation of this Chapter. 

 
 1) "Premises" shall mean each lot, parcel of land, or building having a connection to the Water 

Supply System or the Sewer System of the City, or is eligible for such a connection. 
 
 2) "Department" shall mean the City Division of Water and Sewer. 
 
 3) "Director" shall mean the Director of Public Works. 
 
 (Rev. 02-26-1973) 
 
2. Water Benefit Fee. Whenever any person shall seek a connection to a water main, as defined in 

Chapter 18 of this Code, he shall pay a benefit fee representing the cost of constructing such water 
main, except in those cases where the cost of construction has been financed by special 
assessment assessed to said premises or where construction has been financed by agreement 
with the City and paid for by the owner of the subject property. The City Council shall from time to 
time by resolution determine the cost to be borne by any premises which will benefit by a 
connection thereto. 

 
 No permit for any connection to any water main shall be granted until the owner of the premises 

shall pay or agree to pay the benefit fee attributed to such property. 
 
 (Rev. 09-25-1978) 
 
3. Water Improvement Fund Fee. Anyone seeking to make a connection to any public water main 

within the City shall first obtain a permit to make such connection from the Department. Prior to 
issuance of said permit the applicant must pay a Water Improvement Fund Fee representing the 
cost of construction of that portion of the City-wide water system attributable to the proportionate 
benefit to be received by the applicant's property. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-1980) 
 
3.01 Computation of Water Improvement Fund Fee. The Water Improvement Fund Fee shall be based 

on a unit factor system wherein each single-family residence shall be classified as one unit. 
 
 Other occupational uses shall be charged on multiples of units as may be determined by resolution 

of the City Council from time to time. Said units and multiples thereof will be established and 
computed on the same basis as for the Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee contained 
further in this Chapter and the number of units charged to a premise shall be the same for both 
water and sanitary sewer. 

 
 The Water Improvement Fund Fee shall be in the amount of $700.00 per unit, less any credit 

determined under Section 3.02 hereof. 
 
 (Rev. 01-01-1982) 
 
3.02 Credit on Water Improvement Fund Fee. In the case of any premises which have been subject to 

special assessment for construction of a water main, a credit shall be allowed on the water 
improvement fund fee for the amount of such special assessment levied for indirect availability of 
water service. The amount of a special assessment for indirect availability of water service shall be 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-2 
 

that amount in excess of the amount of that assessment attributable to direct benefit received by 
the parcel originally assessed for immediate availability of water service. The assessor shall 
prepare and submit to the Council for approval, by resolution, a schedule showing the amount of all 
such assessments for indirect availability of water service presently existing and the parcels 
affected thereby. Each premise shall receive a credit for its pro-rata share of the assessment as 
shown by said schedule. No such credit shall exceed one hundred (100%) percent of the water 
improvement fund fee for any premises. No such credit shall be given for any premises connection 
to the water supply system after July 1, 1993. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-1978) 
 
4. Water Connection Fee. A Water Connection Fee will be charged to each premise where the City 

provides labor, equipment or materials to make a connection to the water main and/or to furnish or 
install a water meter. Such fees shall not be less than the cost of the materials, installation and 
overhead attributable to the particular service. 

 
 The City Council will establish, by resolution, such fees in accordance with the size of service 

and/or meter to be furnished. The Water Connection Fee shall be paid or the applicant shall make 
an agreement to pay the Fee prior to issuance of a connection permit by the City. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-1978) 
 
5. Basis of Charges. All water service shall be charged for on the basis of water consumed, as 

determined by the meter installed by the Department in the premises of water or sewage disposal 
service customers. No free water service or sewage disposal service shall be furnished to any 
person. 

 
 (Rev. 02-26-1973) 
 
5.01 Water Rates. Charges for water service to each premises within the City connected with the water 

supply system, for each quarterly (3 month) period, shall be $25.08 $22.76 per 1,000 cubic feet. 
Minimum quarterly bills shall be $20.31 $22.76. 

 
 (Rev. 06-07-2010; Eff. 07-01-2010) 
 

Private fire service lines shall be billed at a rate equal to four (4) times the minimum water bill. 
 
 Charges for water service to premises outside the City shall be 150% of those for water service 

within the City. 
 
 (Rev. 05-16-2005)  
 
 Private fire service lines shall be billed at a rate equal to four (4) times the minimum water bill. 
 
 Charges for water service to premises outside the City shall be 150% of those for water service 

within the City. 
 
 (Rev. 05-13-2002) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-3 
 

5.02 Sewer Rates 
 
 A. Charges for sewage disposal, operation and maintenance service shall be levied upon all 

premises having any sewer connection with the public sewers. 
 
  Those premises using metered water shall pay $20.82 $22.90 dollars per 1,000 cubic foot 

of water consumption for sewage disposal and maintenance charges. 
   
  (Rev. 06-07-2010; Eff. 07-01-2010) 
  
  Where there is no water meter the sewage disposal and maintenance charges shall be 

$104.10 $114.50. 
 
  (Rev. 06-07-2010; Eff. 07-01-2010) 
 
  Water lines used solely for fire protection shall be exempt from sewage disposal and 

maintenance charges. 
 
  (Rev. 05-13-2002) 
 
 B. 1. Rates and charges established are based upon methodology which complies with 

applicable EPA regulations. 
 
  2. Users of the system must be individually notified annually of costs for operation, 

maintenance, replacement and debt service. 
 
 C. A ready to serve charge shall be levied on each quarterly bill in the amount of $16.86 

$18.55 dollars less any amount for current consumption up to the maximum of the ready to 
serve charge. 

 
  (Rev. 06-07-2010; Eff. 07-01-2010) 
 
5.03 Billing. Charges for all water service and sewage disposal service shall be billed and collected 

quarterly by the City Treasurer. Water bills rendered shall be immediately due and payable and may 
be paid without penalty up to and including the fifteenth day of the month when rendered, and shall 
thereafter be subject to a ten (10%) per cent penalty. Bills shall be sent to "Occupant" at the 
metered address, unless other arrangements are made by the owner. 

 
 (Renumbered 05-19-2008) 
 
6. Collection. The Director is hereby authorized to enforce the payment of charges for water service 
 to any premises by discontinuing the water service to such premises and the payment of charges 
 for sewage disposal service to any premises may be enforced by discontinuing either the water 
 service or the sewage disposal service to such premises, or both, and an action of assumpsit may 
 be instituted by the City against the customer. The charges for water service and sewage disposal 
 service which, under the provisions of Act 94, Public Acts of 1933 of the State of Michigan, as 
 amended, are made a lien on the premises to which furnished, are hereby recognized to 
 constitute such lien; and the City Treasurer shall, annually, on April 1, certify all unpaid charges for 
 such services furnished to any premises which, on the 31st day of March preceding, have 
 remained unpaid for a period of six (6) months, to the City Assessor who shall place the same on 
 the next tax roll of the City. Such charges so assessed shall be collected in the same manner as 

Formatted: Justified



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-4 
 

 general City Taxes. In cases where the City is properly notified in accordance with said Act 94 of 
 1933, that a tenant is responsible for water or sewage disposal service charges, no such service 
 shall be commenced or continued to such premises until there has been deposited with the City 
 Treasurer, a sum sufficient to cover three (3) times the average quarterly bill for such premises as 
 estimated by the Director. Where the water service to any premises is turned off to enforce the 
 payment of water service charges or sewage disposal service charges, the water service shall not 
 be resumed until all delinquent charges have been paid and a deposit as in the case of tenants is 
 made, and there shall be a water turn-on charge of Twenty-Five ($25.00) Dollars. In any other 
 case where, in the discretion of the City Treasurer, the collection of charges for water or sewage 
 disposal service may be difficult or uncertain, he may require a similar deposit. Such deposits may 
 be applied against any delinquent water or sewage disposal service charges and the application 
 thereof shall not affect the right of the Treasurer or Director to turn off the water service and/or 
 sewer service, to any premises for any delinquency thereby satisfied. No such deposit shall bear 
 interest and such deposit, or any remaining balance thereof, shall be returned to the customer 
 making the same when he shall discontinue receiving water and sewage disposal service or, 
 except as to tenants at to whom notice of responsibility for such charges has been filed with the 
 City, when any eight (8) successive quarterly bills shall have been paid by said customer with no 
 delinquency. 
 
 (Rev. 02-04-1980) 
 
7. Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee. Anyone seeking to make a connection to any 

sanitary sewer system within the City of Troy shall first obtain a permit to make such connection 
from the Building Department. Prior to issuance of said permit the applicant must pay to the City a 
Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee representing the cost of construction of that portion 
of the City-wide sewer system attributable to the proportionate benefit to be received by the 
applicant's property. 

 
 (Rev. 02-26-1973) 
 
7.01 Computation. The Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee shall be based on a unit factor 

system of computation wherein each single-family residence shall be classified as one unit. Other 
occupational uses shall be charged on multiples of units as may be determined by resolution of the 
City Council from time to time. The Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee shall be in the 
amount of $200.00 per unit. 

 
 (Rev. 01-01-1982) 
 
8. Sewer Benefit Fee. Whenever any person shall seek a connection to a public sewer, as defined in 

Chapter 19 of this Code, he shall pay a sewer benefit fee in lieu of paying the cost of constructing 
such public sewer, except in those cases where the cost of construction has been financed by 
special assessments assessed to said premises, or by agreement and paid by the owner thereof. 
The City Engineer shall determine which properties shall be allowed or required to tap the public 
sewer based on sewer depth, distance from the public sewer, and other engineering and cost 
factors. The sewer benefit fee, representing the cost of construction of that portion of the City-wide 
sewer system attributable to the proportionate benefit to be received by the applicant's property, 
shall be determined by resolution of the City Council from time to time. No permit for any connection 
to any public sewer shall be granted until the owner of the premises shall pay or agree to pay the 
sewer benefit fee attributable to such property. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-1978) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-5 
 

9. Inspection Fee. An inspection charge shall be included in the cost of a water connection permit for 
all single family residences: Other inspection fees shall be based on estimates of actual cost to the 
City for labor, materials and contingencies and shall be computed by the Chief Building Inspector 
for Sewer and the Superintendent of Public Services for Water. 

 
 (Rev. 05-19-2008) 
 
10. Payment of Fees. The Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee, the Sewer Benefit Fee and 

Sewer Permit Fee (collectively in this Section called "Sewer Fees") and/or the Water Improvement 
Fund Fee, Water Benefit Fee, and the Water Connection Fee (collectively in this Section called 
"Water Fees") shall be paid as follows: 

 
 (Rev. 02-26-1973)  
 
10.01 Cash payments shall be made for all Sewer Fees payable for new buildings constructed in areas 

where public sewers, as defined in Chapter 19 of this Code, are available, or construction of same 
has been approved by the City Council. No building permit shall be issued for construction of a new 
building until all Sewer Fees have been paid and the sewer permit has been obtained. 

 
 The above regulation is also applicable to building permits for additions to existing structures other 

than single-family residences. Cash payment for Sewer Fees shall be made for that portion of the 
structure to be added, while extended payment arrangements as hereinafter provided may be made 
for that portion of the structure existing prior to the availability of sewer. Regardless of the method of 
payment chosen by the owner, sewer permits for the entire structure must be obtained prior to 
issuance of building permits for such additions. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-1978) 
 
10.02  Cash payments shall be made for all Water Fees payable for new buildings constructed in areas 

where public Water Mains, as defined in Chapter 18 of this Code, are available, or construction of 
same has been approved by the City Council, and where the Water Main is to be used for such new 
building. When the Water Main is to be used to serve such new building, no building permit shall be 
issued for construction until all Water Fees have been paid and a water permit has been issued. 

 
 The above regulation is also applicable to building permits for additions to existing structures other 

than single family residences and where the Water Main is in use or shown to be used by the 
addition. Cash payment for Water Fees shall be made for that portion of the structure to be added, 
while extended payment as hereinafter provided may be made for that portion of the structure 
existing prior to the availability of water. Regardless of the method of payment chosen by the owner, 
when the Water Main is to be used, water permits for the entire structure must be obtained prior to 
issuance of building permits for such additions. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-1978) 
 
10.03  Sewer fees and/or water fees for existing buildings may be paid for at the time of permit issuance, 

or, at the option of the owner, may be paid in equal installments, including interest at 6% per annum 
on the unpaid balance for a period not to exceed 40 years; one installment shall be billed with each 
bill for water or sewer service. For purposes of this section, an “existing building” also includes a 
single family home that replaces a previous single family home provided the owner demonstrates 
that he/she had an ownership interest in the subject property as of August 15, 2005, and 
construction on the new home is commenced within six months of the demolition of the old home. 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-6 
 

 
 Additional principal payments may be made with any installment. 
 
 (Rev. 07-21-2008) 
 
11. Service Leads. When a sewer lead has not been provided to make an authorized connection to an 

available sewer, it shall be the responsibility of the benefiting property to provide same. 
 
 (Rev. 06-09-1986) 
 
12. Unauthorized Connections. In the event any connection is made to the City Sewer system without a 

permit having been obtained from the City Building Department for such connection, a charge of 
double the current Interceptor Connection Fee will be charged to the owners of the property so 
connected and will be collected in the same manner prescribed by the Charter for the collection of 
unpaid City taxes. 

 
 (Rev. 12-03-1979) 
 
13. Additional Charges. Those premises assigned sewage disposal charges for industrial cost recovery 

and/or high strength surcharges as required by Federal Law, shall make payment for said charges 
as herein provided for water and sewage disposal services. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-1980) 
 
14. Definitions: 
 
 a) Industrial User: shall mean a source of discharge under regulations issued pursuant to the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 1342, which source originates from, but is 
not limited to, facilities engaged in industry, manufacturing, business, trade or research, 
including the development, recovery or processing of natural resources. 

 
 b) Commercial User: shall mean all non-domestic sources of indirect discharge, other than 

industrial users, as defined herein including but not limited to the following: A publicly or 
privately owned facility where persons are engaged in the exchange or sale of goods or 
services, hospitals, retail establishments and facilities operated by state governments. 

 
 c) Residential User: shall include schools, churches, municipal buildings and structures 

designed for habitation. Structures designed for habitation shall include but not be limited to 
single-family homes, apartment buildings, condominiums, town houses and mobile homes. 

 
 d) Non-residential User: shall mean any user other than an industrial user, a commercial user 

or a residential user. 
 
15. High Strength Surcharge: A high strength surcharge shall be levied against all industrial and 

commercial users, with the exception of restaurants, which users contribute sewage to the system 
with pollutant concentration levels exceeding the following: 

 
 A) 275 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) 
 B) 350 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 
 
 C) 12 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of Phosphorus (P)  



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-7 
 

 
 D) 100 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) 
 
 (Rev. 05-11-2009) 
 
16. Non-residential Flow Surcharge: The City of Troy shall pay a quarterly non-residential surcharge as 

established from time to time by the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, or its authorized 
representative, the Detroit Water and Sewer Department, and adopted by Resolution of the Troy 
City Council. The non-residential surcharge shall be based on the total number and size of water 
meters used by non-residential users of the system. Where metered water is not available, the 
Assigned Water Meter size shall be reported by the City in accordance with the following schedule: 

 

Units Assigned in Accordance With the Current 
Oakland County Department of Public Works 
Schedule of Unit Assignment Factors

 Assigned Water 
Meter Size 

1 - 4  5/8" and 3/4" 
 5 - 10  1" 
11 - 20  1-1/2" 
21 - 32  2" 
33 - 64  3" 
 65 - 100  4" 
101 - 200  6" 

 
 The City shall report quarterly the total number and size of water meters used by non-residential 

users or alternatively, the Assigned Water Meter size pursuant to the above schedule. 
 
17. Sanitary Wastewater Disposal Charge: The City of Troy shall pay a sanitary wastewater disposal 

charge. This charge shall be based on readings of the master water meters serving the 
Southeastern Oakland County Communities. 

 
 From these meter readings the water consumption of each municipality shall be determined. Water 

consumption shall be the basis for sanitary wastewater disposal charges using the formula of rate 
per 1,000 cubic feet, said rate as established from time to time by the Oakland County Drain 
Commissioner, and adopted by Resolution of the Troy City Council. If the City has individual sewer 
customers with metered sewage, the City shall report within 15 days following the end of each 
calendar quarter the total metered sewage in the City, in lieu of water consumption. Based on the 
quarterly report, each community shall pay a charge per 1,000 cubic feet of metered sewage, as 
established from time to time by Oakland County or the Detroit Water and Sewer Department, and 
adopted by Resolution of the Troy City Council. The rate for sewage disposal based on the metered 
sewage method shall be 110% of the rate established for the master meter water method.  

 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

20-8 
 

18. Storm Water Disposal Charge: 
 
 1) Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System: The City shall pay a charge for disposal 

of storm water in proportion to the area in the City served by combined sewers in the 
Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System and by the recorded duration of the spill at 
the Acacia and Bloomfield Regulators. Said charge will be as established from time to time 
by Oakland County or the Detroit Water and Sewer Department, and acknowledged by 
Resolution of the Troy City Council. 

 
 2) Southeastern Oakland County Sewage Disposal System S.O.C.S.D.S.): The entire flow 

from the S.O.C.S.D.S. enters the Detroit treatment plant through the Dequindre Interceptor, 
which contains a master meter. The metered flow is reduced by the amount of water 
consumption for the system. This reduced flow shall be multiplied by a land use factor to 
determine the City's share of the flow. Storm water disposal charges shall be determined by 
using a formula of rate per 1,000 cubic feet, as established from time to time by the Oakland 
County Drain Commissioner, and acknowledged by Resolution of the Troy City Council. 

   
  (Rev. 04-22-1985) 



 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
June 1, 2011 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
 Stuart J. Alderman, Recreation Director  
 
Subject: Community Center Catering – Liquor License Update 
 
 
Background  
On January 24, 2011, City Council passed a resolution #2011-01-012a to approve a Class C quota 
liquor license at the Troy Community Center.  At that time, no contractor had been selected for the 
catering service.   
 
City Council then approved resolution #2011-05-093 on May 9, 2011 to award a contract to provide 
catering services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an option to renew for three 
additional years to Alpha-Doni, Inc. d/b/a Encore Catering. 
 
Since the resolution to proceed with a Class C quota license, city staff has been in contact with the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission to determine the options for the city to attain a liquor license 
approved by the State of Michigan.  If the City of Troy gets the Class C license, we must wait three 
(3) years to transfer that license to Alpha-Doni, Inc. d/b/a Encore Catering.  Troy can hold the Class C 
license and have Encore get a Participation Permit under Troy’s license.  However, the City still is 
responsible for all liquor violations and the City would have to appear before the MLCC.  The City 
would also have to make sure we have liquor liability insurance. 
 
Recommendation 
Under the factors as stated above, it is recommended that the City withdraw our application for a 
Class C quota license; but recommend approving a Class C quota liquor license for Alpha-Doni, Inc., 
d/b/a Encore Catering.  The contractor will have to apply for the Class C quota license with any other 
permits they need, i.e. a catering permit, dance permit, entertainment permit.  The current draft of our 
agreement with Alpha-Doni requires that they pay for the liquor license and that they transfer the 
license to the City at termination of the Agreement. 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form and Legality: 
 
_____________________________           ___________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-11



 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
June 1, 2011 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
 Stuart J. Alderman, Recreation Director  
 
Subject: Community Center Catering – Liquor License Update 
 
 
Background  
On January 24, 2011, City Council passed a resolution #2011-01-012a to approve a Class C quota 
liquor license at the Troy Community Center.  At that time, no contractor had been selected for the 
catering service.   
 
City Council then approved resolution #2011-05-093 on May 9, 2011 to award a contract to provide 
catering services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an option to renew for three 
additional years to Alpha-Doni, Inc. d/b/a Encore Catering. 
 
Since the resolution to proceed with a Class C quota license, city staff has been in contact with the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission to determine the options for the city to attain a liquor license 
approved by the State of Michigan.  If the City of Troy gets the Class C license, we must wait three 
(3) years to transfer that license to Alpha-Doni, Inc. d/b/a Encore Catering.  Troy can hold the Class C 
license and have Encore get a Participation Permit under Troy’s license.  However, the City still is 
responsible for all liquor violations and the City would have to appear before the MLCC.  The City 
would also have to make sure we have liquor liability insurance. 
 
Recommendation 
Under the factors as stated above, it is recommended that the City withdraw our application for a 
Class C quota license; but recommend approving a Class C quota liquor license for Alpha-Doni, Inc., 
d/b/a Encore Catering.  The contractor will have to apply for the Class C quota license with any other 
permits they need, i.e. a catering permit, dance permit, entertainment permit.  The current draft of our 
agreement with Alpha-Doni requires that they pay for the liquor license and that they transfer the 
license to the City at termination of the Agreement. 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form and Legality: 
 
_____________________________           ___________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-12



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
May 26, 2011             
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 
Subject: Approval of a Communications Strategy  
 
 
Background 
 
City Council adopted their Vision Statement and Goals on February 7, 2011.  City Council then 
directed City Management to work on a process to achieve the approved goals. (Resolution #2011-
02-023) 
 
Phase I was a statistically significant citizen survey and scheduled community conversations.  The 
survey results and community conversations indicated that Troy residents feel a disconnect between 
themselves and elected officials.   Subsequently, Council recognized a need to develop a 
comprehensive strategy.  On May 16, 2011, City Council directed management and staff to look into 
an effective communication strategy for the City of Troy.  
 
According to the results of Phase I, the recommended approach for Phase II is a comprehensive 
communication strategy that will combine public communication, public relations and an economic 
development marketing strategy to assist in the implementation of Council’s Vision and Goals.  In 
order to accomplish this, management and Council recognize the need to enlist services of an outside 
professional due to the lack of in-house staff. 
 
The purpose of the proposed communication strategy is to provide all stakeholders – City Council, 
administration, employees, residents, business, educational and other interest groups – with a clear, 
consistent message emulating Council’s Vision.  Scope of work includes assistance in:  implementing 
the Vision and Goals; development and implementation of an overall media outreach; categorization 
and development of concise communication tools; website evaluation; ongoing research; 
implementation of social media strategy; collaboration and expansion of stakeholder coalition.  
 
City management asked three firms to submit proposals as a professional service.  The three 
proposals were submitted and reviewed.  
 
While all proposals cover the scope of work, one proposal was clearly superior. Target Insyght’s 
proposal contains a strategic element tying the communication strategy with economic development.   

stewartc
Text Box
I-13



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Background, continued… 
 
This integrated proposal will stimulate an environment of investment and create the foundation for 
action which includes short and long term goals. Target Insyght has already completed most of the 
research, resulting in a cost savings.   

 
Options 
 
City management presents three options: 
 

1) Approve the attached contract with Target Insyght for a month to month agreement, at $9,500 
a month plus additional out of pocket or production costs not to exceed 24 months. This 
contract provides a provision for termination at any time and is subject to a 6 month council 
review. 

2) Modify the scope of work and proceed with the RFP process 
3) Do nothing. 

 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the City Manager’s budget.  
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality 
 
 
 
 
_________________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 
 
 
G:\MY DOCUMENTS\Monica Irelan\Regular Business - CommunicationStrategy06.11.doc 
 
 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF COMMUNICATION STRATEGY  

AND RELATED SERVICES – TARGET INSYGHT 
 

CONSULTING SERVICES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver 

Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, "TROY”, and Target Insyght, P.O. Box 80505, Lansing, MI 

48908-0505, “CONSULTANT”.  

RECITALS 

          WHEREAS, TROY desires to utilize the services of CONSULTANT to assist 

TROY with the development and implementation of communications strategies, 

including, but not limited to: the dissemination of  the City Council’s Vision Statement 

and Goals and development of ideas regarding how to achieve those goals; the 

development and implementation of overall media outreach; ongoing research data; 

website evaluation for updates and possible redesign; the development and 

implementation of coalitions between TROY’s stakeholders  such as residents, City 

Council, administration, employees, businesses, schools and other interest groups; and 

the development and implementation of marketing strategies for the economic 

development of TROY; and to establish lines of communication between TROY and the 

public.    

Now, therefore, in consideration of the covenants and agreements contained 

herein, TROY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

1.  AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS.  During the term of the Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall provide services as set forth in the attached documents titled “City of Troy 

Communication Strategy & Economic-Stability Plan: An Integrated Proposal Maintaining 

an Environment of Investment – It’s Troy’s Future” dated May 18, 2011” and a 



2 
 

supplemental communication from Ed Sarpolus, Target Insyght dated May 26, 2011. 

These documents are incorporated into this Agreement and made a part of this 

Agreement to the extent that their terms do not conflict with the terms herein.  

 2. RESEARCH, LABOR, SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT. Unless otherwise set out 

herein, CONSULTANT shall identify whether or not additional research is required, and 

if so, CONSULTANT will furnish all research, labor, supplies, and equipment necessary 

to perform all of the work as set forth in the this Agreement in strict accordance with the 

scope of services (herein “projects”) set out in this Agreement and other documents 

which have been made a part of this Agreement in the manner, time, and place as 

therein set forth.  

3. SCOPE OF WORK. The required projects include, but are not limited to, the 

following:  

 A.  Execute a communication plan that supports the City Council’s Vision Statement 

and Goals. 

B.  Assist with key messages to tie in with Council vision and goals.  Use the key 

messages to craft responses in all communication over the next two years.  

C.  Engage with key print and electronic reporters to generate media coverage about 

initiative activities and research, which is intended to achieve goals and enhance 

TROY’S image. 

D.  Develop multiple channels and tools to disseminate TROY information to targeted 

audiences and stakeholders. 

E.  Work with all TROY department directors and staff to understand the key messages 

related to vision and goals and assist in the ability to communicate the vision and goals 

to citizens. 



3 
 

F.  Work with TROY spokespersons to organize and develop concise talking 

 point documents and tailored messaging documents as needed. 

G.  Assess current communication structure, process activities and efforts. 

H.  Assist TROY communication staff with communication and marketing methods and 

develop and implement overall media outreach strategies. 

I.  Provide research data to aid in message development (identification and testing of 

key words and phrases), identification of issues needing to be addressed, discovery of 

possible objections to overcome, composition of talking points and refining the definition 

of target audience(s). 

J.  Review TROY’S website to evaluate for content and determine need for updates or 

potential redesign of pages. 

K.  Assist City Management with an earned media campaign to sustain TROY’S 

information and communication efforts and increase its media presence. 

L.  Implement a social media strategy, utilizing technology such as YouTube videos, 

Facebook, Twitter and other appropriate social media tools. 

M.  Determine budget needs and constraints with the implementation of a successful 

communications plan. 

N.  Develop metrics to track ongoing communication plan effectiveness. 

O.  Develop methods to promote doing business in an open, professional and easy 

manner.  

P.  Assist with conducting citizen engagement, outreach and surveys. 

Q.  Collaborate with and expand the efforts of TROY’S City Manager to create a 

stakeholder coalition, possibly expanding it beyond business interest, and using it to 

assist TROY’s communication/marketing and economic development campaigns. 



4 
 

R.  Promote a broader stakeholder coalition to participate in TROY’S communication 

and marketing campaign. 

S.  Administer a communications plan to keep stakeholders informed, active and 

supportive. 

The scope of work and projects will be on an as-needed basis. TROY shall 

determine which projects are priorities. TROY may assign CITY personnel to assist 

the CONSULTANT.  TROY reserves the right to perform specific projects in-house. 

4. COMPLIANCE WITH MICHIGAN CAMPAIGN FINANCE ACT.  CONSULTANT 

shall not perform any actions and/or develop any project or documents which are in 

violation of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act.  

5. COMPENSATION.   CONSULTANT shall be compensated $9,500 per month. The 

first monthly payment shall be made to CONSULTANT within seven (7) days after the 

execution of this Agreement.  Thereafter, payments will be due on the date of the month 

that constitutes the date of execution of this Agreement as set out above the authorizing 

signatures.  

6. OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES, COSTS AND THIRD PARTY COSTS.  TROY shall 

be responsible for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, including, but not limited to, 

mileage outside of southeast Michigan (limited to $.50 per mile); courier service; 

express mail; and postage.  All other out-of-pocket expenses and costs shall be pre-

approved by TROY in writing. Out-of-pocket expenses and costs will be itemized and 

billed separately on a monthly basis by CONSULTANT.  TROY is not responsible for 

out-of-pocket expenses and costs which are billed six months after they have been 

incurred.   TROY shall have thirty (30) days to make payment for CONSULTANT’S out-

of-pocket expenses and costs. 



5 
 

 Any costs for third party personnel and/or resources shall be pre-approved by 

TROY, and if not pre-approved, then TROY shall not be responsible for any third party 

personnel and/or resources or costs.  At pre-approval of third party personnel and/or 

resource, TROY and CONSULTANT shall agree in writing upon whether TROY will pay 

the third party directly or CONSULTANT will pass through those cost, at no additional 

mark up, on CONSULTANT’S billing to TROY.  In any event, TROY shall receive an 

itemized written invoice for services performed by any pre-approved third party.   

7. PRODUCTION COSTS.  TROY shall be responsible for all production costs, 

including, but not limited to, media clip services, public relations and other newswire 

fees, graphic design and artwork, layouts, photography, printing, film and video 

production, reproduction and distribution of internal or external communications, 

purchasing and advertising time and space.  Production costs may not be incurred by 

CONSULTANT without written pre-approval by TROY.  

 TROY shall not be responsible for production costs without an itemized written 

invoice.  After pre-approval of production costs, TROY and CONSULTANT shall agree 

in writing upon whether TROY will pay the production costs directly or CONSULTANT 

will pass through those costs, at no additional mark up, on CONSULTANT’S billing to 

TROY.   

 TROY is not responsible for production costs which are billed six months after they 

have been incurred.   TROY shall have thirty (30) days to make payment for 

CONSULTANT’S billed production costs. 

 



6 
 

8. STATEMENT OF WORK PERFORMED.  CONSULTANT shall submit to TROY an 

itemized statement of work performed during the previous month, which shall be 

submitted by the tenth day of each month.    

9. MATERIALS, DOCUMENTS AND REPORTS.  Any and all materials, documents 

and reports produced by CONSULTANT as a result of this Agreement are and shall 

remain the property of TROY. 

10. PERSONNEL ASSIGNED TO CITY ACCOUNT     During the term of the 

Agreement, CONSULTANT shall provide qualified personnel to TROY.  TROY 

shall have the right to accept or reject any CONSULTANT personnel that is 

assigned to TROY.      

11. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This contract shall commence on the date of 

execution of this Agreement and shall not exceed two (2) years from the date of 

execution.   The Agreement may be renewed for an additional three-year period 

based upon mutual consent of both parties.     

12. SUB-CONTRACTORS. No portion of the Proposal may be sub-contracted 

without the prior written approval of TROY. 

13. CONTRACT REVIEW.  The parties agree to review this personnel service 

contract after six months. At that time the TROY City Manager shall assess the 

effectiveness and the performance levels.   If the City Manager, in his/her sole 

discretion, deems that the contract should be terminated, then the City Manager 

can terminate the contract, in whole or in part, by giving the CONSULTANT 30 

days written notification, as set forth below. 

14. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.  The parties may cancel the contract 

for convenience, in whole or in part, by giving written notice 30-days prior to the 



7 
 

date of cancellation.  If TROY chooses to cancel this contract in part, the charges 

payable under this contract shall be equitably adjusted to reflect those services 

that are cancelled. 

15. INSURANCE.  CONSULTANT shall carry general liability insurance,  automobile 

liability insurance, professional liability insurance and workers compensation for any 

actions, claims, liability or damages caused to others arising out of the performance 

of this Agreement in the amounts approved by TROY. The insurance shall name 

TROY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers, as additional 

insured and shall contain the following cancellation notice: 

“Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the 
expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will mail 30 days written notice 
to the certificate holder.” 
 

A certificate of insurance demonstrating the required insurance coverage shall be 

provided to TROY’S Risk Manager immediately upon execution of this 

Agreement.  Cancellation or lapse of the insurance shall be considered a 

material breach of this Agreement, and the Agreement shall become null and 

void unless CONSULTANT immediately provides proof of renewal of continuous 

coverage to TROY’S Risk Manager.  All of CONSULTANT’S insurance carriers 

shall be licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan and 

acceptable to TROY. An updated certificate of insurance shall be provided to the 

TROY’S Risk Manager each year at the time of policy renewal.  

16. INDEMNIFICATON.    

A. Indemnification except  for professional liability:  To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, the CONSULTANT agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, 

and hold harmless TROY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and 



8 
 

volunteers and others working on behalf of TROY against any and all claims, 

demands, suits, or loss, including all costs connected therewith, and for any 

damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from TROY, its 

elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of 

TROY, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property 

damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected 

or associated with this Agreement. 

B. Indemnification for Professional Liability:  The CONSULTANT  

expressly agrees to indemnify and hold TROY harmless against all losses and 

liabilities arising out of personal injury, bodily injury or property damages to the 

extent of any negligent act or error or omission of the CONSULTANT or anyone 

acting on CONSULTANT’S behalf, in connection with, or incidental to, the contract 

or work to be performed, except that the CONSULTANT shall not be responsible to 

indemnify TROY for any losses or damages to the extent that same are caused by 

or result from the gross negligence of TROY or any other person or entity. 

C. To the extent of the CONSULTANT’S actual degree of fault, the  

CONSULTANT’S obligation to indemnify and hold TROY harmless shall include: 

                      1. The obligation to defend TROY from any such suit, action or 

proceeding, and;  

                       2. The obligation to pay any and all judgments which may be 

recovered in any such suit, action or proceeding and/or any reasonable expenses 

including, but not limited to costs, attorney fees and settlement expenses which may 

be incurred, but only to the extent that such judgments and expenses are 

attributable to the CONSULTANT’S actual fault. 



9 
 

For the purpose of the indemnifications clauses set out above, "TROY"  shall 

mean TROY of Troy, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers 

working on behalf of TROY; losses and liabilities shall mean loss, cost, expense, 

damage, liability or claims, whether groundless or not; personal injury shall mean 

false arrest, erroneous service of civil papers, false imprisonment, malicious 

prosecution, assault and battery, libel, slander, defamation of character, 

discrimination, mental anguish, wrongful entry or eviction, violation of property, or 

deprivation of any rights, privileges or immunities secured by the constitution and 

laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan, for which the 

CONSULTANT may be held liable to its injured party in an action-at-law or a suit in 

equity or other proceedings for redress; bodily injury shall mean death,  bodily injury, 

sickness or disease and mental injury which may be sustained or claimed by any 

person or persons; and property damage shall mean the damage and destruction of 

any property including the loss of use thereof.  

17. DUTY TO NOTIFY AND COOPERATE. The parties shall provide notice  
 
within twenty-one (21) days of the receipt of any claim for damages or injuries.   
 
The parties shall cooperate with the defense of any claims subject to the  
 
indemnification provisions of Section 16. 
 
18. SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS.   The CONSULTANT agrees that it will not settle or 

resolve any claim or action against the CONSULTANT based upon its acts which 

includes, or may include, a claim or count against TROY, its elected and appointed 

officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of TROY, obtaining 

a full and complete release in favor of TROY with respect to any and all claims or 



10 
 

counts against TROY except those based upon the gross negligence or willful or 

wanton misconduct of TROY or its employees. 

19.  NO POWER OF ASSIGNMENT. The CONSULTANT shall have no authority, 

power to assign, sublet, or transfer any rights, privileges, or interest under this 

Agreement without prior written consent from TROY.  

20. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The CONSULTANT acknowledges that he/she 

is an independent contractor with no authority to bind TROY to any contracts or 

agreements, written or oral. 

21. ARBITRATION. The CONSULTANT and TROY may agree to arbitrate any 

disputes with respect to the application of this indemnification clause.  

22.  NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be mailed 

by first class mail to the other party at its last known address.     

23.  GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION:  This Agreement is made in and shall 

be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.  Any lawsuits under this 

Agreement shall be filed in the Oakland County Circuit Court, Michigan. 

24. HEADINGS.  Pronouns and relative words herein used shall be read 

interchangeably in the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural as the 

respective case may be. 

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The foregoing constitutes the entire Agreement 

between the parties and may be modified only by a written instrument signed by 

both parties. 

26.  AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:  By execution of this Agreement, the respective 

parties acknowledge that each has executed this Agreement with full and complete 

authority to do so. 



11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TROY and CONSULTANT have executed this  
 

Agreement on this ________ day of June, 2011. 
 
 
 
      CONSULTANT: 
 
WITNESSES:    TARGET INSYGHT 
 
________________________  ________________________________ 

By:_____________________________ 
Its:_____________________________ 

 
________________________        _______________________________ 
       
 

CITY OF TROY 
_________________________  

_________________________       Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________ __________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

 

May 26, 2011 

City of Troy  
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 

Thank you for asking Target Insyght to present our plan to develop and implement a comprehensive, 
marketing, communications and research strategy (as outlined in the attached addendum A) that supports 
the vision of the City of Troy: To honor the legacy of the past; to build a strong, vibrant future; and 
to be an attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 

In so doing, Target Insyght will strive to work with the City to turn the vision into reality and establish the 
foundation to enable the City of Troy to achieve the following goals:   

 Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Build a sense of community 
 Attract and retain business investment 

Since it can take two to five years for a fully-funded communication strategy to produce significant results, 
Target Insyght is presenting a two year plan of activities to change the City’s image identity and to 
produce an improved public perception of the City’s direction.  

 

 Core Deliverables 

 Execute a communication plan that supports the City Council’s vision and goals 
 Key messages – tie in with City Council’s vision & goals.  Use the key messages to craft 

responses in all communication over the next two years. (This includes negative news coverage)  
 Earned media – engage with key print and electronic reporters to generate media coverage about 

initiatives, activities and research intended to achieve goals and enhance City’s image 
 Develop multiple channels and tools to disseminate City information to all necessary audiences 

and stakeholders.   
 Communication Audit – Bring onboard all City Department Directors and Staff to buy into the 

message and be able to communicate it to citizens they come in contact with. 
 Assessment of current communication structure, process activities and efforts 
 Evaluate current and the need of future and ongoing research to support this communication plan  
 Image & branding – develop a clear, memorable image and branding approach 

o Using Community Report Card to identify initial issues needing to be addressed 
 Redesign the City’s existing website to present a more professional look and improve navigation 

(This does not mean a re-engineering of the site) 
 Budget needs – determine budget needs and constraints in the implementation of a successful 

communication plan 
 Metrics development to track ongoing communication plan effectiveness – 

Measure/Monitor/Evaluate – so changes and updates can be made 



 Promote doing business in an open, professional and easy manner 
 Conduct citizen engagement, surveys and outreach 
 Build community partnerships 
 Plan execution 

o Start identifying positive statements from residents and business leaders that can be 
applied to the “Why I live in Troy and Why I do business in Troy” campaigns 

 Use social media on a larger scale – press releases, City programs & events can be posted to the 
City’s Facebook and Twitter accounts 

Outcome Goals The Key Metrics   
 

 The City has achieved an integrated and coordinated communication structure with key 
stakeholders 

 A plan in place to connect the citizens of Troy with City government 
 Increased public participation in City government 
 Ensuring all City communications is coordinated, effective, efficient and definitely consistent 
 Making the City of Troy’s communications channels and tools as the ones most used and viewed 

as most accurate source of information  

Awareness is also a Key Metric  
 
 Increased knowledge of City Council’s vision, goals and plans 
 The value of City Services 
 Citizens understanding they are the City of Troy and they do more than just live here. They belong 

and own what happens TO and what is happening IN the City.    

Employees/Staff 
Employees are a key component to any successful communication plan. They are in most cases the 
initial source of information and primary connection many citizens and neighborhoods have about the 
City. What they are telling the public could undermine a communication plan. 

  
 City Employees/Staff must be surveyed to determine their knowledge, feelings and job satisfaction 
 Employee/Staff education and outreach must be built into the plan. 

Ongoing Needs 

 Continuation of above deliverables plus  
o Updated key messages 
o Refreshed website design and content 

 

Continuing  Coordination 

 To ensure timely completion of key deliverables through the two-year plan, Target Insyght will 
institute a continuing team-oriented relationship with the City of Troy, leveraging weekly 
interactions, meetings and/or conference calls for ongoing collaborative interaction. 

 

 

 

 

 



Business Terms 

 Fees:  Cost and terms of this two-year program is as follows.  Invoicing will occur in equal 
installments of $9,500.00 with the first payment due upon execution of this agreement and the 
remaining payments due every month thereafter. Twenty-four equal monthly installments, with the 
first payment counting as the first month. Failure to pay promptly on the above schedule will result 
in a halt to all work performed by Target Insyght.  

 Out-of-pocket expenses: Professional service fees do not cover out-of-pocket expenses, 
including but not limited to travel outside the SE Michigan region; mileage ($.50 per mile) outside 
of SE Michigan; courier service, express mail, postage, and related costs related to special events 
and/or activities.  Out-of-pocket expenses will be billed separately at the end of each month.   

 Indemnification:  Target Insyght agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Troy against 
loss or threatened loss or expense by reason of the liability or potential liability of the contractor for 
or arising out of any claims for damages.  The City of Troy agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
Target Insyght against loss or threatened loss or expense by reason of the liability or potential 
liability of the contractor for or arising out of any claims for damages. 

 Work for Hire: Because Target Insyght is the final approving party for all content, Target Insyght 
will not be liable for any errors in content that may result in legal or other actions from outside 
parties as a result of this publication.   

 Production costs: Professional service fees do not cover production and other service costs, 
such as media clip services, PR and other newswire fees, graphic design and artwork, layouts, 
photography, printing, film and video production, reproduction and distribution of internal or 
external communications, purchasing advertising time and space, etc.  Production costs and other 
service costs will be approved in advance by the client and billed separately at the end of the 
month or as per the separate approved proposal or agreement to pay the additional fees. 

 Additional Costs: With the City of Troy’s prior approval, Target Insyght will purchase, contract for 
and/or engage third-party resources as needed to advance the efforts of the initiative.  Additional 
costs will be billed separately and will be passed-through with no additional mark-up as long as 
payment is made within the terms of the associated agreement.  Late fees and other charges will 
be the responsibility of the City of Troy.   

 This proposal and cost quotes in this proposal are valid for 90-days from the date of this letter 
unless agreed to and executed by the City of Troy during that time period. 

 If you agree to the terms and conditions as indicated above, please sign and date below.  We are 
looking forward to working with you. 

 Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions with regard to our proposal. 

Sincerely, 

________________________________  ___________ 
Ed Sarpolus, Target Insyght    Date 

 

________________________________  ___________ 
For the City of Troy     Date 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Troy 
Communication Strategy  

&  
    Economic‐Stability Plan: 

 
An Integrated Proposal 

Maintaining an Environment of Investment –  
It’s Troy’s Future 

 
 

May 18, 2011 



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   2  

Purpose, goals and mission 
This proposal seeks to address the immediate requests by the City Council of Troy pertaining to 

the implementation of a communication strategy and plan that will address the core issues 

surrounding the City’s “struggles with success,” and create a foundation from which the City can 

continue its forward progress.   A communications strategy will help build a proactive open 

government that engages, educates and collaborates with its citizens and will reestablish the City’s 

credibility. 

The aim of the proposal is to help the City achieve the results outlined in the “Vision Statement 

and Goals” adopted by the City Council of Troy on Monday, February 7, 2011, to ensure the vision 

becomes reality and the goals are reached.  

 
Overview 

The 2010 U.S. Census results show the City of Troy to have an increasingly aging population, as 

well as a decline in the numbers of younger working families. This combination will put a stress on City 

resources and spending. Additionally, the current ongoing economic decline in the state and nation has 

impacted the City’s tax base and revenue stream. Property values have dropped and the local business 

climate is hurting.  

 
Why not a simple public relations and communications proposal? 

The challenges facing the City of Troy today cannot be met with a new or updated webpage, or 

by more press releases or the creation of new talking points. Instituting a new communication plan 

alone will do little to accomplish the job the City must do to achieve its vision and goals. That approach 

is merely re‐inventing the wheel as regards what the competent staff of the City has been doing very 

well recently, albeit with limited “people power” and financial resources.  

The City needs an integrated approach that combines public communications, marketing, 

research and development of a sustainable stakeholder coalition and network to support the civic 

activities necessary for success. There is no quick fix for the City’s challenges, so this proposal takes 

time and available resources into account. 



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   3  

 
Lessons learned 

It is not necessary to look far afield to find examples of how public relations and 

communications alone did not ensure success for civic development efforts. For example: 

 The many “Workforce Innovation for Regional Economic Development (WIRED) Initiatives” around the state: 
after five years, these initiatives have yet to impart upon their regions the cachet and status of a “Silicon Valley.”  
At the beginning, these multi‐million dollar regional grants were in the headlines regularly. However, as the 
media exposure waned, so did the perception of any “Wired” grant alliance as a factor in the reshaping of 
regional economies.  The effort resulted in great branding with little or no actual “bite.” 

 The metro‐Detroit “One D” campaign: Here, five years of uncounted financial resources have been expended 
on multiple public relations and communications initiatives that still have a long way to go in changing the 
perceived plight of the region. 

The unavoidable truth is, “Perception is reality.” If the public cannot be convinced the City of 

Troy is what it wants to be (now or over time), no matter how much media coverage is generated, the 

City is not what it wants to be. And the public has a very short attention span.   

An economic development strategy and partnership must be considered and integrated 
To achieve the aims of the “Vision Statement and Goals,” this integrated proposal requires inclusion 

of an economic development vision element. Local business interests must see sufficient reasons to buy 

into and support the City’s visions and goals. Lacking the support of the business community, the City of 

Troy by itself does not have the resources to do the all outreach and public education necessary for 

success. A second necessary element is the bringing together of the City’s public and private sector 

interests with local educational entities and others civic stakeholders, to create the “one unifying voice” of 

civic efforts to create a stronger community; this voice, along with economic development efforts, will 

attract jobs and families to the City, making Troy a great place to live and work and play. 

To help create a fiscally‐sound City, the following elements are needed: 
  Young working families who wish to make Troy their home: 

1. To improve the tax base 
2. To provide more consumers for City businesses 
3. To provide a ready source of qualified employees for local business 

  A strong business climate: 
1. To create jobs that attract people to the City 
2. To foster profitable businesses to improve the tax base 
3. To create new businesses that increase consumer traffic among area consumers 

  A positive quality of life: 
  To retain current residents and attract new residents  



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   4  

Time and money 
It can take two to five years for a fully‐funded communication strategy to produce significant 

change in the City’s image identity and to produce an improved public perception of the City’s 

direction. An integrated plan is necessary to accomplish this. Because the City has determined a  

six month to two year time‐frame for the initial implementation of a successful proposal, benchmarks 

must be included to ensure the plan is laid out so it can reach fruition as experience would dictate. This 

proposal is designed to create the foundation for action and the impetus to continue the plan, by 

identifying the needed financial resources and forging a coalition of those up to the challenge of seeing 

the vision and goals of the City of Troy attained. 

 
Scope of Work 

The aim of the proposed communication strategy is to get all the civic interests – City Council, 

City administration and employees, all residents, business, educational and other interest groups – to 

speak and act with one voice.  

Different elements of the plan would:  
1. Assist in implementing the Council’s “Vision Statement and Goals” 
2. Work with City spokespersons to organize and develop concise talking point documents and 

tailored messaging documents as needed to tie into the Council’s vision and goals 
3. Collaborate with City staff to engage with key print and electronic media to generate media 

coverage about initiatives, activities and research intended to achieve goals and enhance City’s 
image 

4. Assist the City of Troy communication staff with communication and marketing methods 
Examples: How to respond to numerous e‐mails 

  Responding to specific crises, problems or challenges 
  [This would most likely require public education] 

5. Work with communication staff to develop and implement overall media outreach strategies 

6. Provide research data 
Ongoing research is a key, integral component of a successful communication strategy and 
plan. It provides benchmarks against which all programs can be measured. The data would also 
aid in: 

a. Message development (identification and testing of key words and phrases) 
b. Identification of issues needing to be addressed 
c. Discovery of objections to be overcome 
d. Creation of talking points 
e. Better definition of target audiences 

7. Review the City’s webpage – evaluate for content, and determine any need for redesign, 
update or potential addition of new pages  



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   5  

8. Direct an earned media campaign, to sustain the City’s information and communication efforts 
and increase its media presence 

9. Implement a social media strategy, utilizing technology such as YouTube videos, a Facebook 
page and possibly Twitter feeds and other appropriate social media tools 

10. Conduct traditional civic outreach and grassroots activities 

11. Collaborate with and expand the City Manager’s efforts to create a stakeholder coalition, 
possibly expanding it beyond business interest, and using it to assist the City’s communication/ 
marketing and economic development campaigns.  
(Other communities that have common interests between public and private entities have used 
such partnerships to fund needed campaigns; economic prosperity is truly a common interest 
of the stakeholders in Troy) 

12. Promote a broader stakeholder coalition to participate in the City’s communication and 
marketing campaign   
Stakeholders include City government, business interests, associations, area mall operators, 
education and community groups, senior citizens, ethnic/racial and religious groups, parents 
and local youth, etc. 

13.  Administer a communications plan to keep stakeholders informed, active and supportive (a 
coalition identifier and website may be needed here) 

 

Earned media, social media and education 
To create a new or stronger perception in the public consciousness, education, marketing and 

communication strategies require repetition and saturation of targeted messages. The City of Troy 

does not have the funds to develop and sustain a paid campaign in support of its civic aims, but will 

have to rely on an earned media campaign to promulgate its education efforts and messaging.  

This will require an effort among City departments and division staff to identify possible 

compelling news opportunities, stories and events. Part of the coordinated campaign proposal 

presented here is this effort to engage the City’s stakeholders and to explore the community and its 

activities for news opportunities. 

Depending on available resources and time, a public research element can also be used to 

generate stories and create needed third‐party credibility while addressing City issues, messages, 

vision and goals. 

 
Build exposure and leadership credibility as a noted authority 

Utilizing a pro‐active messaging approach will make it possible for civic spokespersons to 

engage with newspapers, television news programs, talk and news radio and other traditional and non‐



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   6  

traditional media and communications outlets; these latter include bloggers and special interest 

websites.  Such engagement efforts could also include group presentations and focused media 

interviews.  In this way, the City will enjoy broader public awareness of its issues and increased 

understanding of its proposed solutions among the electorate. 

And as noted above, the continuing evolution of a digital society requires the City to create and 

execute a social media strategy, including tools such as YouTube videos, a Facebook page, a Twitter 

account and other appropriate social media tools and technologies.   

By applying these strategies and leveraging these communications tools, spokespersons in and 

for the City of Troy can successfully establish a reputation as the entities the media will first approach 

when looking for news stories and when seeking authoritative commentary on specific issues and 

policies. Reporters and commentators always look for trustworthy sources they can turn to at any 

given moment to complete their coverage a story. These elements in this proposed civic 

communications plan are the basis of becoming a “noted authority.” 

With proper discipline, City officials and spokespersons can position themselves as the noted 

authorities in Troy – individually and collectively acknowledged as a source with credibility the media 

can respect and rely on. However, achieving this authoritative status will not come easy. It will require 

a commitment on the part of these officials to be responsive to the time‐sensitive needs (and 

demands) of the media and a willingness to speak “on the record” about issues affecting the City and 

local government and the solutions necessary to address them. This active commitment will provide 

another opportunity for civic interests to be seen and heard by the electorate, businesses interest and 

other stakeholders. 

 
Sustainability and lessons from history 

It must be understood that any effective communication strategy and plan will take 

commitment and time. The failure of other communities in this attempt can be traced to a lack of 

vision, commitment and patience in the plans’ execution. To be effective in the long term, it is 

imperative for the plan to enjoy permanence and sustainability. 

Financial stability is a must for success. However, financial stability cannot be achieved without 

commitment to research, education and the aggressive communication of findings and potential 

solutions. With a strong civic leadership and the ability to forge a private/public coalition, as well as a 



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   7  

solid business base, the City of Troy should have an easier time than most communities in raising 

additional financial support for its efforts. However, the City’s success doing so will rely on its ability to 

show value to its stakeholders and to deliver perceived value to the citizens of Troy.  

Notably, the ability to show value will come from the City’s commitment to accountability in its 

communication strategy and plan, with benchmarking, outreach and communication of research 

findings.   

 
Elements of integrated communications 

A plan that integrates traditional outreach efforts with strong earned media and grassroots 

activities will help the City of Troy educate residents and key audiences about its problems, initiatives, 

programs and solutions.  

 
Example components 

1. Existing/New Research and Polling (qualitative and quantitative) 
a. To generate earned media, research and polling can be leveraged, utilizing radio and 

newspaper coverage to carry information and avoid extensive advertising purchase 
costs 

b. To generate background policy research 
c. To develop key messages, themes and phrases 

2. Public Engagement 
Community conversations meant not only to inform but to gather opinion and 
perspectives that can be quantified 

3. Focus Groups 
To garner useful “point of view” commentary and anecdotal evidence that can be 
supported by pertinent research and polling 

4. Educational Products Component 
a. Materials for education, funding and other needs 
b. Informational briefings 
c. Newsletter/reports/publications 
d. Speakers’ bureau 
e. Website 
f. Social Media (Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.) 

5. Educational Media Component 
a. Media editorial boards 
b. Interviews with public affairs programs 
c. Press releases and media pitches 
d. Use of social media 



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   8  

e. Interviews on talk radio programs 

6. Approaches and Complementary Groups  
a. Community workshops, seminars and conferences 
b. Collection of solutions and problems identified, to be shared and used to determine 

next steps 

7. Groups 
a. Homeowner associations 
b. Municipal associations 
c. Community groups 
d. Chambers of Commerce 
e. Businesses organizations 
f. General public forums 
g. Special interest meetings 
h. Mall representatives 

The City of Troy is poised to demonstrate leadership to solve its own economic problems and 

gain the trust and support of citizens and the greater stakeholder community.  Stakeholders 

themselves are seeking solutions to their own economic struggles in tough economic times as well, and 

would welcome the support of an active partner in their community.  

 
Expansion on ideas on the stakeholder partnership and coalition network 

Business interests, like many of the other stakeholders in the community, have the same needs 

as the City of Troy. They want to be located where they can establish and grow a business with a 

vibrant future. They want their locale to be a place its customers and employees consider safe, clean 

and livable. Business interests need an effective, efficient local government that will not hinder their 

growth and will provide the services it needs and depends on. They want to be seen as part of a 

community its residents want to support, in a City with a good economic plan to attract, retain and 

grow business investment.  

Business interests need: 
1. Customers for their products and services, and purchasers to frequent their establishments 
2. Individuals with the talent, skills and education to fill the jobs they create 
3. A City with a positive image that can provide essential services for them, their employees 

and customers 
4. An ever‐expanding local population base of working young individuals and families 
5. The same kind of research required by the City of Troy on how to reach and communicate 

with the City’s residents; to establish the needs of area residents and assure local people 
don’t go somewhere else to shop 



T a r g e t   I n s y g h t  
C i t y   o f   T r o y   P r o p o s a l  

M a y   1 8 ,   2 0 1 1  
P a g e   9  

As goes the City of Troy, so go the fortunes of local business. With business support, the City’s 

economic development and communication/marketing plans can spur dramatic growth.  

The success stories about civic communication strategies and plans from around the state and 

country (e.g. the cities of Lansing, Michigan and Pittsburg, Pennsylvania) all started with partnerships 

and solid research. These efforts drive the debate and shape public policy and voter opinion, as well as 

dominate the local media that provides the earned coverage the City of Troy needs (paid media is well 

beyond the scope of most cities like Troy and not cost effective).  

Successful partnerships incorporate an integrated communication and market plan to gather 

their data. Private/public partnerships get out the key messages, vision and goals, and make it easier 

for the community to attract and maintain business. Such partnerships, some of which have become 

formalized entities, can prove to be credible to citizens by presenting one voice with the City on civic 

issues.  

As the City of Troy achieves recognition for its leadership, it should consider attracting funding 

from prominent organizations such as the W. K. Kellogg Foundation, the Charles S. Mott Foundation 

and the Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation, all of which are looking for incubators of best practices in 

jobs, economy and urban needs.   

Proposed monthly retainer for a communication strategy and plan for the City of Troy: 
Monthly Retainer (Minimum Six months ‐Two Year) Proposal    $ 9,500.00 
 
 
Additional Costs: With the City of Troy’s prior approval, Target Insyght will purchase, contract 

for and/or engage third‐party resources, as needed to advance the efforts of this proposal. Additional 
costs will be passed through with no additional mark‐up as long as payment is made within the terms 
of the associated agreement. Late fees and other charges will be the responsibility of the City of Troy. 
Extraordinary expenses are billed separately, with prior approval. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held May 9, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 8:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: None 
presented. 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: No Carryover Items. 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: No Public Hearings. 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Daniels, Janice Discussed budget and tax concerns 
Lai, Chat Discussed budget and library funding concerns 
DeBacker, Deborah Discussed budget and election concerns 
Killman, Brad Discussed saving the library 
Grix, E. James Discussed tax concerns and library functions 
Hamann, Art Discussed library visitors 
Burke, Thomas Discussed funding the library  
Beck, Paul Discussed funding the library 
Vert, John Discussed funding the library 
Schepke, Gordon Discussed funding the library 
DeBacker, Deborah Discussed special election 
Daniels, Janice Discussed legislative guidelines 
Killman, Brad,  Discussed funding the library 
Peters, Richard Discussed Osama bin Laden 
Johnson, Ivan Discussed funding for City functions 
Kantamaneni, Vennela Discussed keeping the library open 
Tagle, John Discussed options for funding library and other functions 
Bloomingdale, Bruce Discussed City budget issues 
MacDonell, Sharon Discussed City financial issues and misinformation 
Brake, Dan Discussed City financial issues and library concerns 
Yashinsky, Neil Discussed funding the library and special election 
Krent, Tom Discussed funding the library 
Kempen, Edward Discussed special election 
Hodorek, Ellen Discussed funding for the library and City functions 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
BittnerA
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

Schenk, Donald Discussed veterans memorial event in Veterans’ Plaza 
Geiger, M.I. Discussed funding for the library 
Teodoridis, Cristian Discussed funding the library and budget concerns 
Simham, Sandya Discussed funding the library 
Brodzinski, Susan Discussed special election and funding library 
  

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 10:04 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 10:18 PM. 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session: 
 
Resolution #2011-05-089 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL meet in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation: Troy v. Safeway Acquisition Company, and as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (c) Strategy for Labor Negotiations. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-4 Interlocal Agreement with the City of Sterling Heights and US Department of 

Homeland Security – ICE for Use of Gun Range 
 
Resolution #2011-05-090 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 

a) Agreement for Use of Gun Range – City of Sterling Heights 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the City of Sterling Heights for the use of the City’s gun range; 
and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

b)  Agreement for Use of Gun Range – US Department of Homeland Security – ICE  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the US Department of Homeland Security – ICE for the use of the 
City’s gun range; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk and 
Mayor to EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-5 Troy City Code Chapter 93 Amendments - Correction 
 
A. RESOLUTION TO RESCIND PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
Resolution #2011-05-091 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS City Council Resolution #2011-04-078, 
Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 International 
Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code, adopted by the Troy City Council at the Regular 
City Council meeting on April 18, 2011, as follows: 
 

I-4 Amendments to Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Based Upon 2009 
International Fire Code and 2009 Michigan Building Code 

 
Resolution #2011-04-078 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City 
Management; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
B. RESOLUTION TO AMEND CHAPTER 93 OF THE TROY CITY CODE: 
 
Resolution #2011-05-092 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City Management City 
Council Action Report dated May 3, 2011; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 

Catering 
 
Resolution #2011-05-093 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide catering 
services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an option to renew for three 
additional years to Encore Catering of Troy, MI, the caterer with the highest score and rate of 
return, as a result of a best value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the 
public interest at a return schedule of 15% of gross receipts less Michigan sales tax, or 
$12,000.00 minimum guarantee per year, whichever is greater, expiring May 9, 2014. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon caterer submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, the ability 
to qualify as the holder of the City’s liquor license and all other specified requirements; and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement when in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-7 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2011-05-094 
Moved by Kerwin 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

Seconded by Howrylak 
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, contracts for one-year requirements of Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded to various low bidders (Resolution 
#2011-04-085-J4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, After the award of contract, Richmond Transport Inc. withdrew their bid for 6A Slag 
due to a calculation error;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of 6A Slag with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from Richmond Transport Inc. and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next 
lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, MI at $13.23 per ton, as contained 
on the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all other items contained in resolution 2011-04-085-J4b 
REMAIN in full force and effect as originally stipulated. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-8 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract - Custodial Supplies 
 
Resolution #2011-05-095 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, On March 28, 2011, a contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies 
was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation of Linden, NJ 
(Resolution # 2011-03-064-J4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Central Poly Corporation has declined the consideration for award due to their 
choice not to meet insurance requirements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies from Central Poly 
Corporation and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next lowest total bidder, Empire 
Equipment and Supply Co. of Detroit, MI, for an estimated total cost of $16,134.00 at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 23, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring March 31, 2012. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
MOTION PASSED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-1a 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of item J-2 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Asphalt 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide asphalt 
paving materials-hot patch with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low 
bidders, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, for Items 1-5 and Item 7, asphalt paving 
materials; and Cadillac Asphalt LLC of Shelby Township for Item 6, bulk tack coat for an 
estimated total cost of $82,900.00 and $2,500.00 respectively, at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened April 19, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring December 31, 2011. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues – Michigan Municipal League (MML) 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2011 through April 30, 
2012, in the amount of $11,301.00. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

J-5 Bid Waiver: Expansion of Vehicle Exhaust Collection Systems at Fire Stations 3 
and 4 

 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-5 
 
WHEREAS, Hastings Air Energy Control is the authorized dealer and sole provider in Michigan 
to service and install Plymovent equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, MIOSHA standards require that firefighter exposure to diesel exhaust emissions 
within enclosed facilities be controlled; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to operational requirements of the Fire Department, fire apparatus have been 
redeployed from one fire station to another prompting the need to expand the exhaust 
collection systems at Fire stations 3 and 4;    
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 
best interest to WAIVE formal bidding procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of materials 
and labor to expand the Plymovent vehicle exhaust system at Fire stations 3 and 4 from 
Hastings Air Energy Control, as detailed in Appendix 1, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated total cost of $11,600.00. 
 
J-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main from First 

Industrial Development Services, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067 
 
Resolution #2011-05-096-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main, for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from First American Development 
Services, Inc., owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-35-201-067, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-05-097 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as corrected: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of April 18, 2011 
b. Special City Council Meeting of April 25, 2011 
c. Special City Council Meeting of May 2, 2011 
d. Special City Council Meeting of May 5, 2011 

 
Yes: All-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
 
Proposed Millage Question - Requested by Mayor Schilling 
 
Resolution #2011-05-098 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Attorney to draft ballot language 
for the City of Troy Public Library Dedicated General Operation Millage Proposal: 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO 0.7 MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to 0.7 mills against 
all taxable property for a 5-year period of time, 2011 through 2015, for 
public library general operating purposes? 0.7 mills are equal to $0.70 on 
each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied 
will raise approximately $2.9 million the first year it is levied. The millage will 
be levied on the Winter Tax Bill Annually. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Fleming, Howrylak,  
 
MOTION PASSED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust-Final-January 12, 2011 
b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-March 9, 2011 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-March 14, 2011 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-March 15, 2011 
f) Planning Commission-Final-March 22, 2011 
g) Planning Commission-Draft-April 12, 2011 
h) Planning Commission-Final-April 12, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
a) March 31, 2011 – Quarterly Financial Report 
b) RCOC Snow and Ice Control Contract Expense Report 5/01/2011 
c) 2010 Fire Department Annual Report 
d) 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  David Smith v. Stopczynski 

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS: No Study Items Presented 

 
P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Troy v Safeway Acquisition Company and Strategy for Labor Negotiations 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 11:11 PM. 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:20 PM. 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:17 AM. 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew  
City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL  May 9, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – FINAL May 9, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held May 9, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

The Meeting RECESSED at 6:01 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 6:05 PM in Council Board Room. 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration reviewed the 2011/2012 
Budget including Capital Projects, Enterprise Funds, and 3-Year Budget. 
 
Wrap-up: Discussion took place regarding the Budget Wrap-up 
 
Decision on the Library: Discussion took place regarding a potential Special August Election for 
a Dedicated Library Millage Proposal for the ballot. 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Bruce Bloomingdale Discussed budget concerns 
Richard Peters Discussed budget concerns 
Dan Brake Discussed budget concerns 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:00PM. 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Tom Lancaster, Woodside Bible Church, gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held May 16, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 
a. Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Ann Comiskey 
b. Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing Building Safety Month – May 2011 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: No Carryover Items. 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 
 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing at 7:44 PM and CLOSED the Public Hearing at 7:54 
PM after receiving comment from Thomas Burke, Dan Brake, Janice Daniels and Cristian 
Teodoridis. 
 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $30,163,000 
Licenses and Permits ....................................................... 1,500,200 
Federal Grants ....................................................................... 12,000 
State Grants ...................................................................... 5,302,300 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 115,000 
Charges for Services ........................................................ 6,060,300 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-02c



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................ 1,132,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................. 1,074,340 
Other Revenue ..................................................................... 695,500 
Operating Transfers – In ................................................... 6,551,750 
Re-appropriation ............................................................... 4,245,131 

 
Total              $56,851,521; and   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

Building Inspection ..................................................... $     1,198,913 
Council/Executive Administration  ..................................... 2,262,518 
Engineering ....................................................................... 1,949,125 
Finance ............................................................................. 3,732,709 
Fire .................................................................................... 4,214,198 
Library /Museum ............................................................... 2,430,510 
Other General Government ............................................... 1,806,893 
Police .............................................................................. 27,873,319 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................ 6,081,412 
Streets ............................................................................... 

 
5,301,924 

Total  $56,851,521; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $  1,146,100 
Federal Grants  ................................................................. 6,591,000 
State Grants  ..................................................................... 9,587,500 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 200,000 
Charges for Services ............................................................ 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................... 220,000 
Interest and Rents ................................................................ 127,200 
Operating Transfer – In ..................................................... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation  .............................................................. 6,093,110 

 
Total              $25,352,910; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

Executive Administration .................................................. $    50,000 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

Drains ............................................................................... 2,610,580 
Fire .................................................................................... 1,265,000 
Library .................................................................................. 325,000 
Museum ................................................................................. 50,000 
Other General Government ............................................ 10,073,300 
Police ................................................................................... 567,600 
Parks and Recreation .......................................................... 139,000 
Streets  ............................................................................. 7,728,000 
Public Works ........................................................................ 960,000 
Operating Transfer – Out .................................................. 
 

1,584,430 

Total .............................................................................. $25,352,910; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

Taxes .............................................................................. $4,140,180 
Charges for Services ............................................................... 4,500 
Interest and Rents ................................................................... 

 
8,000 

Total ................................................................................ $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be ninety-six one-
hundredths (0.96) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,128,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2011 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2011/12 budget document: 
 

Major Road Fund .......................................................... $  3,066,930  
Local Road Fund .......................................................... $  1,662,080 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ................. $     173,970 
Budget Stabilization Fund ............................................. $     305,000 
2000 MTF Debt Fund .................................................... $     237,020 
Proposal A Debt Fund .................................................. $     834,200 
Proposal B Debt Fund .................................................. $  1,472,700 
Proposal C Debt Fund .................................................. $     746,800 
Special Assessment Fund ............................................ $     356,000 
Water Supply System ................................................... $19,211,054 
Sanitary Sewer Fund .................................................... $13,244,354 
Aquatic Center Fund ..................................................... $     611,044 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ..................................... $  1,881,980 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund ................................ $  2,110,161 
Building Operations ....................................................... $     935,800 
Information Technology Fund ....................................... $  1,715,530 
Fleet Maintenance Fund ............................................... $  6,033,133 
Workers’ Compensation Fund ...................................... $     200,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ...................................... $  3,360,000 
Unemployment Insurance Fund .................................... $     325,000 

 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Council Member Howrylak’s Resolution 
 
Resolution #2011-05-099 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone Councilman Howrylak’s motion until after public comment and the 
break. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Schilling, Kerwin 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-05-100 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes:  All-7 
No:  None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reduce Public Comment, Rule #16 – Members of the Public & 
Visitors 
 
Resolution #2011-05-101 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REDUCES Public Comment, Council Rule #16, 
Members of the Public & Visitors, from five minutes to three minutes. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Fleming, Howrylak  
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Bloomingdale, Bruce Discussed support of Items I-4 and I-4a. 
Reinhardt, Marvin Discussed various City financial issues. 
Masson, Mary Discussed support of City Administration. 
Peters, Richard Discussed various topics. 
Vert, John Discussed support of the library. 
Donelko, Joe Discussed budget process.  
Rashkansky, Sam Discussed City financial issues. 
Schepke, Gordon Discussed trust and DDA spending. 
Bernardi, Mary Ann Discussed opposition to millage.  
Daniels, Janice Discussed various topics. 
Watts, Ray Discussed support of library. 
Gosselin, Toby Discussed support of millage. 
Beck, Paul Discussed opposition to millage. 
Ashland, David Discussed support of millage. 
Hakim, Tasneem Discussed support of Troy Community Coalition and library. 
Savage, James Discussed transit center and wasteful spending. 
Brake, Dan Discussed City financial issues. 
Burke, Thomas Discussed opposition to millage. 

 
The Meeting RECESSED at 9:03 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:10 PM. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT continued:  
 

Grix, E. James Discussed opposition to millage. 
Witt, Jack Discussed employee concessions and opposition to millage. 

 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS:  

H-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 
 
Resolution #2011-05-102 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2011; and 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $30,163,000 
Licenses and Permits ........................................................ 1,500,200 
Federal Grants ....................................................................... 12,000 
State Grants ...................................................................... 5,302,300 
Contributions – Local ............................................................. 15,000  
Charges for Services ......................................................... 6,060,300 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................ 1,052,000  
Interest and Rents ............................................................. 1,074,340 
Other Revenue ..................................................................... 695,500 
Operating Transfers – In ................................................... 6,551,750 
Re-appropriation ............................................................... 

 
2,165,131  

Total              $54,591,521; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

Building Inspection ..................................................... $     1,198,913 
Council/Executive Administration  ..................................... 2,262,518 
Engineering ....................................................................... 1,949,125 
Finance ............................................................................. 3,732,709 
Fire .................................................................................... 4,214,198 
Library /Museum .................................................................. 170,510  
Other General Government ............................................... 1,806,893 
Police .............................................................................. 27,873,319 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................ 6,081,412 
Streets ............................................................................... 

 
5,301,924 

Total  $54,591,521; and 56,851,521 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $  1,146,100 
Federal Grants  ................................................................. 6,591,000 
State Grants  ..................................................................... 9,587,500 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 200,000 
Charges for Services ............................................................ 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................... 220,000 
Interest and Rents ................................................................ 127,200 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

Operating Transfer – In ..................................................... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation  .............................................................. 

 
5,768,110  

Total              $25,027,910; and    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

Executive Administration .................................................. $    50,000 
Drains ............................................................................... 2,610,580 
Fire .................................................................................... 1,265,000 
Library ...............................................................................................  
Museum ................................................................................. 50,000 
Other General Government ............................................ 10,073,300 
Police ................................................................................... 567,600 
Parks and Recreation .......................................................... 139,000 
Streets  ............................................................................. 7,728,000 
Public Works ........................................................................ 960,000 
Operating Transfer – Out .................................................. 
 

1,584,430 

Total .............................................................................. $25,027,910; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

Taxes .............................................................................. $4,140,180 
Charges for Services ............................................................... 4,500 
Interest and Rents ................................................................... 

 
8,000 

Total ................................................................................ $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be ninety-six one-
hundredths (0.96) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,128,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2011 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2011/12 budget document: 
 

Major Road Fund .......................................................... $  3,066,930  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

Local Road Fund ........................................................... $  1,662,080 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ................. $     173,970 
Budget Stabilization Fund ............................................. $     305,000 
2000 MTF Debt Fund .................................................... $     237,020 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................... $     834,200 
Proposal B Debt Fund ................................................... $  1,472,700 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................... $     746,800 
Special Assessment Fund ............................................. $     356,000 
Water Supply System ................................................... $19,211,054 
Sanitary Sewer Fund ..................................................... $13,244,354 
Aquatic Center Fund ..................................................... $     611,044 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ..................................... $  1,881,980 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund ................................ $  2,110,161 
Building Operations ....................................................... $     935,800 
Information Technology Fund ....................................... $  1,715,530 
Fleet Maintenance Fund ............................................... $  6,033,133 
Workers’ Compensation Fund ...................................... $     200,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ...................................... $  3,360,000 
Unemployment Insurance Fund .................................... $     325,000; and 

 
Yes: Howrylak, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year 
Budget Resolution B 
 
Resolution #2011-05-103 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone Resolution B on the Budget until a vote for I-4 and I-4a. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-4 Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure (CORRECTED) 
 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the August 2, 2011 
Election, the following ballot question:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Public Library Operating Millage Proposal 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 0.7 MILLS FOR DEDICATED 
LIBRARY FUNDING WITH THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING 
QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 0.7 mills against all 
taxable property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, 
inclusive, for the dedicated purpose of operating and maintaining the library? 
0.7 mills are equal to $0.70 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, 
the additional millage levied will raise approximately $2,900,000 in 2011, the 
first year it is levied. Millage revenue would be disbursed to the City for library 
purposes.  Of this amount, state law requires the capture of approximately 
$3,383 for Local Development Finance Authority, $50,020 for Downtown 
Development Authority, and $129 for Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
purposes.  This proposal is authorized under Section 6 of Article IX of the 
Michigan Constitution.      

 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution for Library Millage Ballot Question and 
Procedure by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2011-05-104 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution for Library Millage Ballot 
Question and Procedure by SUBSTITUTING “$2,900,000” with “$3,114,125”. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin 
No: Fleming 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution for Library Millage Ballot Question and 
Procedure by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2011-05-105 
Moved by Howrylak 
Supported by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, To move the amend the resolution to change the date from August 2, 2011 to 
November 8, 2011. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak 
No: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution for Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure as Amended 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

 
Resolution #2011-05-106 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the August 2, 2011 
Election, the following ballot question:  
 

a) Approval of City of Troy Public Library Operating Millage Proposal 
 

CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 0.7 MILLS FOR DEDICATED 
LIBRARY FUNDING WITH THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING 
QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 0.7 mills against all 
taxable property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, 
inclusive, for the dedicated purpose of operating and maintaining the library? 
0.7 mills are equal to $0.70 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, 
the additional millage levied will raise approximately $3,114,125 in 2011, the 
first year it is levied. Millage revenue would be disbursed to the City for library 
purposes.  Of this amount, state law requires the capture of approximately 
$3,383 for Local Development Finance Authority, $50,020 for Downtown 
Development Authority, and $129 for Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
purposes.  This proposal is authorized under Section 6 of Article IX of the 
Michigan Constitution. 

 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Fleming, Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-4 Library Millage Ballot Question and Procedure 
 
Resolution #2011-05-107 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES an August 2, 2011 Special Election 
for voters to vote on a proposed millage question/s. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-5 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 

2011/12 Budget 
 
Resolution #2011-05-108 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority’s Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Schilling, Slater, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak,  
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-6 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s (BRA) Proposed 

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Vote to Postpone Resolution for Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority’s (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget  
 
Resolution #2011-05-109 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Item I-6 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s (BRA) 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget be postponed to the City Council Meeting scheduled for 
June 6, 2011. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
I-7 Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Proposed 

Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget 
 
Resolution #2011-05-110 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Local Development Finance Authority has adopted and recommends 
that City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2011/12 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Local Development Finance Authority’s Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
E-1 Adoption of the 2011/12 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget (CORRECTED) 
 
Resolution B 
 
Resolution #2011-05-111 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $30,163,000 
Licenses and Permits ........................................................ 1,500,200 
Federal Grants ....................................................................... 12,000 
State Grants ...................................................................... 5,302,300 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 115,000 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

Charges for Services ........................................................ 6,060,300 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................ 1,072,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................ 1,074,340 
Other Revenue .................................................................... 695,500 
Operating Transfers – In ................................................... 6,551,750 
Re-appropriation ............................................................... 

 
2,610,131 

Total              $55,156,521; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

Building Inspection ..................................................... $     1,198,913 
Council/Executive Administration  ..................................... 2,262,518 
Engineering ....................................................................... 1,949,125 
Finance ............................................................................. 3,732,709 
Fire .................................................................................... 4,214,198 
Library /Museum .................................................................. 735,510 
Other General Government .............................................. 1,806,893 
Police .............................................................................. 27,873,319 
Parks and Recreation ....................................................... 6,081,412 
Streets .............................................................................. 

 
5,301,924 

Total  $55,156,521; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes ............................................................................ $  6,591,000  
Federal Grants  ................................................................. 1,146,100 
State Grants  ..................................................................... 9,587,500 
Contributions – Local ........................................................... 200,000 
Charges for Services ........................................................... 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ........................................................... 220,000 
Interest and Rents ............................................................... 127,200 
Operating Transfer – In ..................................................... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation  .............................................................. 

 
5,874,360 

Total              $25,134,160; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

Executive Administration .................................................. $    50,000 
Drains ................................................................................ 2,610,580 
Fire .................................................................................... 1,265,000 
Library .................................................................................. 106,250 
Museum ................................................................................. 50,000 
Other General Government ............................................. 10,073,300 
Police ................................................................................... 567,600 
Parks and Recreation ........................................................... 139,000 
Streets  .............................................................................. 7,728,000 
Public Works ........................................................................ 960,000 
Operating Transfer – Out .................................................. 

 
1,584,430 

Total .............................................................................. $25,134,160; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

Taxes .............................................................................. $4,140,180  
Charges for Services ................................................................ 4,500 
Interest and Rents .................................................................... 

 
8,000 

Total ................................................................................ $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be ninety-six one-
hundredths (0.96) mills on the 2011 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,152,680; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,128,200; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2011 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2011/12 budget document: 
 

Major Road Fund .......................................................... $  3,066,930  
Local Road Fund ........................................................... $  1,662,080 
Community Development Block Grant Fund ................. $     173,970 
Budget Stabilization Fund ............................................. $     305,000 
2000 MTF Debt Fund .................................................... $     237,020 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................... $     834,200 
Proposal B Debt Fund ................................................... $  1,472,700 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................... $     746,800 
Special Assessment Fund ............................................. $     356,000 
Water Supply System ................................................... $19,211,054 
Sanitary Sewer Fund ..................................................... $13,244,354 
Aquatic Center Fund ..................................................... $     611,044 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ..................................... $  1,881,980 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund................................ $  2,110,161 
Building Operations ...................................................... $     935,800 
Information Technology Fund ....................................... $  1,715,530 
Fleet Maintenance Fund ............................................... $  6,033,133 
Workers’ Compensation Fund ...................................... $     200,000 
Compensated Absences Fund ..................................... $  3,360,000 
Unemployment Insurance Fund .................................... $     325,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the three-year budget (2012/13 – 2013/14) for the General 
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Refuse Fund and Capital Operating Fund be approved based on the 
following revenues and expenditures: 
 

General Fund Operating            2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes .................................. $28,089,000 ........... $26,826,000 
Licenses and Permits ............. 1,506,200 ............... 1,506,200 
Federal Grants ............................. 12,000 ............................. 0 
State Grants ............................ 5,301,000 ............... 5,301,000 
Contributions – Local ................... 15,000 .................... 15,000 
Charges for Services .............. 6,162,300 ............... 6,222,300 
Fines and Forfeitures .............. 1,088,000 ............... 1,088,000 
Interest and Rents .................. 1,129,340 ............... 1,139,340 
Other Revenue .......................... 724,000 .................. 746,000 
Operating Transfers – In ......... 7,072,000 ............... 4,923,000 
Re-appropriation ........................ 780,660 ............... 2,653,160 

 
Total $51,879,500 $50,420,000; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating fund shall be six and 
fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2012 and 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Building Inspection ............. $   1,200,000 .......... $   1,210,000 
Council/Executive Admin. ....... 2,305,000 ............... 2,351,000 
Engineering ............................. 1,986,000 ............... 2,026,000 
Finance ................................... 3,835,500 ............... 3,867,000 
Fire .......................................... 4,300,000 ............... 4,386,000 
Library/Museum ......................... 174,000 .................. 177,000 
Other General Government .... 1,842,000 ............... 1,880,000 
Police .................................... 24,626,000 ............. 23,196,000 
Parks and Recreation ............. 6,203,000 ............... 6,327,000 
Streets .................................... 5,408,000 ............... 5,000,000 

 
Total .................................... $51,879,500 ........... $50,420,000; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 16 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes .................................. $ 6,120,000 ............ $ 5,189,000 
Federal Grants .......................... 800,000 ............... 1,200,000 
Contributions - Local ................. 200,000 .................. 200,000 
Charges for Services ................. 288,000 .................. 288,000 
Fines and Forfeitures ................ 220,000 .................. 220,000 
Interest and Rents ..................... 127,200 .................. 130,000 
Operating Transfer-In ............. 1,100,000 ............... 1,100,000 
Re-appropriation .................... 2,141,691 .................. 646,459 
 
Total ................................... $10,996,891 ............. $8,973,459; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2012 and one and thirty-six one-hundredths (1.36) 
mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Executive Administration .... $       50,000 ........... $                0 
Drains ........................................ 525,894 .................. 475,459 
Fire .............................................. 95,000 .................. 570,000 
Museum ...................................... 50,000 .................... 50,000 
Other General Government ....... 100,000 .................. 300,000 
Parks & Recreation ................... 120,000 .................. 170,000 
Police ........................................ 350,000 .................. 350,000 
Public Works ............................. 465,000 .................. 615,000 
Streets .................................... 6,913,000 ............... 6,343,000 
Operating Transfer-Out .......... 2,328,000 .................. 100,000 

 
Total ................................... $10,996,894 ............. $8,973,459; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 

                                        2012/13                 2013/14 
 

Taxes ................................... $4,248,890 ............. $4,373,300 
Charges for Services ..................... 4,500 ...................... 4,500 
Interest and Rents ......................... 4,000 ...................... 4,000 

 
Total ..................................... $4,257,390 ............. $4,381,800; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 17 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and six one-
hundredths (1.06) mills on the 2012 taxable valuation and one and fourteen one- hundredths 
(1.14) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,257,390 in 
2012/13 and $4,381,800 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,126,800 in 2012/13 and $3,082,750 in 2013/14; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (0.50) mills 
on the 2012 and sixty-seven one-hundredths (0.67) mills on the 2013 taxable valuation for the 
General Debt Service Fund. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: Fleming, Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 11:12 PM. 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 11:18 PM. 
 
I-8 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Program – 

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
 
Resolution #2011-05-112 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, A tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and AFSCME 
for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012, 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 4 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) employees will meet the eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of 
March 31, 2011; and 26 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 18 - 

(AFSCME) employees are within five years of meeting the eligibility criteria for retirement from 
City employment as of March 31, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) employees who 
will be eligible to retire, or are within five years of eligibility, on or before March 31, 2011, 
provided that the program is economically beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of March 31, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Departments’ budgets, and funding 
for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than August 12, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a two-year collective bargaining agreement between the City 
of Troy and AFSCME for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013 as presented is hereby 
RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement; 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 19 - 

I-9 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2010-2013 and Early 
Retirement Incentive Program 

 
Resolution #2011-05-113 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
WHEREAS, a tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and MAP for 
the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012; 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 7 Michigan Association of Police (MAP) employees will meet the 
eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of February 28, 2011; and 11 Michigan 
Association of Police (MAP) employees are within five years of meeting the eligibility criteria for 
retirement from City employment as of February 28, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the 
Michigan Association of Police (MAP) employees who will be eligible to retire, or are within five 
years of eligibility, on or before February 28, 2011, provided that the program is economically 
beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of February 28, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Departments’ budgets, and funding 
for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 20 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than August 12, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a three-year collective bargaining agreement between the 
City of Troy and MAP for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013 as presented is hereby 
RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement; 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-05-114-J-1a 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of item J-2 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
 
Resolution #2010-12-114-J-03 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 21 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
proclamations: 
 
a) Ann Comiskey 
b) Building Safety Month – May 2011 
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
NO ACTION TAKEN to allow for the Minutes of the Regular Meeting to be corrected as 
requested by Council Member Beltramini with both sets of Minutes to be placed on the next 
Agenda. 
 
a) Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 
b) Special City Council Meeting of May 9, 2011 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 
 
a) Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the August 2, 2011 
Election, the following ballot questions:  
 
a) Approval of City of Troy Road Maintenance and Snow Plowing Dedicated Operational 

Millage Proposal as Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 

CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY 1.0 MILLS FOR DEDICATED 
ROAD MAINTENANCE AND SNOW PLOWING PURPOSES WITH THE 
SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of 1.0 mills against all 
taxable property for a five (5) year period of time, 2011 through 2015, for the 
purpose of providing dedicated funding for road maintenance and snow 
plowing operations? 1.0 mills are equal to $1.00 on each $1,000.00 of 
taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied will raise 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 22 - 

approximately $4,448,750 in 2011, the first year it is levied.  Millage revenue 
would be disbursed to the City for road purposes.  Of this amount, state law 
requires the capture of approximately $4,833 for Local Development Finance 
Authority, $71,457 for the Downtown Development Authority and $185 for the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.   This proposal is authorized under 
Section 6 of Article IX of the Michigan Constitution. 
 
Yes ____ No ______ 

 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Proposed Millage Questions - Requested by Mayor Pro 
Tem Kerwin 
 
 
Resolution #2011-05-115 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item until the City Manager can schedule a study session 
regarding road maintenance and snow clearance. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1  Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Schilling announced this Thursday, May 19, 2011 as Police Memorial Day with the 
Awards Ceremony following. 
 
Council Member Beltramini announced observing Memorial Day on Monday, May 30, 2011 at 
11:00 AM at the Veterans Plaza at City Hall. 
 
Council Member Kerwin discussed communication strategies. 
 
Council Member Howrylak further discussed communication strategies. 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Planning Commission-Draft-April 24, 2011 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – FINAL (CORRECTED) May 16, 2011 
 

- 23 - 

N-2 Department Reports: 
a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services-April 11, 2011 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Appreciation from Bill & Sylvia Eland to Troy Police Officers regarding Accident 

Call Response 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric 

Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16047-R 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-6  Responses to Inquiries Made at Budget Wrap-up Session 

Noted and Filed 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS: No Study Items Presented 

 

P. CLOSED SESSION:   No Closed Session Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:52 PM. 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew  
City Clerk 

 



bittnera
Text Box
J-05



BittnerA
Text Box
J-06





















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             May 26, 2011 
 
To:   Troy City Council Members       
  
From:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
  Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney   
 
Subject: M. Amelia (Neal) Jermano v City of Troy et. al.   
 
 
 
 
Plaintiff M. Amelia (Neal) Jermano filed the attached lawsuit against the City of Troy Police 
Department, individual police officers, and a member of the Troy Civil Service Commission, who was 
improperly identified in the lawsuit as the Troy Police Commissioner.  Several other individuals and 
entities have also been sued in either the first or the second amended complaint filed by Jermano, 
including the Oakland County Sheriff, Prosecutor, etc..  The Plaintiff is not represented by an 
attorney.   
 
Her lawsuit includes 25 separate counts based on various legal theories.  Her claims against the Troy 
defendants all relate to a valid arrest made on February 20, 2009 in the City of Troy.  Plaintiff was 
arrested after the officers received verification that she had a felony warrant for her arrest from Oak 
Park.  The arrest warrant was based on a charge of aggravated stalking.  Essentially, Plaintiff’s 
claims against Troy are based on an allegation the arrest was improper and that she was threatened 
and harassed by Troy Police officers.  The case was filed in the United States District Court for the 
Eastern District of Michigan and assigned to Judge Avern Cohn.   
 
In order to protect the interests of the Troy defendants, our office has already filed a motion to 
dismiss, since it needed to be filed within 21 days of the date of service.  Although it may have been 
possible to obtain an extension of time to file the first responsive pleadings, this is much more difficult 
when there is a plaintiff representing herself.  A proposed resolution authorizing our continued legal 
representation is provided for your consideration.   
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-07



































































































































































































































































BittnerA
Text Box
J-08













 

 
 
May 31, 2011 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  James A. Nash, Acting Director of Finance & Administration 
  Sandra L. Kasperek, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
 
Background: 
 
The code of ordinances provides for transfer of delinquent accounts to the city tax roll. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The delinquent accounts from the various funds to be assessed to the 2011 tax roll are 
as follows: 
 
 General Fund Invoices  $ 59,428.04 
 Penalties         5,942.80 
         $ 65,370.84  
 
 Special Assessments  $   5,633.99 
 Penalties & Interest       1,610.06 
              7,244.05 
 Water & Sewer Accounts $793,904.22 
 Penalties                 79,391.23 
           873,295.45 
 
Total to be assessed                $945,910.34 
 
 
Options: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the assessment of delinquent accounts. 
 
 
Prepared by: James A. Nash, Acting Director of Finance & Administration 

          AAggeennddaa  IItteemm    
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-09



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
May 25, 2011 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development   
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Contract Amendment – LED Lighting and Retrofits 
 
 
Background 
On February 7, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a contract to purchase and install LED lighting and 
retrofits on the main City Hall campus and the Police/Fire training facility to the low total bidder, Corby 
Energy Services Inc of Belleville, MI, for an estimated total cost of $265,190.00.  The resolution also 
allows for additional lighting purchases through June 30, 2011, for installation at the fire stations not-
to-exceed $66,290.00. Resolution # (2011-02-026). 
 
Projects under the original Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program have 
been modified, changed or eliminated due to the ongoing restructuring of the City and monies 
dedicated for those projects need to be reallocated.  The City is required to use the EECBG funds in 
a cost-effective manner to maximize the benefit to the population and yield continuous benefits over 
time in terms of energy and emission reductions.  It is in the City’s best interest to amend the current 
contract and expand the scope of work to include replacement of Cobrahead fixtures with LED 
streetlights on Big Beaver between Dequindre and John R; on Coolidge, Cunningham and Lakeview; 
and seven (7) additional lighting fixtures to complete the DPW facility campus.  These lamps were 
selected because of their age and low energy efficiency levels. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends expanding the scope of work to purchase and install additional LED 
lighting and retrofits as detailed in Appendix I, from the low total bidder, Corby Energy Services for an 
amount not-to-exceed $155,000.00, at unit prices as originally bid on January 24, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
Funds for this project are available in the Buildings and Improvements capital accounts, then 
reimbursed through the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Regular Business -  AmendmentLED LightingProject05.11.doc 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-10



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 

APPENDIX I 
 
 

LOCATION DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY 

UNIT PRICE 
Including 

Installation 

ESTIMATED 
TOTAL 

DPW Facility 38 Watt/LWP1 3 $375.00 $1,125.00 
Big Beaver – 
Dequindre to John R 

245 Watt/Vue 400 – 
Type II or III 

 
66 

 
$1350.00 

 
$89,100.00 

Coolidge, 
Cunningham and 
Lakeview 

 
245 Watt/Vue 400 – 
Type II or III 

 
 

43 

 
 

$1350.00 

 
 

$58,050.00 
 
DPW driveway 

245 Watt/Vue 400 – 
Type II or III 

 
4 

 
$1350.00 

 
$5,400.00 

     
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - $153,675.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final February 7, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby INSTRUCTS the Troy Fire 
Department to inspect the fireworks’ display site and the fireworks to be used to assure 
compliance with applicable codes and standards for such a fireworks display. 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder: LED Lighting and 

Retrofits 
 
Resolution #2011-02-026 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install LED 
Lighting and Retrofits on the main City Hall Campus and Police/Fire Training Facility to the low 
total bidder, Corby Energy Services, Inc of Belleville, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$265,190.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ALLOWS additional lighting purchases 
from Corby Energy Services through June 30, 2011 for installation at the fire stations not-to-
exceed 25% of the total project cost or $66,290.00 at unit prices contained on the schedule of 
values and bid tabulation opened 1/24/2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted  

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
L-1  Resolution Submitted by Council Member Howrylak, Perhaps for Discussion 

Purposes  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
January 26, 2011                 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:            John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Steven A. Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 

Zachary Branigan LEED AP, Consultant 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low Bidder: LED Lighting and Retrofits  
 
 
Background 
 
On January 24, 2011, four (4) bid proposals were received to furnish and install LED Lighting on the 
City Hall municipal campus.  A total of 256 vendors were notified via the MITN system. 
 
Carlisle / Wortman Associates, Inc under the direction of Zachary Branigan, LEED   AP, AICP 
Associate developed funding recommendations that were approved through the Energy Efficiency 
and Conservation Block Grant Program. 
. 
The Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant required Rapid Energy Assessment Programs 
to identify a series of factors where the City could realize significant energy savings.  The LED 
Lighting Retrofits upgrades were chosen to reduce energy consumption at the City Hall main campus 
buildings, and the Police/Fire Training facility. 
 
This project will reduce the overall electrical usage and maintenance costs associated with old 
inefficient lighting fixtures.  
 
The LED Lighting upgrades will use Michigan designed and manufactured products.  Relume 
Technologies is based in Oxford, Michigan, established in 1994. Relume began LED research and 
design work seventeen (17) years ago as a contract firm for the United States Department of 
Defense, and was a pioneer in LED technologies back in the infancy of this new form of lighting. 
Many of the solutions for military applications manufactured by Relume were put into service in the 
Middle East during the beginning of the Gulf War and are still in active use today, including LED 
battlefield lights, check-point signals, and mobile surgical unit shelter lighting. Relume’s LED 
Solutions use CREE LEDs manufactured in Durham, North Carolina, custom optics made in Indiana, 
aluminum extrusions, powder coating, and circuit boards made in Michigan, and all assembly 
operations are completed at Relume’s Oxford, Michigan plant, giving Relume products the distinction 
of having the highest domestic and Michigan content of any LED manufacturer in the US .  
 



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
January 26, 2011 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Award To Low Bidder – LED Lighting and Retrofits 
 
Background  (continued) 
 
All products carry a seven (7) year warranty to 70% lumen maintenance, setting an industry-leading 
new standard for LED performance-driven warranties.  This project will allow the City to analyze the 
performance of Michigan –manufactured LED components, and provide energy conservation 
solutions. The LED Lighting Retrofits are one of the recommended implementation of Rapid Energy 
Assessment Project.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding a contract to furnish and install LED lighting to the low total 
bidder, Corby Energy Services, Inc of Belleville, Michigan at an estimated total cost of $265,190.00.  
The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
In addition, staff requests additional lighting purchases be allowed through June 30, 2011 for 
installation at the fire stations not-to-exceed 25% of the total project cost or $66,290.00 at unit prices 
contained on the bid tabulation and schedule of values. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the Building Operations capital fund for building and improvements which will 
be reimbursed through the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program. 
 
 
 





Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4

sl LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

**

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

Electrex Company, Inc. 

5082539903
$15,000.00

000190989
$15,000.00

Corby Energy Services, Inc. 

CHECK AMOUNT:
PROPOSAL A:  LED LIGHTING AND RETROFIT INCLUDING INSTALLATION - VARIOUS LOCATIONS

EST UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION

1 25 95.00$       2,375.00$    3,125.00$       107.06$    2,676.50$    3,326.50$        

2 28 325.00$     9,100.00$    11,750.00$     358.28$    10,031.84$  11,214.84$      

3 12    635.00$     7,620.00$   8,570.00$      701.72$   8,420.64$    8,891.64$       

$15,000.00

12 Watt / LR6C

$15,000.00

41 Watt / LWP2 

64 Watt / LFL2 $ ,$ ,$ $ ,$ ,$

4 49 625.00$     30,625.00$  35,475.00$     707.02$    34,643.98$  34,840.98$      

5 33 600.00$     19,800.00$  26,650.00$     655.08$    21,617.64$  23,228.64$      

6 24 775.00$     18,600.00$  26,100.00$     835.28$    20,046.72$  21,219.72$      

7 4 865.00$     3,460.00$    4,210.00$       941.28$    3,765.12$    3,963.12$        

8 20 325.00$     6,500.00$    7,500.00$       357.22$    7,144.40$    7,999.40$        

9 66 875 00$ 57 750 00$ 60 250 00$ 941 28$ 62 124 48$ 65 776 48$

80 Watt / PS1 

60 Watt / Custom 

119 Watt / PS2 

79 Watt / Custom 

38 Watt / LWP1 

121 W tt / V 250 III9 66 875.00$     57,750.00$ 60,250.00$    941.28$   62,124.48$  65,776.48$     

10 33 890.00$     29,370.00$  30,645.00$     941.28$    31,062.24$  32,888.24$      

11 1 200.00$     200.00$       260.00$          212.00$    212.00$       257.00$           

12 1 325.00$     325.00$       410.00$          357.22$    357.22$       400.22$           

13 13 1,250.00$  16,250.00$  16,750.00$     1,325.00$ 17,225.00$  17,945.00$      

14 8 1,250.00$  10,000.00$ 10,300.00$    1,325.00$ 10,600.00$  11,045.00$     

121 Watt / Vue 250 – III

121 Watt / Vue 250 – II 

8.39 Watt / LWP3 

39 Watt / LFL1 

245 Watt / Vue 400 – II

245 Watt / Vue 400 – III14 8 1,250.00$  10,000.00$ 10,300.00$    1,325.00$ 10,600.00$  11,045.00$     

15 6 800.00$     4,800.00$    5,030.00$       800.30$    4,801.80$    5,141.80$        

16 2 700.00$     1,400.00$    1,475.00$       763.20$    1,526.40$    1,636.40$        
Est. Material & Install Total:  Proposal A

PROPOSAL B:  LED LIGHTING - PARTS ONLY
EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL

248,500.00$                                                

245 Watt / Vue 400  III

84 Watt / Vue 150 – III  

65 Watt / Vue 100 he – II
249,774.98$                                                

Total 
Cost

Total 
CostITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL

17 102 95.00$       101.00$    

18 20 155.00$     73.00$      

19 30 130.00$     134.00$    
Est Total Material Cost: Proposal B  
EST. GRAND TOTAL PROPOSALS A & B

12 Watt / LR6 / SC6

12 Watt / LRP38

265,190.00$                                                

12 Watt / LR6C

16,690.00$                                                  15,782.00$                                                  

Cost

9,690.00$                               
3,100.00$                               
3,900.00$                               

Cost

10,302.00$                             

1,460.00$                               

4,020.00$                               

265,556.98$                                                

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

COMPLETION SCHEDULE: 
Can Meet Y or N

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N

7AM - 5PM 
(313) 350-2441

Y
May 31, 2011 May 31, 2011

8:00AM - 5:00PM 
(586) 468-7571

YY

Y

Date

PROGRESS PAYMENT:
Identified as 

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

XXXX

Blank Blank 
Monthly Progress Payments Monthly Installment Billing

1/11/2011 1/11/2011

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
Attached: Y or N Y Y



Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4

LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

** Corby Energy Services, Inc. Electrex Company, Inc. 

EXCEPTIONS:

WARRANTY:

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: 
Attached Y / N

TWO FORMS COMPLETED

No Exceptions NA 

As Specified

YY

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status Y / N
Non-Collusion Y / N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y / N

ADDENDUM #1: Attached: Y / N

Y

Y
Y

Y

Y
Y

YY

ATTEST: **  BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Steven Pallotta
Diane Fisher __________________________
Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB

Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 10-42 LED Lighting.xls



Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4

LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL A:  LED LIGHTING AND RETROFIT INCLUDING INSTALLATION - VARIOUS LOCATIONS
EST UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION

1 25 94.00$       2,350.00$    3,931.38$       82.95$      2,073.75$    4,738.00$        

2 28 338.78$     9,485.84$    11,983.16$     306.60$    8,584.80$    16,761.80$      

3 12    688.81$     8,265.72$    10,898.80$     618.45$    7,421.40$    11,204.40$      

4 49 650.18$     31,858.82$  37,003.60$     646.80$    31,693.20$  40,572.00$      

5 33 618.25$     20,402.25$  23,763.07$     576.45$    19,022.85$  31,528.85$      

6 24 813.32$     19,519.68$  24,437.58$     748.65$    17,967.60$  29,485.00$      

7 4 900.49$     3,601.96$    4,362.43$       831.60$    3,326.40$    6,654.40$        

8 20 333.77$     6,675.40$    8,687.80$       309.52$    6,190.40$    14,250.00$      

9 66 917.41$     60,549.06$  77,832.48$     832.65$    54,954.90$  90,132.90$      

10 33 917.41$     30,274.53$  38,916.24$     832.65$    27,477.45$  42,977.45$      

11 1 198.95$     198.95$       294.56$          177.45$    177.45$       1,581.45$        

12 1 345.60$     345.60$       480.59$          306.60$    306.60$       1,710.60$        

13 13 1,272.33$  16,540.29$  20,192.71$     1,178.10$ 15,315.30$  25,364.30$      

14 8 1,272.33$  10,178.64$  12,426.28$     1,178.10$ 9,424.80$    14,468.80$      

15 6 813.13$     4,878.78$    6,273.50$       714.14$    4,284.84$    8,912.84$        

16 2 775.05$     1,550.10$    1,930.63$       672.00$    1,344.00$    3,892.00$        
Est. Material & Install Total:  Proposal A

PROPOSAL B:  LED LIGHTING - PARTS ONLY
EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL

17 102 90.39$       82.95$      

18 20 149.50$     82.95$      

19 30 123.33$     114.48$    
Est Total Material Cost: Proposal B  
EST. GRAND TOTAL PROPOSALS A & B

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

COMPLETION SCHEDULE: 
Can Meet Y or N

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N
Date

PROGRESS PAYMENT:
Identified as 

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
Attached: Y or N 

Rauhorn Electric, Inc. Allied Building Service 

9479203979 000250360
$15,000.00 $15,000.00

12 Watt / LR6C

41 Watt / LWP2 

64 Watt / LFL2 

80 Watt / PS1 

60 Watt / Custom 

119 Watt / PS2 

79 Watt / Custom 

38 Watt / LWP1 

121 Watt / Vue 250 – III

121 Watt / Vue 250 – II 

8.39 Watt / LWP3 

39 Watt / LFL1 

245 Watt / Vue 400 – II

245 Watt / Vue 400 – III

84 Watt / Vue 150 – III  

65 Watt / Vue 100 he – II
283,414.81$                                                344,234.79$                                                

Total Total 
Cost Cost

12 Watt / LR6C 9,219.78$                               8,460.90$                               

12 Watt / LR6 / SC6 2,990.00$                               1,659.00$                               

12 Watt / LRP38 3,699.90$                               3,434.40$                               
15,909.68$                                                  13,554.30$                                                  

299,324.49$                                                357,789.09$                                                

7:00AM - 5:30PM 7:00AM - 5:00PM
(586) 405-7774 (248) 882-2152

May 31, 2011 May 31, 2011
45 Days After Fixture Delivery Y

Y Y
1/11/2011 1/11/2011

Monthly Installments after fixture delivery Monthly Invoicing based on work completed
Blank Blank

XX Y

Y Y



Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4

LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS:

WARRANTY:

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: 
Attached Y / N

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status Y / N
Non-Collusion Y / N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y / N

ADDENDUM #1: Attached: Y / N

G: ITB-COT 10-42 LED Lighting.xls

Rauhorn Electric, Inc. Allied Building Service 

additional $14,460.00 to bid Blank

Y Y

As Specified

Y Y

Bid excludes sales tax - if required add 

Y Y
Y Y

Y Y



g:\   city council\ agenda\clerk council agenda items\elections\precincts\20110606 agenda - 4 and 9 relocation.doc 

 
 
Date May 27, 2011 

 
TO: Mayor Schilling and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

James A. Nash, Acting Director of Finance and Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Precinct #4 and #9 Polling Place Relocation 
  
 
 
Background 
 
In a letter dated November 3, 2010, Ms. Deborah Peltier, Business Manager for St. 
Elizabeth Ann Seton Church (280 E. Square Lake Rd.), requested that the City of Troy no 
longer house voting precincts #4 and #9 at that location. Since that time, the City Clerk’s 
Office has been in contact with First United Methodist Church (6363 Livernois). First United 
Methodist Church has volunteered use of their facilities to house voting precincts #4 and #9 
during future elections.  
 
On May 26, 2011, the Election Commission voted unanimously to approve the relocation of 
the two precincts to First United Methodist Church beginning with the August 2, 2011, 
Special Election. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends approval of relocating voting precincts #4 and #9 to First 
United Methodist church beginning with the August 2, 2011, Special Election. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds for the printing and mailing of new voter ID cards is available in the City Clerk’s 
Elections Budget. 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-11



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             May 31, 2011              
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
 
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements from  
  Mondrian Properties-The Villas, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-21-102-026 
 
 
Background 
 
As part of the development of The Villas of Troy site condominium located in Section 21, the 
Engineering department has received a Warranty Deed for 35 feet of right-of-way along Finch Road 
and four permanent easements for public utilities, storm sewer, storm water detention, surface 
drainage, sidewalks, emergency ingress and egress.  
 
The Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements were granted to the City of Troy by Mondrian 
Properties—The Villas, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-21-102-026. 
  
The format and content of this Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements is consistent with 
conveyances previously accepted by City Council. The consideration amount on each document is 
$1.00. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached Warranty Deed and four 
Permanent Easements, consistent with our policy of accepting easements and right-of-way for 
development and improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAF/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCC\MondrianProperties-TheVillasEsmts.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
J-12

































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              May 27, 2011               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
 
 
Subject: Private Agreement – Villas of Troy Site Condo’s 
  Project No. 07.928.3 
 
 
Background 
 
The Planning Commission granted preliminary site plan approval for the above referenced project on 
10/09/2007.  The Engineering Department has reviewed the plans for this project and recommends 
approval.  The plans include sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, detention, paving, sidewalks, 
landscaping and soil erosion. 
 
The Owner has provided a performance bond and 10% cash for escrow and cash fees in the amount 
of the estimated cost of public improvements, as required. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval is recommended 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk (Original Agreement) 
 James Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2007\07.928.3 - Villas of Troy Site Condominium\Corespondence\Agenda Item.docx 

stewartc
Text Box
J-13











PES/bjm\AGENDA ITEMS\PS11M.038 – Approval of Extension of Time Limit for ERIP for Exempt Employee 

 
 

 
 
DATE:   May 31, 2011 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 
SUBJECT:  AGENDA ITEM – Approval of Extension of Time Limit for Early Retirement 
   Incentive Plan for Exempt Employee 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City administration recommends extending the deadline for Mr. James Nash to apply for the 
Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) which is currently being offered to Classified and 
Exempt employees from May 23, 2011 until the conclusion of the six-month review period for his 
promotion to Acting Director of Finance and Administration. 
 
BACKGROUND 
With the impending retirement of John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & 
Administration, there is an opportunity to restructure this function.  This position is being 
reclassified from Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration to Director of Finance and 
Administration, and will have oversight over Finance & Risk Management, Assessing, 
Treasurer, Purchasing, IT and City Clerk.  The Library Director and Human Resources Director 
will report directly to the City Manager. 
 
On May 20, 2011, Mr. James Nash, Financial Services Director, was appointed to the position of 
Acting Director of Finance and Administration.  Mr. Nash will serve a six-month review period.  
However, he may be returned to the Financial Services Director position by his selection or 
upon the decision of the City Manager at any time during the six-month review period.  By 
accepting this Acting Director of Finance and Administration position, and if for some reason he 
does not remain in this position during or at the conclusion of the six-month review period, he 
will have missed the opportunity to take advantage of the ERIP program should he desire.  This 
seems an unfair penalty for accepting a promotion.  Thus, it is recommended that the deadline 
for Mr. Nash to apply for the ERIP be extended until the conclusion of the six-month review 
period, or November 23, 2011. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

stewartc
Text Box
J-14



stewartc
Text Box
J-15









 

 

1 
 

  
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

  
Date:     May 24, 2011                        
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
Subject: Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) for Building Maintenance Personnel 
 
 
The Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) for Classified and Exempt personnel was approved 
by City Council because it was cost efficient to our organization to offer such a program.  All in all, 68 
personnel qualified for this program and 26 took a retirement as a result thereof.  The end date for 
this program was May 23, 2011.   
 
In tandem with the ERIP window of eligibility, City Management was and is working on specifications 
for outsourcing the building maintenance function.  And we believe it is going to be most cost efficient 
to maintain a core level of personnel and outsource specialized/seasonal functions.  However, should 
it prove cost efficient to outsource all building maintenance functions, I recommend that the ERIP be 
extended for those personnel in the building maintenance department who remained in the 
department and were not slated for lay-off in accordance with our three-year budget document.   
 
I will be happy answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administrative Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 Steve Pallotta, Building Operations Director 

Tim Richnak, Department of Public Works Director 
 Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/bt\my documents\szerlag\2011\To M&CC – ERIP for Building Maintenance Personnel 

BittnerA
Text Box
K-02a



BittnerA
Text Box
N-01a







BittnerA
Text Box
N-01b





ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final March 24, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held March 24, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:15 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ABSENT:  None. 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 31, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-03-003 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of January 
31, 2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-03-004 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the May 3, 2011 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk. 

 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:24 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01c



bartholotl
Text Box
N-01d











BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
April 19, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present 
Michael Bartnik, Vice Chair 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert, Chair 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Stuart Filler, Recording Secretary 

 
Chair Lambert reviewed the meeting procedure and introduced the Board members and staff. 
Mr. Strat is the Board liaison to the Planning Commission. Chair Lambert said that a new 
Zoning Ordinance was adopted last night and will soon go into effect. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Resolution #BZA 2011-04-18 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Strat 
 
MOVED, To approve the March 15, 2011, regular meeting minutes with the following 
corrections: 
 

p. 3 -  after “Ordinance Section 39.10.03” and the sentence on the City staff 
presentation: delete the following paragraph and the part of the third paragraph 
before “appellant Harry Kwon; 
p. 3 -  insert a period after “and to Sunoco, to all concerned,” and delete the 
remainder of the sentence; resume at “The wood portion is removable”; 
p. 4 -  replace “Mr. Bartnik said the wall” with “A Board member said the wall”;  
p. 4 -  replace “too small for a condo” with “too small for a site condo.” 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

      _________________________________ 
 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01e



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

2 
 

Resolution #BZA 2011-04-19 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To postpone resumption of the hearing on 4820 Livernois (Agenda item 3C) to 
May 17, 2011, as the petitioner has requested. 
 
Chair Lambert asked who was present for that item, and an individual present for that item 
chose to come back next month rather than comment tonight on the motion on the floor. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 

 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
3.  POSTPONED ITEMS  

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, HARRY KWON, 38921 DEQUINDRE - A variance from 

the requirement that the required obscuring wall along the west property line be 
constructed of common or face brick, or of poured or precast masonry or 
decorative block, in order to maintain the existing wood fence  

 
ORDINANCE SECTION: 39.10.03 

 
Mr. Evans summarized the facts and history of the case. This continues the 
hearing that the Board adjourned on March 15, 2011, so that the applicant could 
provide more documentation. The new Zoning Ordinance, however, which the 
City adopted yesterday, gives the applicant an alternative. Instead of masonry 
screening, the ordinance requires screening by means of plantings. Plantings of 
the required type and distances apart could be administratively approved and 
would satisfy the ordinance without the need for a variance. The appellant could 
replace the wood portion with masonry under the old zoning ordinance, or with 
plantings under the new ordinance. Mr. Evans pointed out on the City GIS map 
where the Sunoco pipeline appears to be located in the area.   
 
Appellant Harry Kwon said the easement documents prohibit any “permanent 
structure.” Sunoco Pipeline L.P. holds that this excludes any masonry wall across 
the easement but that it permits wooden fencing. Of the 125 foot rear property 
line, Mr. Kwon said the wood fence portion is about 20 feet or the approximate 
width of the easement. 
 
Mr. Bartnik referred to a November 25, 2005 City Legal Department opinion, and 
Mr. Evans confirmed that is part of the public record of this hearing. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

3 
 

No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert cited one letter on file that opposes 
the request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster and Board members reviewed documents 
pertaining to the case. Assistant City Attorney Lancaster said that all the practical 
questions cannot be answered definitively because they involve actions or 
inactions by another party or parties as well as factual issues. It appears, 
however, that the documents pertaining to the private easement, at least as 
understood by the easement holder, prohibit a “structure: in the easement, and 
that they hold that a concrete wall is a “structure.” 

 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-20 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To grant a permanent variance to allow the appellant to keep an 
existing portion of 6 foot tall wood fencing in lieu the required masonry wall; 
 
Preliminary Findings: That this variance: 
 

 Relates only to the property in question; 
 

 Would not be contrary to the public interest; 
 

 Would not permit the establishment of a prohibited use; 
 

 Would not cause an adverse effect on properties in the vicinity or zoning 
district; and 

 
 That the appellant has demonstrated a practical difficulty, in that it would 

be unnecessarily burdensome to conform by means of masonry 
construction that would violate a recorded  private easements; 
 

Special Finding: 
 

 That the practical difficulty results from an unusual characteristic of the 
property, which consists of the 1913 and 1942 Sunoco Pipeline L.P. 
easement. 
 

Discussion of the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Lambert said that trees or shrubs, as permitted and mandated by the new 
Zoning Ordinance would look better than the existing wooden fencing, which 
some communications to the Board call an eyesore. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

4 
 

Mr. Clark agreed that the neighbors would prefer an alternative to the existing 
wood fence and said that the Board cannot guarantee that the fence, which is in 
good condition, would never deteriorate, even if the Board made maintenance a 
condition and even though the ordinances require maintenance. 
 
Mr. Kneale said that the best option for uniformity of appearance would be to 
complete the concrete wall, but that he would support the motion rather than 
impose the additional costs of the owner’s removing the fence and planting 
shrubbery. 

 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Fisher, Kneale 
No: Clark, Courtney, Lambert, Strat 
 
MOTION FAILED 3-4. 
 

 
Mr. Evans said Mr. Kwon should contact the Planning Department, since the previous variance 
has expired. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster said that Mr. Kwon should contact the easement holder to 
see whether they will approve the screen wall due to the denial of a variance tonight. 
 
Mr. Kwon asked whether he is allowed to replace the entire existing masonry wall with shrubs, 
and requested a City letter citing the ordinance that he can show to the easement holder. Mr. 
Evans agreed to assist. 
 
      _________________________________ 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, MONSIGNOR ZOUHAIR TOMA KAJBOU, 2442 E. BIG 
BEAVER ROAD, ST. JOSEPH CHALDEAN CATHOLIC CHURCH - In order to 
construct an addition to the church and a new driveway: 1) An 8 foot variance 
from the requirement that the addition be set back 50 feet from the west property 
line; 2) a 43 foot variance from the requirement that the proposed driveway be 
set back at least 50 feet from the west property line; and 3) a variance from the 
requirement that a landscaped berm be provided between the proposed driveway 
and the west property line.  
ORDINANCE SECTIONS: 10.30.04 (B), (E), (F) 
 
Mr. Evans summarized the facts and the history of the case.  This matter has not 
yet been heard by the Board as it was postponed from March 15, 2011 at the 
request of the applicant.   
 
Mr. Evans advised the Planning Commission took no action at special use 
approval and site plan review held January 11, 2011, pending the petitioner’s 
seeking appropriate variances. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

5 
 

 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that the apparently vacant land to the south of the property 
is City owned. 
 
Ghassan Abdelnour, of G.A.V & Associates, Inc., Architects, 31471 Northwestern 
Highway, Farmington Hills, said that the improvements are part of a growing 
church community’s effort to deal with traffic and circulation issues The effort has 
included rescheduling the interval between services and construction of a second 
church in Sterling Heights. The issue is traffic accumulating on Big Beaver. The 
property has two vehicle exits but only one vehicle entrance.  
 
Its 321 parking spaces exceed the requirement, which is 267, but they take too 
long to fill. The requirement is one space for every three building occupants; 
building capacity is 800.  
 
They have met with Planning, Building, and Police  
Departments, the Planning Commission and the neighbors about the need for a 
second entrance drive on the west side, about the landscaped area to the south, 
and about traffic circulation, and are still working on these three things. 
 
Architect Abdelnour continued. Fr. Kajbou withdrew the plan for a second drop-
off area on the west side that would have eliminated a bottleneck where a line 
forms at the main entrance. That was in response to community concerns. The 
vestibule is now a minor feature to add a cover over an existing doorway. Also in 
response to concerns, Msgr. Kajbou had them add a curve in the driveway as a 
safeguard against headlight glare, even though most masses are in the daytime. 
More trees have been added to the landscape site plan for the south end to 
provide more screening from traffic lanes. They can add still more trees. Another 
suggestion that was implemented is for photoelectric sensors at the concrete 
separation wall to guarantee that lights go out in accord with City Code. The 
dialogue with the City and the neighbors continues. 
 
Appellant Msgr. Zouhair Kajbou, Pastor of St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church, 
2442 East Big Beaver Road, said that they have improved the spacing of the 
services, have added more services to reduce human congestion, and have 
added three churches in five years. But the traffic congestion entering from Big 
Beaver causes hardship to the neighbors as well as church members. 
 
He discussed reasons contributing to a full parking lot, possible alternatives 
involving modifying the existing parking lot, and the Church’s efforts to 
communicate with Wexford Condominium residents,  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked about changes in the proposal that occurred after the 
January 12 Planning Commission hearing. Architect Abdelnour said that a drop-
off area at the back of the west side of the building is gone, along with a few 
minor revisions.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

6 
 

 
Mr. Bartnik said that the several homes to the west are so close that one can see 
why the homeowners would be very concerned about a driveway there. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked about a new west entrance with the driveway and drop-
off/vestibule on the north side instead of the west side of the building. The 
appellant advised that substantial changes, including revising the worship area, 
would have to be made to the church interior.  Architect Abdelnour said that most 
of the parking is south of the building, so that it would be difficult for people to 
walk from the south parking to a north entrance. In addition, there is no parking 
lot outlet to the west, cars would face a dead end and maneuvering would be 
difficult.   
 
Mr. Clark acknowledged the effort to reduce impact on the condos on major 
holidays, including using shuttle buses, and asked about other alternatives. The 
appellant said the shuttle buses come from the Lowes around the corner, where 
they have an agreement for major holiday parking. New churches or new 
Chaldean services are offered at 3 other off site area locations, with another 
pending. There are more volunteer parking guides. Together with these steps, 
the site improvements should eliminate 75% of the problem.   
 
The applicant noted that the Church contributes towards paying for Troy Police 
support on major holidays.   
 
Mr. Kneale asked if second drive entrance connecting the north to the south 
parking between the church and the rectory building has been explored. The 
appellant advised there is a storm sewer easement between the buildings, that 
creating the drive would result in a loss of existing parking spaces, and that a 
new proposed west entrance would eliminate the need for such a drive.  .  
 
Mr. Fisher asked whether passengers would be dropped off at the new west 
entranceway. The appellant said no. They do proposed to expand the existing 
double door on the east side to facilitate additional drop offs. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked about enlarging the existing northeast exit and converting 
the central two-lanes from entrance and exit into a two-lane entrance with no exit. 
The appellant advised they believe two exits allow cars to leave the site faster, 
clearing the way for other cars to enter rather than being delayed on the road.   
 
Chair Lambert noted that Troy Police Department Lieutenant. Dave Livingston is 
here at the request of the appellant.  Lt. Livingston said that his main role is to let 
the Board know that the parish is doing all it can to reduce holiday and special 
event backup onto Big Beaver, which sometimes extends all the way to John R. 
The parish pays for five officers or more, who help with this public safety 
concern. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

7 
 

Officers have helped with the high volume traffic for eight years to his knowledge, 
and he agrees that having a single entrance drive slows access., He believes 
removing the proposed drop-off point on the proposed new driveway, will help  
eastbound Big Beaver traffic enter the site faster. 
 
He believes other causes of congestion include: the existing drop-off point just 
north of the handicapped area; and people waiting around after services to 
fellowship with friends arriving for the next service. The overflow vacant lot to the 
south is sometimes soft and thus cannot always be used. The church has 
staggered the schedule and has arranged for extra off-site parking. He discussed 
additional traffic control measures utilized for Church events.  
 
In response to a question by Mr. Strat, he opined is that a traffic light that would 
force westbound traffic to wait would not be cost justified.    
 
He believes another entranceway would help. Chair Lambert asked whether 
there could be a new entranceway without a new driveway along the west 
property line. Lieutenant. Livingston said that there could, but it might increase 
the rate of entry by 33% rather than 100%. The problem is getting traffic to the 
south parking area without a bottleneck.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 

Chair Lambert opened the public hearing. 
 

Supporting, Beth C. Turner, 2924 and 2926 Roundtree Drive.  , Opposed, 
Shannon Duke, 2930 Roundtree, with concerns that people will use the proposed 
west building entrance.   
Opposing, Ed Piché, 2615 Parasol Drive, secretary of the Morel East 
Homeowners Association, questioned what is next step if proposed measures 
are ineffectiv 
 
Opposed, Charles Pelzer, 2878 Roundtree Drive, believes some drivers will use 
a driveway to drop off passengers despite their intent, driveway as proposed is 
too close to condo residences 
 
Opposed, Stanley Pilchowski, 2993 Roundtree, spoke in detail to the effect that a 
second driveway does nothing to shorten overlong service times and does 
nothing to stop the church from overcrowding, which he believes are the causes 
of the congestion. 
 
Supporting, Susan Kattula, 5310 Dickson, Sterling Heights, said that she is a 24-
year parish council member speaking as a church member and volunteer about 
adjustments that the church has made to minimize traffic and congestion.  This 
includes an increase in parish membership from 30 families to 30,000 persons, 
adding masses on weekends and evenings, volunteer parking guides and hiring 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

8 
 

the Police Department, and relocating Its 800-participant catechism program to 
rental space off site. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked the Appellant how the City could approve a driveway that 
carries ten, or fifty or more cars, perhaps several times weekly, that would be so 
close to several private homes. A person standing by the 4 foot wall can almost 
look into the residences. This is an imposition on their privacy. 
 
The appellant said that there have been no incidents and that the proposed 
driveway would be for vehicular traffic that does not stop, only. The 4 foot wall 
screens people seated in cars, and enhanced landscaping and shrubs, as shown 
in the landscape site plan will designed to screen out both glare and sightlines.  
 
Mr. Bartnik said it is doubtful whether any plantings can protect nearby homes 
from traffic noise, etc., as well as a 50 foot setback. The appellant said there are 
four houses that are newly affected. The others are already alongside the parking 
lot, exposed to hundreds of cars moving and slamming doors. Relieving traffic 
congestion has costs, and the appellants are willing to pay but would not 
encroach on the neighbors’ privacy or comfort.  
 
In response to a question, the appellant repeated that the south half of the 
church is really a separate building that cannot become a primary entrance, 
because it would require demolishing several walls and the resulting hallway 
would be too long. 
 
Opposing, Sam Daya, 2541 Marcus Drive, offered technical reasons why the 
proposed entrance drive would not solve the traffic problems and suggested 
widening the existing entranceway. 
 
Opposing, Samuel Mitchell, 2914 Roundtree Drive, said that he performs the 
Wexford condo maintenance and observed that there is very little traffic in the 
condo driveway along the separation wall, He is concerned that a driveway could 
drive down the property values and that 4 feet is too narrow a space for trees a 
driveway and the existing wall. 
 
Chair Lambert noted one letter of support and three letters in opposition on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Responding to Chair Lambert’s question, the appellant said that building another 
church could afford some relief through reduced church membership but that the 
need remains to reduce the vehicle backup onto Big Beaver, even though it 
happens only a few times per year. 
 
 

 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-21 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

9 
 

Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To deny the request, because the proposed driveway along the western 
edge would cause an adverse effect on the properties in the immediate vicinity, 
based on the testimony and exhibits. 
 
MOTION SUPERSEDED by postponement  Resolution #BZA 2011-04-22. 

      _________________________________ 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-22 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To postpone the item to May 17, 2011, to enable the appellant to 
consult for further traffic engineering advice. 
 
Discussion of the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Evans suggested if one month was insufficient time for the Applicant, the 
Board, at the May 17, 2011 meeting, could extend the postponement further. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes:  Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Lambert, Strat  
No: Bartnik, Kneale 
 
MOTION CARRIED 5-2. 

 
 

      _________________________________ 
 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, MINAL GADA AND ASHISH MANEK, 4820 
LIVERNOIS - In order to split the subject parcel into 3 separate parcels, a 15 foot 
variance to the required 100 foot lot width requirement for 2 of the proposed 
parcels. (Hearing adjourned March 15, 2011, to enable the appellants to 
research the viability of alternatives.) 

 
ORDINANCE SECTION: 39.10.02 
 
ADJOURNED TO MAY 17, 2011, per Resolution #BZA 2011-04-18, above at 
page 2. 

       _________________________________ 
 
 
4. HEARING OF NEW CASES  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

10 
 

 
A.  PERMISSION REQUEST, TIMOTHY J. LeROY, SUBURBAN MOTORS 

COMPANY, INC. 1810 MAPLELAWN — Permission to place a temporary sales 
trailer on the site while the permanent building is undergoing renovations.  

  
SECTION: 43.80.00 (C)  
 
Mr. Evans summarized the facts of the case  
 
Applicant Sam Gendler, Suburban Collection, 1795 Maplelawn, said that he and 
Timothy LeRoy coordinated on the temporary sales trailer. It would be smaller 
than the permanent sales area but large enough to accommodate one porter and 
seven sales people. The trailer has two pairs of offices on either side of a central 
open area; it has drinkable water, bathroom facilities, and utilities and data lines. 
It will be situated about 50 feet from the permanent building, in the area of the 
current used car inventory.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster said that a temporary permission has a lesser 
standard than the practical difficulty standard that applies to variances. 
 
The applicant said that February 2012 is the estimated time for the completion of 
these major renovations and the retirement of the trailer.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted that the Board received one 
letter, which is in support of the application. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-23 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To approve the request for up to two years. 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised that a permission grant motion does 
not necessarily have to include a set of findings. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
   
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED   

      _________________________________ 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

11 
 

 
 
B.  VARIANCE REQUEST, ALEJANDRO M. NOGOY for A. M. NOGOY 

CONSTRUCTION, 4951 SOMERTON DRIVE — In order to remove the existing 
deck and build an addition to the home in the same location, a 5 foot variance to 
the required 40 foot rear yard setback.  

   
 SECTION: 30.10.04  
 

Mr. Evans summarized the facts of the case.  Mr. Bartnik established that the 
required public hearing notices went out, including to the Troy Swim Club 
immediately to the west, and they did not comment. 

Appellant Alejandro Nogoy, Nogoy Construction, 3232 Helena Drive, said that 
the property owners hired him to do the improvements per the specifications and 
drawings, as well as the explanatory essay submitted with the application. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 

No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted that the two letters received 
both support a variance.  

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 

Resolution #BZA 2011-04-24 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the proposed variance. 

Preliminary Findings: That this variance: 
 

 Would not be contrary to the public interest; 
 

 Would not permit the establishment of a prohibited use; 
 

 Would not cause any adverse effect on properties in the immediate vicinity 
or  zoning district; and 

 
 Relates only to the property described in the application; 

 
Special Finding: 

 
 That the public health, safety and welfare will not be negatively affected; 

 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
   
Yes: All present (7) 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- DRAFT  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

12 
 

 
MOTION CARRIED  

      _________________________________ 
 
 
5.  COMMUNICATIONS 
 

There were no communications. 
 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

Appellant Ashish Manek thanked the Board for deferring Item 3C to May. 

7.  MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS  
 

Chair Lambert said that Board officers are elected next month. 

Mr. Bartnik asked for a workshop on the newly adopted Zoning Ordinance about to go 
into effect. Mr. Evans agreed to provide some information and suggested a study 
session for the Board an hour before the May 17, 2011, meeting.  

Mr. Strat suggested on-line update information. 

Chair Lambert welcomed Assistant City Attorney Lancaster. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 11:31 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
____________________________________ 
David Lambert, Chair 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Stuart Filler, Recording Secretary      /sf 4-28 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
April 19, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present 
Michael Bartnik, Vice Chair 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert, Chair 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Stuart Filler, Recording Secretary 

 
Chair Lambert reviewed the meeting procedure and introduced the Board members and staff. 
Mr. Strat is the Board liaison to the Planning Commission. Chair Lambert said that a new 
Zoning Ordinance was adopted last night and will soon go into effect. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Resolution #BZA 2011-04-18 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Strat 
 
MOVED, To approve the March 15, 2011, regular meeting minutes with the following 
corrections: 
 

p. 3 -  after “Ordinance Section 39.10.03” and the sentence on the City staff 
presentation: delete the following paragraph and the part of the third paragraph 
before “appellant Harry Kwon; 
p. 3 -  insert a period after “and to Sunoco, to all concerned,” and delete the 
remainder of the sentence; resume at “The wood portion is removable”; 
p. 4 -  replace “Mr. Bartnik said the wall” with “A Board member said the wall”;  
p. 4 -  replace “too small for a condo” with “too small for a site condo.” 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

      _________________________________ 
 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

2 
 

Resolution #BZA 2011-04-19 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To postpone resumption of the hearing on 4820 Livernois (Agenda item 3C) to 
May 17, 2011, as the petitioner has requested. 
 
Chair Lambert asked who was present for that item, and an individual present for that item 
chose to come back next month rather than comment tonight on the motion on the floor. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 

 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
3.  POSTPONED ITEMS  

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, HARRY KWON, 38921 DEQUINDRE - A variance from 

the requirement that the required obscuring wall along the west property line be 
constructed of common or face brick, or of poured or precast masonry or 
decorative block, in order to maintain the existing wood fence  

 
ORDINANCE SECTION: 39.10.03 

 
Mr. Evans summarized the facts and history of the case. This continues the 
hearing that the Board adjourned on March 15, 2011, so that the applicant could 
provide more documentation. The new Zoning Ordinance, however, which the 
City adopted yesterday, gives the applicant an alternative. Instead of masonry 
screening, the ordinance requires screening by means of plantings. Plantings of 
the required type and distances apart could be administratively approved and 
would satisfy the ordinance without the need for a variance. The appellant could 
replace the wood portion with masonry under the old zoning ordinance, or with 
plantings under the new ordinance. Mr. Evans pointed out on the City GIS map 
where the Sunoco pipeline appears to be located in the area.   
 
Appellant Harry Kwon said the easement documents prohibit any “permanent 
structure.” Sunoco Pipeline L.P. holds that this excludes any masonry wall across 
the easement but that it permits wooden fencing. Of the 125 foot rear property 
line, Mr. Kwon said the wood fence portion is about 20 feet or the approximate 
width of the easement. 
 
Mr. Bartnik referred to a November 25, 2005 City Legal Department opinion, and 
Mr. Evans confirmed that is part of the public record of this hearing. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

3 
 

No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert cited one letter on file that opposes 
the request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster and Board members reviewed documents 
pertaining to the case. Assistant City Attorney Lancaster said that all the practical 
questions cannot be answered definitively because they involve actions or 
inactions by another party or parties as well as factual issues. It appears, 
however, that the documents pertaining to the private easement, at least as 
understood by the easement holder, prohibit a “structure: in the easement, and 
that they hold that a concrete wall is a “structure.” 

 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-20 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To grant a permanent variance to allow the appellant to keep an 
existing portion of 6 foot tall wood fencing in lieu the required masonry wall; 
 
Preliminary Findings: That this variance: 
 

 Relates only to the property in question; 
 

 Would not be contrary to the public interest; 
 

 Would not permit the establishment of a prohibited use; 
 

 Would not cause an adverse effect on properties in the vicinity or zoning 
district; and 

 
 That the appellant has demonstrated a practical difficulty, in that it would 

be unnecessarily burdensome to conform by means of masonry 
construction that would violate a recorded  private easements; 
 

Special Finding: 
 

 That the practical difficulty results from an unusual characteristic of the 
property, which consists of the 1913 and 1942 Sunoco Pipeline L.P. 
easement. 
 

Discussion of the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Lambert said that trees or shrubs, as permitted and mandated by the new 
Zoning Ordinance would look better than the existing wooden fencing, which 
some communications to the Board call an eyesore. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

4 
 

Mr. Clark agreed that the neighbors would prefer an alternative to the existing 
wood fence and said that the Board cannot guarantee that the fence, which is in 
good condition, would never deteriorate, even if the Board made maintenance a 
condition and even though the ordinances require maintenance. 
 
Mr. Kneale said that the best option for uniformity of appearance would be to 
complete the concrete wall, but that he would support the motion rather than 
impose the additional costs of the owner’s removing the fence and planting 
shrubbery. 

 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Fisher, Kneale 
No: Clark, Courtney, Lambert, Strat 
 
MOTION FAILED 3-4. 
 

 
Mr. Evans said Mr. Kwon should contact the Planning Department, since the previous variance 
has expired. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster said that Mr. Kwon should contact the easement holder to 
see whether they will approve the screen wall due to the denial of a variance tonight. 
 
Mr. Kwon asked whether he is allowed to replace the entire existing masonry wall with shrubs, 
and requested a City letter citing the ordinance that he can show to the easement holder. Mr. 
Evans agreed to assist. 
 
      _________________________________ 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, MONSIGNOR ZOUHAIR TOMA KAJBOU, 2442 E. BIG 
BEAVER ROAD, ST. JOSEPH CHALDEAN CATHOLIC CHURCH - In order to 
construct an addition to the church and a new driveway: 1) An 8 foot variance 
from the requirement that the addition be set back 50 feet from the west property 
line; 2) a 43 foot variance from the requirement that the proposed driveway be 
set back at least 50 feet from the west property line; and 3) a variance from the 
requirement that a landscaped berm be provided between the proposed driveway 
and the west property line.  
ORDINANCE SECTIONS: 10.30.04 (B), (E), (F) 
 
Mr. Evans summarized the facts and the history of the case.  This matter has not 
yet been heard by the Board as it was postponed from March 15, 2011 at the 
request of the applicant.   
 
Mr. Evans advised the Planning Commission took no action at special use 
approval and site plan review held January 11, 2011, pending the petitioner’s 
seeking appropriate variances. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

5 
 

 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that the apparently vacant land to the south of the property 
is City owned. 
 
Ghassan Abdelnour, of G.A.V & Associates, Inc., Architects, 31471 Northwestern 
Highway, Farmington Hills, said that the improvements are part of a growing 
church community’s effort to deal with traffic and circulation issues The effort has 
included rescheduling the interval between services and construction of a second 
church in Sterling Heights. The issue is traffic accumulating on Big Beaver. The 
property has two vehicle exits but only one vehicle entrance.  
 
Its 321 parking spaces exceed the requirement, which is 267, but they take too 
long to fill. The requirement is one space for every three building occupants; 
building capacity is 800.  
 
They have met with Planning, Building, and Police  
Departments, the Planning Commission and the neighbors about the need for a 
second entrance drive on the west side, about the landscaped area to the south, 
and about traffic circulation, and are still working on these three things. 
 
Architect Abdelnour continued. Fr. Kajbou withdrew the plan for a second drop-
off area on the west side that would have eliminated a bottleneck where a line 
forms at the main entrance. That was in response to community concerns. The 
vestibule is now a minor feature to add a cover over an existing doorway. Also in 
response to concerns, Msgr. Kajbou had them add a curve in the driveway as a 
safeguard against headlight glare, even though most masses are in the daytime. 
More trees have been added to the landscape site plan for the south end to 
provide more screening from traffic lanes. They can add still more trees. Another 
suggestion that was implemented is for photoelectric sensors at the concrete 
separation wall to guarantee that lights go out in accord with City Code. The 
dialogue with the City and the neighbors continues. 
 
Appellant Msgr. Zouhair Kajbou, Pastor of St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church, 
2442 East Big Beaver Road, said that they have improved the spacing of the 
services, have added more services to reduce human congestion, and have 
added three churches in five years. But the traffic congestion entering from Big 
Beaver causes hardship to the neighbors as well as church members. 
 
He discussed reasons contributing to a full parking lot, possible alternatives 
involving modifying the existing parking lot, and the Church’s efforts to 
communicate with Wexford Condominium residents,  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked about changes in the proposal that occurred after the 
January 12 Planning Commission hearing. Architect Abdelnour said that a drop-
off area at the back of the west side of the building is gone, along with a few 
minor revisions.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

6 
 

 
Mr. Bartnik said that the several homes to the west are so close that one can see 
why the homeowners would be very concerned about a driveway there. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked about a new west entrance with the driveway and drop-
off/vestibule on the north side instead of the west side of the building. The 
appellant advised that substantial changes, including revising the worship area, 
would have to be made to the church interior.  Architect Abdelnour said that most 
of the parking is south of the building, so that it would be difficult for people to 
walk from the south parking to a north entrance. In addition, there is no parking 
lot outlet to the west, cars would face a dead end and maneuvering would be 
difficult.   
 
Mr. Clark acknowledged the effort to reduce impact on the condos on major 
holidays, including using shuttle buses, and asked about other alternatives. The 
appellant said the shuttle buses come from the Lowes around the corner, where 
they have an agreement for major holiday parking. New churches or new 
Chaldean services are offered at 3 other off site area locations, with another 
pending. There are more volunteer parking guides. Together with these steps, 
the site improvements should eliminate 75% of the problem.   
 
The applicant noted that the Church contributes towards paying for Troy Police 
support on major holidays.   
 
Mr. Kneale asked if second drive entrance connecting the north to the south 
parking between the church and the rectory building has been explored. The 
appellant advised there is a storm sewer easement between the buildings, that 
creating the drive would result in a loss of existing parking spaces, and that a 
new proposed west entrance would eliminate the need for such a drive.  .  
 
Mr. Fisher asked whether passengers would be dropped off at the new west 
entranceway. The appellant said no. They do proposed to expand the existing 
double door on the east side to facilitate additional drop offs. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked about enlarging the existing northeast exit and converting 
the central two-lanes from entrance and exit into a two-lane entrance with no exit. 
The appellant advised they believe two exits allow cars to leave the site faster, 
clearing the way for other cars to enter rather than being delayed on the road.   
 
Chair Lambert noted that Troy Police Department Lieutenant. Dave Livingston is 
here at the request of the appellant.  Lt. Livingston said that his main role is to let 
the Board know that the parish is doing all it can to reduce holiday and special 
event backup onto Big Beaver, which sometimes extends all the way to John R. 
The parish pays for five officers or more, who help with this public safety 
concern. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

7 
 

Officers have helped with the high volume traffic for eight years to his knowledge, 
and he agrees that having a single entrance drive slows access., He believes 
removing the proposed drop-off point on the proposed new driveway, will help  
eastbound Big Beaver traffic enter the site faster. 
 
He believes other causes of congestion include: the existing drop-off point just 
north of the handicapped area; and people waiting around after services to 
fellowship with friends arriving for the next service. The overflow vacant lot to the 
south is sometimes soft and thus cannot always be used. The church has 
staggered the schedule and has arranged for extra off-site parking. He discussed 
additional traffic control measures utilized for Church events.  
 
In response to a question by Mr. Strat, he opined is that a traffic light that would 
force westbound traffic to wait would not be cost justified.    
 
He believes another entranceway would help. Chair Lambert asked whether 
there could be a new entranceway without a new driveway along the west 
property line. Lieutenant. Livingston said that there could, but it might increase 
the rate of entry by 33% rather than 100%. The problem is getting traffic to the 
south parking area without a bottleneck.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 

Chair Lambert opened the public hearing. 
 

Supporting, Beth C. Turner, 2924 and 2926 Roundtree Drive.  , Opposed, 
Shannon Duke, 2930 Roundtree, with concerns that people will use the proposed 
west building entrance.   
Opposing, Ed Piché, 2615 Parasol Drive, secretary of the Morel East 
Homeowners Association, questioned what is next step if proposed measures 
are ineffectiv 
 
Opposed, Charles Pelzer, 2878 Roundtree Drive, believes some drivers will use 
a driveway to drop off passengers despite their intent, driveway as proposed is 
too close to condo residences 
 
Opposed, Stanley Pilchowski, 2993 Roundtree, spoke in detail to the effect that a 
second driveway does nothing to shorten overlong service times and does 
nothing to stop the church from overcrowding, which he believes are the causes 
of the congestion. 
 
Supporting, Susan Kattula, 5310 Dickson, Sterling Heights, said that she is a 24-
year parish council member speaking as a church member and volunteer about 
adjustments that the church has made to minimize traffic and congestion.  This 
includes an increase in parish membership from 30 families to 30,000 persons, 
adding masses on weekends and evenings, volunteer parking guides and hiring 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

8 
 

the Police Department, and relocating Its 800-participant catechism program to 
rental space off site. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked the Appellant how the City could approve a driveway that 
carries ten, or fifty or more cars, perhaps several times weekly, that would be so 
close to several private homes. A person standing by the 4 foot wall can almost 
look into the residences. This is an imposition on their privacy. 
 
The appellant said that there have been no incidents and that the proposed 
driveway would be for vehicular traffic that does not stop, only. The 4 foot wall 
screens people seated in cars, and enhanced landscaping and shrubs, as shown 
in the landscape site plan will designed to screen out both glare and sightlines.  
 
Mr. Bartnik said it is doubtful whether any plantings can protect nearby homes 
from traffic noise, etc., as well as a 50 foot setback. The appellant said there are 
four houses that are newly affected. The others are already alongside the parking 
lot, exposed to hundreds of cars moving and slamming doors. Relieving traffic 
congestion has costs, and the appellants are willing to pay but would not 
encroach on the neighbors’ privacy or comfort.  
 
In response to a question, the appellant repeated that the south half of the 
church is really a separate building that cannot become a primary entrance, 
because it would require demolishing several walls and the resulting hallway 
would be too long. 
 
Opposing, Sam Daya, 2541 Marcus Drive, offered technical reasons why the 
proposed entrance drive would not solve the traffic problems and suggested 
widening the existing entranceway. 
 
Opposing, Samuel Mitchell, 2914 Roundtree Drive, said that he performs the 
Wexford condo maintenance and observed that there is very little traffic in the 
condo driveway along the separation wall, He is concerned that a driveway could 
drive down the property values and that 4 feet is too narrow a space for trees a 
driveway and the existing wall. 
 
Chair Lambert noted one letter of support and three letters in opposition on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Responding to a Board Member’s question, the appellant said that building 
another church could afford some relief through reduced church membership but 
that the need remains to reduce the vehicle backup onto Big Beaver, even 
though it happens only a few times per year. 
 
 

 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-21 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

9 
 

Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
MOVED, To deny the request, because the proposed driveway along the western 
edge would cause an adverse effect on the properties in the immediate vicinity, 
based on the testimony and exhibits. 
 
MOTION SUPERSEDED by postponement  Resolution #BZA 2011-04-22. 

      _________________________________ 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-22 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Clark 
 
MOVED, To postpone the item to May 17, 2011, to enable the appellant to 
consult for further traffic engineering advice. 
 
Discussion of the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Evans suggested if one month was insufficient time for the Applicant, the 
Board, at the May 17, 2011 meeting, could extend the postponement further. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes:  Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Lambert, Strat  
No: Bartnik, Kneale 
 
MOTION CARRIED 5-2. 

 
 

      _________________________________ 
 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, MINAL GADA AND ASHISH MANEK, 4820 
LIVERNOIS - In order to split the subject parcel into 3 separate parcels, a 15 foot 
variance to the required 100 foot lot width requirement for 2 of the proposed 
parcels. (Hearing adjourned March 15, 2011, to enable the appellants to 
research the viability of alternatives.) 

 
ORDINANCE SECTION: 39.10.02 
 
ADJOURNED TO MAY 17, 2011, per Resolution #BZA 2011-04-18, above at 
page 2. 

       _________________________________ 
 
 
4. HEARING OF NEW CASES  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

10 
 

 
A.  PERMISSION REQUEST, TIMOTHY J. LeROY, SUBURBAN MOTORS 

COMPANY, INC. 1810 MAPLELAWN — Permission to place a temporary sales 
trailer on the site while the permanent building is undergoing renovations.  

  
SECTION: 43.80.00 (C)  
 
Mr. Evans summarized the facts of the case  
 
Applicant Sam Gendler, Suburban Collection, 1795 Maplelawn, said that he and 
Timothy LeRoy coordinated on the temporary sales trailer. It would be smaller 
than the permanent sales area but large enough to accommodate one porter and 
seven sales people. The trailer has two pairs of offices on either side of a central 
open area; it has drinkable water, bathroom facilities, and utilities and data lines. 
It will be situated about 50 feet from the permanent building, in the area of the 
current used car inventory.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster said that a temporary permission has a lesser 
standard than the practical difficulty standard that applies to variances. 
 
The applicant said that February 2012 is the estimated time for the completion of 
these major renovations and the retirement of the trailer.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted that the Board received one 
letter, which is in support of the application. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution #BZA 2011-04-23 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To approve the request for up to two years. 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised that a permission grant motion does 
not necessarily have to include a set of findings. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
   
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED   

      _________________________________ 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING -- FINAL  APRIL 19, 2011 
 

11 
 

 
 
B.  VARIANCE REQUEST, ALEJANDRO M. NOGOY for A. M. NOGOY 

CONSTRUCTION, 4951 SOMERTON DRIVE — In order to remove the existing 
deck and build an addition to the home in the same location, a 5 foot variance to 
the required 40 foot rear yard setback.  

   
 SECTION: 30.10.04  
 

Mr. Evans summarized the facts of the case.  Mr. Bartnik established that the 
required public hearing notices went out, including to the Troy Swim Club 
immediately to the west, and they did not comment. 

Appellant Alejandro Nogoy, Nogoy Construction, 3232 Helena Drive, said that 
the property owners hired him to do the improvements per the specifications and 
drawings, as well as the explanatory essay submitted with the application. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 

No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted that the two letters received 
both support a variance.  

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 

Resolution #BZA 2011-04-24 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the proposed variance. 

Preliminary Findings: That this variance: 
 

 Would not be contrary to the public interest; 
 

 Would not permit the establishment of a prohibited use; 
 

 Would not cause any adverse effect on properties in the immediate vicinity 
or  zoning district; and 

 
 Relates only to the property described in the application; 

 
Special Finding: 

 
 That the public health, safety and welfare will not be negatively affected; 

 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
   
Yes: All present (7) 





PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL APRIL 26, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on April 26, 2011 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-04-021 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-04-022 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 12, 2011 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Krent, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle 
Abstain: Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL APRIL 26, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Strat presented a summary of the April 19, 2011 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the April 27, 2011 DDA meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the newly adopted Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Branigan reported on the windmills situated in front of City Hall. 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 967) – Proposed Gaucho 

Brazilian Steakhouse, 3635 Rochester Road, West Side of Rochester between 
Troywood and Colebrook, Section 22, Currently Zoned B-3 (General Business) 
District and P-1 (Vehicular Parking) District 
 
Resolution #2011-04-023 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Gaucho Brazilian 
Steakhouse, located on the west side of Rochester between Troywood and 
Colebrook (3635 Rochester Road), in Section 22, within the B-3 zoning district, 
be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the parking immediately to the south of the building be revisited or 

redesigned to consider angled parking and a sidewalk added to connect the 
entry point of the building to the western part of the building. 

 
2. To grant the Planning Department discretion to eliminate one parking 

space, if necessary, from the site plan as originally submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on May 10, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-024 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-025 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 26, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 343 D) – Proposed Site 

Improvements, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks (1500 W. Big Beaver), 
Section 20, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-026 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to the adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the 
now-repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed site 
improvements for 1500 W. Big Beaver, located on the north side of Big Beaver and west 
of Crooks, in Section 20, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The establishment of a cross access easement in the northwest corner of the 

property to the property to the north and all necessary documentation as required by 
the City. 

2. No existing trees shall be removed from within the Big Beaver right of way. 
3. If either of these conditions is not agreed to, this item shall be returned to Planning 

Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 968) – Proposed Suburban 
Cadillac Buick, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1810 Maplelawn), Section 29, Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-027 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the now-
repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed site 
improvements for Suburban Cadillac Buick, located north of Maple, west of Crooks, at 
1810 Maplelawn, in Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. A detailed square footage calculation provided to the Planning Consultant. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 387) – Proposed Maple Plaza Renovations (McDonald’s 
Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility), Northwest Corner of Maple and Livernois (72 W. 
Maple), Section 28, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Louis Marcucci, 93 Forthton, Troy, spoke in opposition. 
 
For the record, there are three written communications on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-028 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to the adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the 
now-repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number of 
required parking spaces for the proposed Maple Plaza Renovations, including a 
McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility, to 110 when a total of 154 spaces are 
required on the site based on off-street parking space requirements, as per Article XL.  
This 44-space reduction is justified through a parking analysis in a report prepared by 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval for the proposed Maple Plaza Renovations, including a McDonald’s 
Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility, located at the northwest corner of Maple and 
Livernois, Section 28, within the B-2 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

4 
 

1. All parking lot lighting shall be shielded to prevent spillage onto adjacent property 
owners. 

2. A note shall be applied to the drawing indicating “eating in vehicles shall be 
prohibited”. 

3. All parking stalls perpendicular to sidewalks shall be reduced to a depth of 17 feet to 
increase the sidewalk width to 7 feet, and the landscape area adjacent to the south 
right of way shall be increased by 2 feet and the parking stalls reduced by 17 feet. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

8. POTENTIAL REZONING AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – East Side of Stephenson, 
North of Fourteen Mile (455 Stephenson), Section 35, Currently Zoned RC (Research 
Center) District 
 

9. POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – Potential Tim Horton’s Restaurant, Northwest 
Corner of Square Lake and Dequindre (43003 Dequindre), Section 1, Currently Zoned NN 
(Neighborhood Node) District 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:28 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\05-10-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on May 10, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-024 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-025 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 26, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 343 D) – Proposed Site 

Improvements, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks (1500 W. Big Beaver), 
Section 20, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-026 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to the adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the 
now-repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed site 
improvements for 1500 W. Big Beaver, located on the north side of Big Beaver and west 
of Crooks, in Section 20, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The establishment of a cross access easement in the northwest corner of the 

property to the property to the north and all necessary documentation as required by 
the City. 

2. No existing trees shall be removed from within the Big Beaver right of way. 
3. If either of these conditions is not agreed to, this item shall be returned to Planning 

Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 968) – Proposed Suburban 
Cadillac Buick, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1810 Maplelawn), Section 29, Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-027 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the now-
repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed site 
improvements for Suburban Cadillac Buick, located north of Maple, west of Crooks, at 
1810 Maplelawn, in Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. A detailed square footage calculation provided to the Planning Consultant. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 387) – Proposed Maple Plaza Renovations (McDonald’s 
Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility), Northwest Corner of Maple and Livernois (72 W. 
Maple), Section 28, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Louis Marcucci, 93 Forthton, Troy, spoke in opposition. 
 
For the record, there are three written communications on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-028 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to the adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the 
now-repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number of 
required parking spaces for the proposed Maple Plaza Renovations, including a 
McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility, to 110 when a total of 154 spaces are 
required on the site based on off-street parking space requirements, as per Article XL.  
This 44-space reduction is justified through a parking analysis in a report prepared by 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval for the proposed Maple Plaza Renovations, including a McDonald’s 
Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility, located at the northwest corner of Maple and 
Livernois, Section 28, within the B-2 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 





BittnerA
Text Box
N-01j





ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft May 26, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held May 26, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:20 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ABSENT:  None. 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 24, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-05-005 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of March 24, 
2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-03-006 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson  

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the August 2, 2011 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk. 

 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Precinct #4 & #9 Polling Place Relocation – From St. Elizabeth Ann 
Seton Catholic Church 280 E. Square Lake Road to First United Methodist 
Church, 6363 Livernois 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-05-007 
Motion by  
Seconded by  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has deemed that the current location of Precincts #4 
and #9 at St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church is no longer available to the City 
of Troy to serve the City of Troy electors assigned to that polling location; 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01k



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft May 26, 2011 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has found an alternative polling location at First United 
Methodist Church – 6363 Livernois that will sufficiently serve the electors of the City 
of Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, Precincts #4 and #9 
located at St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church at 280 E. Square Lake Road be 
RELOCATED to First United Methodist Church located at 6363 Livernois effective 
with the Special Election scheduled for Tuesday, August 2, 2011. 

 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:24 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



BittnerA
Text Box
N-02a









 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: May 17, 2011 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
Subject: Reduction in Service Delivery – Planning Department 
 
 
Due to organizational restructuring and reduction of staff, the number of full time Planning 
Department staff working on day-to-day Planning and Zoning items was essentially reduced from 5 to 
2, a 60% reduction.  Due to budgetary constraints, it is not practical to hire additional staff only to lay 
them off at some point in the future.  The Planning Department utilizes the services of a professional 
Planning Consultant to assist with Planning-related tasks, as needed.  Utilization of the Planning 
Consultant has resulted in an annual cost savings of approximately $280,000. 
 
Because of staff reductions, the Planning Department can no longer provide the full range of services 
that were provided in the past.  The changes to service delivery are as follows: 
 
1.  Reduction in Document Maintenance 
 
The Planning Department no longer maintains land use maps by section. 
 
The Planning Department no longer maintains maps/databases for the following uses: 

 Residential developments 
 Cell towers 
 Churches 
 Gas stations 
 Hotels 
 Restaurants 
 Daycare facilities 
 Senior facilities 
 Financial institutions 

 
2. Elimination of “Pre-Preliminary” Reviews and Redesign of Site Plans 
 
In the past, applicants would submit a site plan to the Planning Department for a “pre-preliminary” 
review prior to submitting a Preliminary Site Plan application or Special Use application.  The 
Planning Department would redesign site plans, including commercial parking lots and lot and road 
layouts for residential developments. 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-02b



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
The Planning Department now holds pre-application meetings and provides cursory reviews of site 
plans, but no longer has the staff to redesign sites.  The City’s Planning Consultant is now 
responsible for conducting reviews and preparing reports for development applications.  The cost of 
providing these services is paid for through escrow fees, which are submitted along with the 
application and fee.   
 
3. Reduction in Office Coverage 
 
Due to staff reductions, there are times when the office is not covered.  For example, one person may 
be on vacation and another may be conducting a site visit.  The remaining person in the office may 
have a meeting, resulting in the office being uncovered for periods of time.  Nobody is available to 
answer the phone or assist at the counter during these times.  Reduced office coverage results in 
lengthened response time to provide answers to questions related to planning, zoning, code 
enforcement and signs.  When the office is empty, callers may leave voice mail messages or send an 
email.  For those visiting in person, a sign is placed on the counter informing the public of the lack of 
coverage, and a sign-up sheet is provided for the person to leave contact information.  A 
representative of the Planning Department will contact those leaving messages at our earliest 
convenience.  This may be eliminated through cross training and by consolidating staff into a one-
stop shopping arrangement.  
 
It should be noted that the Planning Department undertook a number of initiatives that had the effect 
of increasing efficiencies following staff reduction.  These include a reduction in the number of 
monthly Planning Commission meetings, electronic agendas for Planning Commission and Zoning 
Board of Appeals, and an improved Planning Department website.  Additionally, the Planning 
Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals prepare abbreviated minutes, which saves approximately 
$300 per month. 
 
4. Elimination of Deliveries 
 
The Planning Department no longer delivers hard copy agenda packets to the Planning Department 
or Board of Zoning Appeals.  Both of these boards utilize electronic agendas, which eliminates the 
need for hard copies. 
 
 
 
G:\Organizational Restructuring\CC Memo 04 27 2011.doc 



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03a



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03b



 

 
 
                             
DATE:    May 26, 2011 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Towing Contract, A & M Towing 
 
 
 
Background: A & M Towing was granted a 3-year contract to tow vehicles for the Troy Police 
Department and the City of Troy Department of Public Works in October 2009. City Council requested 
a review each quarter of A & M’s performance and compliance. 
 
Financial Considerations: It is in the City’s best interest to protect its citizens and the motoring public 
when there is a need for towing service within the City of Troy due to traffic crashes, breakdowns, or 
arrests, and to ensure that the City’s contractor is complying with the requirements specified in the 
towing contract.   
 
Legal Considerations: None 
 
Policy Considerations: A & M’s staff has been very cooperative and eager to work together with the 
Police Department.  We have had no complaints regarding their services from Police Department 
personnel.  A & M is still in full compliance with the contract pricing, and in some cases has charged 
less than contract price. 
 
The Police Department received one complaint of damage to a vehicle alleged to have occurred in 
the course of impounding from a drunk driving arrest, after a thorough investigation it was determined 
that the damage was not caused by the towing and most likely happened after the vehicle had been 
released to the owner. 
 
The maintenance and oversight of this contract for towing services enhances the livability and safety 
of our community by providing safe, reliable, trustworthy towing services to the citizens of the City of 
Troy and those who travel in and through the City. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: RAWeipert/A & M towing contract quarterly report 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-05



bittnera
Text Box
N-06





stewartc
Text Box
N-07






	20110606 Agenda.pdf
	COVER MEMO
	VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 
	C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items 

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2011/12 Budget

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Brett Amesse, Vice President of Troy Youth Football Association
	I-5 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 2011-2014 and Early Retirement Incentive Program
	I-6 Application for Transfer of Ownership for Sams Mayur Indian Cuisine, LLC
	I-7 Demolition of Dangerous Building – 2651 Parasol
	I-8 Lease Agreement – Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga Restaurant at Sylvan Glen Golf Course)
	I-9 Medi-Go Service Agreement
	I-10 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates)
	I-11 Community Center Catering – Rescind City’s Application
	I-12 Community Center Catering – Caterer’s Liquor Application
	I-13 Approval of a Communications Strategy

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted
	J-5 SOCRRA Appointment of Representative and Alternate to the Board of Trustees
	J-6 Application for New Outdoor Service Area for Capital Grille Holdings, Inc.
	J-7 M. Amelia (Neal) Jermano v City of Troy et. al.
	J-8 Forfeited Property Items
	J-9 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts
	J-10 Contract Agreement – LED Lighting and Retrofits
	J-11 Precinct #4 and #9 Polling Place Relocation
	J-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements from Mondrian Properties-The Villas, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-21-102-026
	J-13 Private Agreement – Villas of Troy Site Condo – Project No. 07.928.3
	J-14 Approval of Extension of Time Limit for Early Retirement Incentive Plan for Exempt Employees
	J-15 City of Troy v Safeway Acquisition Co., et al.

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): 
	a) Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) for Building Maintenance Personnel


	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 
	L-1  Council Referrals:
	a) No Council Referrals Submitted


	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Traffic Committee-Final-January 19, 2011
	b) Library Advisory Board-Final-March 10, 2011
	c) Election Commission-Final-March 24, 2011
	d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-April 11, 2011
	e) Board of Zoning Appeals-Draft-April 19, 2011
	f) Board of Zoning Appeals-Final-April 19, 2011
	g) Planning Commission-Final-April 26, 2011
	h) Planning Commission-Draft-May 10, 2011
	i) Planning Commission-Final-May 10, 2011
	j) Library Advisory Board-Draft-May 12, 2011
	k) Election Commission-Draft-May 26, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports: 
	a) ICMA Implementation Plan and Progress Report – Police Department 
	b) Reduction in Service Delivery – Planning Department

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
	a) Letter of Appreciation from David E. Molloy, Chief of Police, Novi, to Chief Gary Mayer thanking Officer Cole and K-9 partner Titan for assistance 
	b) Letter of Appreciation from Todd Hunt, Sergeant, Pontiac Police Department, to Chief Mayer thanking Detective Tullock for assistance

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  Towing Contract, A&M Towing
	N-6  Notice of Hearing - The Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-16582
	N-7  Grand Sakwa v City of Troy

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items Presented

	P. CLOSED SESSION: 
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	Q. ADJOURNMENT
	FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS:




